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In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P. C., Salt Lake City, Utah, Bond Counsel ("Bond Counsel'') to the Agency, 
under existing law and assuming continued compliance with certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended, the interest on the Series 2018 Bonds is excludabl.efrom gross incomefor federal income tax 
purposes and is not an item ofta.x prefere:nceforpu:rposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. Bond Counsel 
is also of the opinion that the interest on the Series 2018 Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual income 
UJ:I;es. See 'TAK MATTERS" herein. 
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Dated: Date of Delivery Due: October u;, as further described on the inside cover page 

The Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (the "Series 2018 Bonds"), of the Utah 
Infrastructure Agency (the "Agency), will be issued in fully registered form and will be registered initially only in the name 
of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). IYI'C 
will act as securities depository for the Series 2018 Bonds. Purchasers of the Series 2018 Bonds will not receive certificates 
representing theJr interests in the Series 2018 Bonds purchased. Ownership by the beneficial owners of the Series 2018 
Bonds will be evidenced by book-entry only. Payments of principal of and interest on the Series 2018 Bonds will be made 
by ZB, National Association, dba Zions Bank, Salt Lake City, Utah, as trustee (the "Trustee"), to DTC, which in tum will 
remit such pacyments to its participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the Series 2018 Bonds. 
As long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner as nominee of DTC, payments of principal of and interest on the Series 2018 
Bonds will be made to such registered owner, and disbUffielnent of such payments will be the responsibility of DTC and its 
participants. Individual purchases of the Series 2018 Bonds will be made in the principal amount of $5,000 or any int.egral 
multiple thereof. 

The Series 2018 Bonds will bear interest from their dat.ed date at the rat.es per annwn as shown on the inside cover 
page. Interest on the Series 2018 Bonds (computed on the basis of a 36()...dayyear consisting of twelve 30-day months) will 
be payable semi-annually on each April 15 and October 15, conunencing October 15, 2018. 

The Series 2018 Bonds are subject to redemption as described herein. See "THE SERIES 2018 BONDS-Redemption" 
herein. 

Proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds will be used t.o (i) :finance the acquisition, construction, and installation of 
advance communication lines, equipment and improvements, and related improvements and facilities as part of a fiber 
optic advance communications network, (ii) fund a debt service reserve account for the Series 2018 Bonds and (iii) pay the 
costs of issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds. See "PLAN OF FINANCE" herein. 

The Series 2018 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Agency, and the principal of and interest 
on the Series 2018 Bonds are payable, together and on a parity with the Agency's outstanding $73,906,000 
Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue and llefunding Bonds, Series 2017A and $3,600,000 Tan.hie 
Telecommunications Revenue llefanding Bonda, Series Z017B, from the revenue• of the UIA Network after 
provision bu been made for the pqment of all operation and maintenance expenses of the UIA Network, and 
from certain other fonds pledged 1Ulder that certain General Indenture of Truat, u heretofore supplenaent.ed, 
and that certain Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust, each between the Agency and the Trustee. The 
Series 2018 Bonds are not a general obligation of the Agency, any Member of the Agency, the State of Utah or 
any agency, instrument.ality or political subdivision thereof. Neither the faith and credit nor the ad valorem 
taxing power of any Member, the State of Utah or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof 
is assigned or pledged for P81'11lent of the Series 2018 Bonda. The Agency will not mortgage or otherwise 
grant a security Interest in any of the physical U8etB of the UIA Network to secure pqment of the Series 2018 
Bonds. The Agency has no t.axlnf power. See "NBT REvENuEs OF THE .AGBNCY" and "SBCUJU'JT AND Soll1lCES OF PADIBNT 
FOil mB SUIB8 2018 BoNDS" herein. 

The Series 2018 Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and received by KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., Chicago, 
Illinois (the c·underwriter"), subject to prior sale, to withdrawal, or modification of the offer without notice, and to 
approval of legality by Bond Counsel, and certain other conditions. The City Attorney of Layton City, Utah, will pass on 
certain legal matters for the Agency. Chapman and Cutler LLP, Salt Lake City, Utah, will pass on certain legal matters for 
the Underwrit.er. Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah, is the municipal advisor to the Agency. 
It is expected that beneficial interests in the Series 2018 Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC 
on or aboutJuly 11, 2018. 
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The dat.e of this Oftlcial Stat.ement is June 26, 2018. 
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MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES, YIELDS AND CUSIP NUMBERS 

CU SIP 
M.ATIJRITY PRINCIPAL INTEREST NUMBER* 

(OCTOBER 1 5) AMOUNT RATE YIELD (91 7467) 

201 9  $550,000 5.000% 2.220% AL6 
2020 580,000 5.000% 2.470% AM4 
2021 610,000 5 .000% 2.710% AN2 
2022 640,000 5.000% 2.920% AP7 
2023 670,000 5.000% 3.080% AQ5 

5.000% $1 ,450,000 Term Bond due October 1 5 ,  2025; Yield 3.370%; CUSIP* 9 1-7467 AR3 

5.000% $2,465,000 Term Bond due October 15,  2028; Yield 3.540%; CUSIP* 917467 ASl 

5.250% $5,065,000 Tenn Bond due October 1 5, 2033; Yield 3 .740%; CUSIP* 917467 AT9 

5.375% $9,780,000 Term Bond due October 1 5, 2040; Yield 3.930%; CUSIP* 9 1 7467 AU6 

• 
CUSIP data herein is provided by the CUSlP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by S&P Capital IQ, a 
part of McGraw-Hill Companies Financial. No representations are made as to the correctness of the CUSIP numbers. These CUSlP 
numbers are subject to change after the issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds. 



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authoriz.ed by the Agency or the Underwriter, to give 
any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Official Statement in connection 
with the offering described herein and if given or made, such other infurmation or representations must not be relied 
upon as statements having been authorized by the Agency, the Underwriter or any other entity. This Official 
Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than the 
Series 2018 Bonds, nor shall there be any offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy the Series 2018 Bonds by any 
person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. This 
Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the securities described in it and may not be 
reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purposes. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the Agency is the source of all tables and statistical and financial information 
contained in this Official Statement. The information contained in this Official Statement concerning OTC has been 
obtained ftom DTC. The other infurmation set forth herein has been furnished by the Agency or from other sources 
believed to be reliable. The information and opinions expressed herein are subject to change without notice, and 
neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create 
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Agency since the date of this Official Statement. 

This Official Statement should be considered in its entirety, and no one factor should be considered more or 
less important than any other by reason of its position in this Official Statement. Where statutes, reports or other 
documents arc referred to herein, reference should be made to such statutes, reports or other documents for more 
complete information regarding the rights and obligations of parties thereto, facts and opinions contained therein and 
the subject matter thereof. 

Any statements made in this Official Statement, including the Appendices, involving matters of opinion or 
estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no 
representation is made that any of such estimates will be realir.ed. This Official Statement contains certain 
forward-looking statements and infonnation that are based on the Agency's beliefs as well as assumptions made by 
and information currently available to the Agency. Such statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions 
prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or expected. 

The Underwriter has reviewed the infonnation in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, 
its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such infonnation. 

IN CONNECTION WITH 11IE OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS 
WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN TIIE MARKET PRICE OF THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE 
THAT WIDCH MIGIIT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE 
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

TBEsE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES CO�ION NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

$21,810,000 TAX-ExEMPT TELECOMMUNICATIONS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2018A 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Official Statement is to set forth certain information concerning the 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Agency"), in connection with the offering and sale of its 
Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (the "Series 2018 Bonds"). 

The information in this Introduction is subject in all respects to more complete 
information contained elsewhere in this Official Statement. The order and placement of 
materials in this Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, are not to be deemed a 
determination of relevance, materiality or relative importance, and this Official Statement, 
including the Appendices, should be read in its entirety. The offering of the Series 2018  Bonds 
to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. 

Certain capitalized terms used in this Official Statement, unless otherwise defined in this 
Official Statement, have the meanings set forth in "APPENDIX B-Extracts of Certain Provisions 
of the Indenture" and "APPENDIX E-Service Contract." 

This Official Statement contains "forward-looking statements" that are based upon the 
Agency's current expectations and its projections about future events. When used in this Official 
Statement, the words "project," "estimate," "intend," "expect," "scheduled," ''pro-forma" and 
similar words identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to 
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and factors that may be outside the control · of the 
Agency. Actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking 
statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking 
statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Neither the Agency nor any other party plans 
to issue any updates or revisions to these forward-looking statements based on future events. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE AGENCY 

The Agency is a political subdivision of the State of Utah (the "State "), and was created 
in 2010 pursuant to the Utah lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Title 1 1 ,  Chapter 13,  Utah Code 
Annotated 1 953, as amended (the "Interlocal Cooperation Act'), and the Second Amended and 
Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Infrastructure Agency originally dated as 
of June 7, 2010, and amended and restated as of November 1 ,  2010 (the "Interlocal Agreement') 
among Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, 
City of Orem, Payson City and West Valley City (each a "Member" and collectively, the 
"Members "). With the exception of Payson City, all of the Members are contracting members 
as described herein (each a "Contracting Member" and collectively, the "Contracting 
Members''). See "CONTRACITNG MEMBERS" herein. Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act 



and the Interlocal Agreement, the Members organized the Agency to provide for the acquisition, 
construction and installation of advance communication lines together with related 
improvements and facilities (the "UIA Networ'/C') for the purpose of connecting properties within 
the Members to the UIA Network, all of which will directly or indirectly benefit each of the 
Members. See "THE AGENCY" herein for more detailed information about the Agency, including 
management and financial information. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic network enabling high-speed broadband services, such 
as voice, video and data access. The physical assets of the VIA Network include fiber optic 
lines, transmitters, power sources and backups, switches and access portals. The UIA Network 
operates under an open access model which allows qualified service providers to provide voice, 
video and data services to serve customers within the reach of the UIA Network. See "THE VIA 
NETWORK" herein. 

The operations of the UIA Network are dependent on its connection to, and the continued 
operations of, the fiber optic network (the "UTOPIA Network") of the Utah Telecommunication 
Open Infrastructure Agency ( "UTOPIA "), as the UTOPIA Network provides critical 
infrastructure necessary for the operations of the UIA Network. The VIA Network is connected 
to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement, dated May 1 ,  
201 1 , as amended and supplemented (the "!RU Agreement"), which grants to the Agency an 
indefeasible right of use (the "!RU") that provides the Agency access to certain facilities of and 
capacity in the UTOPIA Network through at least April 30, 2042. The Agency currently has 
only two employees, a Chief Executive Officer and a Secretaryffreasurer, both of whom are also 
UTOPIA employees and have their salaries paid by UTOPIA. The Agency has engaged 
UTOPIA for the management of various services for certain portions of the UIA Network, 
including planning and pre-construction management services to build the VIA Network and 
administration, operations management and service provider management related to the VIA 
Network, all pursuant to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement for Services, dated July 29, 2010, 
as amended and supplemented (the "UTOPIA Service Agreement"). The continued operations 
of the Agency and the VIA Network are heavily reliant on the continued operations of UTOPIA 
and the UTOPIA Network. See "THE NETWORK" and "RISK FACTORS" herein. 

AUTHORITY AND PuRPOSE OF 1HE SERIES 2018  BONDS 

The Series 201 8  Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, the 
General Indenture of Trust, dated as of December l ,  2017 (as previously supplemented, the 
"General Indenture ''), the Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust between the Agency and the 
Trustee, dated as of July 1 ,  201 8  (the "Second Supplemental Indenture " and, together with the 
General Indenture, the "Indenture ''), each between the Agency and ZB, National Association, 
dba Zions Bank, Salt Lake City, Utah, as trustee (the "Trustee "), and an authorizing resolution 
adopted on April 16, 2018  (the "Bond Resolution "), by the Governing Board of the Agency (the 
"Board"). 

Proceeds of the Series 2018  Bonds will be used to (i) finance the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of advance communication lines, equipment and improvements, 
and related improvements and facilities as part of a fiber optic advance communications network 
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(the "2018 Project''), (ii) fund a debt service reserve account for the Series 2018  Bonds and 
(iii) pay costs associated with the issuance of the Series 2018  Bonds. See "PLAN OF FINANCE" 

herein. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Agency believes that much of the current infrastructure and technology utilized by 
the telecommunications industry will need to be replaced in the future with faster and higher 
capacity fiber optic infrastructure to best serve the evolving and growing demands of users. The 
Agency believes that it is well positioned to meet the emerging needs of the industry within its 
service area. 

The UIA Network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video 
and data access. The UIA Network is connected to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the IRU 
Agreement. The UTOPIA Network is an open-access system where UTOPIA designs, builds 
and operates a fiber infrastructure that multiple competing service providers utilize to connect to 
end-customers. The synergy provided by the Agency's partnership with UTOPIA allows both 
organizations to provide citizens a state-of-the-art broadband network. The project is facilitating 
economic development throughout the Agency's (and UTOPIA's) member cities. 

The Agency, working in conjunction with the UTOPIA Network, has established a track 
record of successfully building out fiber infrastructure that brings fast and reliable internet 
service to customers within the boundaries of the Members. Competition among service 
providers within the UIA Network has helped ensure competitively priced internet services and 
excellent customer support. If a specific service provider fails to provide reliable and affordable 
service, the open-access system allows a customer to switch to a new service provider while 
utilizing the same UTOPIA fiber connection. 

As of June 30, 2017, more than 35 residential and business internet service providers 
were actively providing services utilizing the UTOPIA Network and the UIA Network and a 
total of 16,539 homes and businesses had subscribed for services on the combined UTOPIA/UIA 
Networks. Future growth of the UIA Network will be largely demand-based, bringing the 
network first to those areas that will generally bring the best return on investment. The Agency 
continues to make significant progress towards the project's original mission: to build and 
maintain a fiber optic network to service all of the businesses and residents in UTOPIA's 
member cities. As of June 30, 2017, more than 3,266 miles of fiber cable have been placed 
within the boundaries of the 1 1  UTOPIA member cities. Within footprints serviced by 153 hut 
sites, there are approximately 86,946 addresses, of which approximately 71,775 are able to 
receive services of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks. The remaining addresses are located 
in apartment buildings, condominium developments or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole 
access issues. The combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks have together grown to become the 
largest open-access system of its kind in North America and is now available to over 70,000 
addresses throughout the service area. 

Financial results for the Agency for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, were generally 
very positive. Revenues were up $1,366,245, a 17.8% increase from fiscal year 2016. Operating 
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expenses were up $965,092, or 25.7% from 2016, resulting in positive net operating revenues of 
$4,339,392, an increase of 10.2% from 2016. Customers of the Agency increased by 1 ,280, a 
19.4% increase from 2016. Average Recurring Monthly Revenue increased by $125,093, a 
19.6% increase from 2016. See "NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY" herein for a more complete 
discussion. 

For fiscal year 2018, the Agency budgeted for continued increases in revenues and 
operating income based on customer trends and expected margins. The Agency's revenues have 
grown by more than $1,150,000 through the first nine months of fiscal year 2018, an increase of 
16.5%, when compared to the first nine months of fiscal year 2017. Currently, revenues for 
fiscal year 201 8  are tracking approximately 2.6% ahead of the Agency's budget. 

Certain recent trends in the industry should benefit both the near-term success and long­
term viability of UTOPIA and the Agency. Consumer demand in the service area continues to 
outpace available incumbent provider options, which has led to significant customer growth for 
the Agency and UTOPIA. UTOPIA and the Agency are adding customers at the fastest pace in 
their history, with growth coming from all areas where their service is available. Subscriber 
disconnections (known as chum) for UTOPIA (<4% annually) are well below industry averages, 
and the low churn rate has helped to contribute to net growth of customers over time. 
Additionally, based on an independent third-party survey conducted early in 2017  and contracted 
for by UTOPIA, UTOPIA's Net Promoter Score, an industry metric for measuring customer 
satisfaction, was significantly higher than any other known Net Promoter Score for broadband 
options in Utah. 

Further, the industry trend of "cord-cutting," a practice where customers cancel 
traditional cable related services in favor of internet only delivered services, should greatly 
benefit UTOPIA and the Agency. Much of the cable and telecom industries are threatened by 
new internet-delivered services for phone (such as Ooma and Vonage) or video streaming (such 
as Netflix, Hulu, SlingTV and Y ouTube TV) because the cable and telecom providers often 
depend on bundled revenues for profitability. The trend of increased cord-cutting is driving 
consumers to cancel cable TV and phone services in favor of faster internet connections and 
internet delivered services. Because the Agency's and UTOPIA's revenue models are generally 
based on connection revenues and higher speed internet access at competitive rates and are not 
reliant on providing bundled services, the Agency and UTOPIA believe they are well positioned 
to benefit from the cord-cutting trend. 

The result of these industry trends, many of which should provide increased demand for 
broadband services of the type provided by UTOPIA and the Agency, together with improving 
economies of scale for UTOPIA and the Agency related to continued growth, should collectively 
better ensure the long-term viability of UTOPIA and the Agency as they finish the buildout of 
member cities and potentially expand into new cities. 
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CONTACT INFORMATION 

The primary contact person for the Agency concerning the Series 2018 Bonds is: 

GENERAL 

Kirt Sudweeks 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
5858 South 900 East 
Murray, Utah 84121 

(801) 613-3800 
e-mail: ksudweeks@utopiafiber.com 

NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY 

Debt service on the Series 201 8  Bonds is payable, together and on a parity with the 
Agency's outstanding Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2017A, in the aggregate principal amount of $73,905,000 (the "Series 2017A Bonds "), 
and Taxable Telecommunications Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B, in the aggregate 
principal amount of $3,500,000 (the "Series 201 7B Bonds " and, together with the Series 2017A 
Bonds, the "Series 2017 Bonds "), from Net Revenues and from certain other funds pledged 
under the Indenture. Pursuant to the General Indenture, "Net Revenues" means all Revenues 
after payment of all Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

"Revenues" is defined under the General Indenture as all revenues, fees, income, rents, 
sale proceeds and receipts received or earned by the Agency from or attributable to the 
ownership or operation of the UIA Network, including moneys received from the imposition of 
fees and charges to providers and end users and all payments received pursuant to the 
Communications Service Contract, dated as of May 1 ,  201 1 ,  among the Agency and the 
Contracting Members (the "Service Contract''), including any Franchise Tax Revenues, together 
with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of investments in the related funds 
thereof. Revenues do not include gifts or grants received by the Agency. 

"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" is defined under the General Indenture as all 
expenses reasonably incurred by the Agency in connection with the operation and maintenance 
of the UIA Network, whether incurred by the Agency or paid to any other entity, including 
UTOPIA or any Member, pursuant to contract or otherwise, necessary to keep the UIA Network 
in efficient operating condition, including cost of audits required, payment of promotional and 
marketing expenses and real estate brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, 
generally all expenses, exclusive of depreciation (including depreciation related expenses of any 
joint venture) which under generally accepted accounting practices are properly allocable to 
operation and maintenance; provided, however, only such expenses as are reasonably and 
properly necessary to the efficient operation and maintenance of the UIA Network shall be 
included. 
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As described under "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2018  BONDS -

Flow of Funds," Revenues are available to pay debt service on the Series 2017 Bonds and the 
Series 2018  Bonds after the payment of all Operation and Maintenance Expenses. Revenues are 
expected to consist primarily of amounts paid to the Agency from (1) the service providers 
pursuant to each respective non-exclusive network access and use agreement entered into 
between the Agency and the respective service provider (each a "Service Provider Agreement" 
and collectively, the "Service Provider Agreements ''), and (2) the Contracting Members and 
Customers pursuant to the Service Contract. 

SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENTS 

Approximately 71 .66% of the Agency's Revenues for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 
were derived from Service Provider Agreements. Each Service Provider Agreement intends to 
memorialize a relationship between the Agency and the respective qualified service provider 
pursuant to which the Agency builds and operates the UIA Network, and the service provider is 
expected to actively market to potential users and provide high quality services. Pursuant to each 
Service Provider Agreement, the respective service provider pays the Agency to use the UIA 
Network to provide services, on a non-exclusive basis, to end residential and business users 
within the Members' boundaries. The payments to the Agency are paid monthly by the service 
provider, and the amounts are determined pursuant to the prices and fees identified in the 
UTOPIA/UIA Product Catalog. Prices vary based on the products and services provided by such 
service provider, whether the user is a residence or business, connection speed and capacity and 
other variables. Each Service Provider Agreement has an initial term of one year, which 
automatically renews for additional one year terms, unless either party at its sole discretion elects 
not to renew such agreement by providing at least 90 days written notice of termination prior to 
the expiration of the term. 

SERVICE CONTRACT 

General. Approximately l�.89% of the Agency's Revenues for fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, were derived from the Service Contract. Pursuant to the Service Contract, the 
Agency provides advanced telecommunications services via the UIA Network to residents and 
businesses of the Contracting Members in exchange for the Service Fees (defined below). The 
Agency markets to and subsequently facilitates connection to the UIA Network for the residents 
and businesses of each Contracting Member (each, a "Customer" and collectively, the 
"Customers "), and the fees charged by or on behalf of each Contracting Member to its 
Customers for such connections are the "Service Fees." The stated termination date of the 
Service Contract, pursuant to its terms, shall continue in effect until April 1 ,  204 1 .  See 
"APPENDIX E-Service Contract." 

With respect to connection services the Agency provides to each Customer, such 
Customer pays a monthly fee pursuant to one of the following options: 

(1) The Customer makes a monthly payment for a contractual utility enhancement 
( "CUE"), the same being the connection of the VIA Network to its residence or business, for a 
term of I 0 or 20 years. Upon full payment at the end of the term, such residence or business will 
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never need to pay additional connection or access fees related to the UIA Network. The Member 
passes through to the Agency 95% of the amounts payable under the CUE agreements and 
retains the remaining 5%; or 

(2) The Customer pays a monthly fee to access a connection to the UIA Network 
pursuant to a lease agreement (the "Lease Agreement"). The Customer pays the fee for as long 
as it desires such connection. The Agency bills the Customer on behalf of the Member and 
receives 100% of the receipts pursuant to such Lease Agreement. 

Operation of the Service Contract. If the Service Fees are not sufficient to meet the UIA 
Revenue Requirement (w�ich is the sum of Operation and Maintenance Expenses and Capital 
Costs, including debt service on the Bonds) under the Service Contract, each Contracting 
Member is obligated, if requested by the Agency, to remit to the Agency a portion of its 
Franchise Tax Revenues to fund the difference between the UIA Revenue Requirement and the 
Service Fees (the "Revenue Difference "). The obligation of each Contracting Member to remit a 
portion of its Franchise Tax Revenues (its "Franchise Tax Obligation") is limited to a percentage 
of the Revenue Difference and to a maximum annual amount. For a list of the Contracting 
Members and their respective Franchise Tax Obligations, see "FRANCHISE TAX OBLIGATION" 

below. Each Contracting Member is required to meet its Franchise Tax Obligation to the extent 
necessary to cover its applicable portion of the Revenue Difference, regardless of the amount of 
Service Fees it pays to the Agency. Under the Service Contract, the Agency is required to repay 
any Franchise Tax Obligation payment made by a Contracting Member. Such repayment would 
be made on a subordinate basis to payment of any debt service on the Series 2018  Bonds. See 
"SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR 1HE SERIES 201 8  BONDS - Flow of Funds." Since 
inception of the Agency, Franchise Tax Obligations have not been requested or required by the 
Agency to meet its obligations. 

A Contracting Member's other obligations payable from its Franchise Tax Revenues (the 
"City Debt") are required to be payable on a parity with or subordinate to its Franchise Tax 
Obligation, except for obligations that existed at the time of the execution of the Service Contract 
or future City Debt issued on a parity with obligations that existed at the time of execution of the 
Service Contract. See "CONTRACTING MEMBERS" for a description of City Debt. 

Payment obligations of Contracting Members under the Service Contract are not joint and 
several obligations, and no Contracting Member is obligated to satisfy the Franchise Tax 
Obligation of any other Contracting Member. Further, such payment obligations are not general 
obligations of the Contracting Members and are payable solely from the Service Fees and the 
Franchise Tax Obligations. Moreover, the Contracting Members have agreed to make all 
payments under the Service Contract, including Franchise Tax Obligation payments, whether or 
not the UIA Network or any portion thereof is acquired, completed, operable or operating. In any 
such scenario, the Franchise Tax Obligations may become the primary source of funds to meet 
the UJA Revenue Requirement. The obligations of the Contracting Members to pay the Service 
Fees to UIA are irrevocable, absolute and unconditional and are not subject to any reduction, 
whether by defense, recoupment, counterclaim or offset or otherwise. 
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FRANCJilSE TAX OBLIGATION 

Franchise Tax Revenues are included as a component of Revenues under the General 
Indenture. The Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member is limited to a maximum 
annual amount specific to each Contracting Member. Set forth below is a list of the Contracting 
Members, the allocated percentages of any Revenue Difference and the respective maximum 
Franchise Tax Obligations. 

CONTRACTING PERCENTAGE OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL 
MEMBER REVENUE DIFFERENCE FRANCJilSE TAX OBLIGATION 

Brigham City 0.62% $ 31 ,83 1 
Centerville City 3.63% 1 86,737 
Layton City 18.20% 937,272 
Lindon City 3.35% 1 72,5 16 
Midvale City 6.60% 339,988 
Murray City 13 .40% 690,241 
City of Orem 23.76% 1 ,223,786 
West Valley City 30.44% 1.568.781 

Total 100.00% $5.151.152 

The Franchise Tax Revenues pledged under the Service Contract by the Contracting 
Members represent a portion of those revenues received from the levy of the Municipal Energy 
Sales and Use Tax (defined below). 

The Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax Act of the State, Title 10, Chapter 1 ,  Part 3 
Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, provides that a municipality may levy a municipal 
energy sales and use tax (the "Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax ") on the sale or use of gas 
and electricity within the municipality, including sales by the municipality, for the purpose . of 
raising revenue and to create a more competitive environment for the energy industry in 
accordance with the limitations and provisions set forth in the Municipal Energy Sales and Use 
Tax Act. The municipality may levy a Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax at a rate not to 
exceed 6% of the delivered value of the taxable energy. All of the Contracting Members 
currently levy the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax at the maximum rate of 6%. 

The Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax is imposed on the "delivered value" of taxable 
energy provided within the Contracting Member. "Delivered value " refers to the fair market 
value of the taxable energy and includes the value of the energy itself and any transportation, 
freight, customer demand charges, service charges or other costs typically incurred in providing 
taxable energy in usable form to customers within the Contracting Member. Each Contracting 
Member has either contracted with the Utah State Tax Commission to perform all functions 
incident to the collection and administration of the revenues derived from the levy of the 
Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax, or if the municipality operates its own utility, collects the 
revenues as part of the utility bill that it sends to its customers. Each Contracting Member 
receives such revenues on a monthly basis. 
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REVENUE AND EXPENSE DETAILS 

The following table sets forth a break.down of the sources of the Revenues of the Agency 
by type of Customer. The Revenues shown in this table do not include Franchise Tax 
Obligations in the annual aggregate amount of $5, 151 , 152, which have not been requested or 
required to meet the obligations of the Agency since its inception. 

FY FY FY FY FY FY 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Residential $ 4,222,700 $3,158,626 $2,590,554 $2,024,352 $1,953,296 $2, 181,883 
Business 5,700,000 5,099,823 4,320,214 3,426,470 1,917,818 1,068,604 
Installation 100,000 167,615 176,741 410,402(2) 230,916 173,979 
MiscellaneousC1> 700.000 629.496 601.806 466.1 16 220.912 15.994 

Total $10,772,700 $9,055,560 $7,689,315  $6,327,340 $4,322,942 $3,440,460 

Source: The Agency, based on audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended JlUle 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017, and the Amended 
Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 
(1) Miscellaneous sources of Revenues include fees and charges paid by the service providers to connect and interface with the UIA Network, 

bandwidth fees and charges paid by certain service providers, repair charges paid by Customers and miscellaneous other charges paid by the 
service providers for services provided by the Agency. 

(2) Increase in installation fees for FY 2015 was due to one-time, up-front installation tees paid by one service provider for expansion to 
particular business customers beyond the UIA Network. 

The following table sets forth a break.down of the Revenues of the Agency by contractual 
relationship: 

FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 

Service Contract 
(Lease Agreements) $1,680,000 15.6% $1,312,274 13.9% $ 940,608 12.2% $ 702,769 1 1.1% 

Service Contract 
(CUE agreements) 592,499 5.5% 563,978 6.0% 519,787 6.8% 418,315 6.6% 

Service Provider 
Agreements 7,649,660 71.0% 6,382,197 71.7% S,450,373 70.9% 4,329,738 68.4% 

Installation 100,000 0.9% 167,615 1.8% 176,741 2.3% 410,402 6.5% 

Miscellaneous<1> 750,000 7.0% 629.496 6.7% 601.806 7.8% 466,1 16 7.4% 

Total $10,772,700 100.0% $9,055,560 100.0% $7,689,315 100.0% $6,327,340 100.0% 

Amounts are rounded. 
Source: The Agency, based on audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2017, and the Amended 
Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 
(1) Miscellaneous sources of Revenues include fees and charges paid by the service providers to connect and interface with the UIA Network, 

bandwidth fees and charges paid by certain service providers, repair charges paid by Customers and miscellaneous other charges paid by the 
service providers for services provided by the Agency. 

· 

The following table sets forth a break.down of the operating expenses of the Agency. The 
Agency's operating expenses primarily consist of the monthly fees it pays to UTOPIA pursuant 
to the UTOPIA Service Agreement. Such fees may be adjusted by the Agency and UTOPIA 
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from time to time as the UIA Network grows and the costs incurred by UTOPIA to operate the 
UIA Network pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement, including, for example, personnel 
and maintenance costs, increase. See "The Network - Intersection of UIA Network and Utopia 
Network" herein for a further discussion of the UTOPIA Service Agreement. 

FY 2018  FY 2017  FY 2016 FY 201 5  FY 2014 FY 2013 

Marketing costs $ 5 19,600 $ 323,884 $ 23 1 ,039 $ 86,013 $ 85,778 $ 161 ,626 
Professional 

services 25,200 138,352 97,680 78,238 65,765 41 ,484 
Network 

maintenance 1,399,224 704,047 420,302 364,212 321,543 255,417  
Depreciation 4,800,000 3.549.885 3,002.055 2,653,388 2,251.384 1.716.158 

Total $6,744,024 $4,716, 168 $3,751,076 $3, 181 ,85 1 $2,724,470 $2,174,685 

Source The Agency, based on audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017, and the Amended 
Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 

CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION 

As measured by Revenues generated per Customer, the Agency does not have a 
concentration of end users. No single Customer provides more than 5% of Recurring Monthly 
Revenue (defined below), and the 10 largest Customers provide less than 10% of Recurring 
Monthly Revenue. The following chart provides a breakdown of residential and business 
Customers and the Recurring Monthly Revenue: 

Through 
April, 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Residential Customers 7,689 6,195 5,190 4,389 3,875 3,193 
Business Customers 1.871 1.690 1.415 1.225 919 529 

Total Customers 9,560 7,885 6,605 5,614 4,794 3,722 
Average Recurring 
Monthly Revenue(!) $876,274 $761,768 $636,675 $510,990 $341,157 $207,805 

Source: The Agency. 
(1) "Recurring Monthly Revenue" is revenue derived from Service Fees and other recurring operating revenues and excludes one-time fees. 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2018 BONDS 

PLEDGE OF THE INDENTURE 

The Series 2018  Bonds constitute one of three series of Bonds issued pursuant to the 
Indenture as special limited obligations of the Agency, secured equally and ratably by and 
payable exclusively from the Net Revenues of the Agency and certain other funds and accounts 
pledged under the Indenture. Payments on the Series 2018  Bonds will be made on a parity with 

-10-



the payments on the Agency's Series 2017  Bonds and any Additional Bonds that may be issued 
in the future pursuant to the Indenture. 

The Bonds are not a general obligation of the Agency, any Member, the State or any 
agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof. Neither the faith and credit nor the ad 
valorem taxing power of any Member, the State or any agency, instrumentality or political 
subdivision thereof is assigned or pledged for payment of the Bonds. The Agency will not 
mortgage or grant a security interest in the physical assets of the UIA Network to secure payment 
of the Bonds. The Agency has no taxing power. 

To secure the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, the Agency 
has pledged and assigned to the Trustee the Net Revenues and certain other funds and accounts 
established by the Indenture. 

FUNDS AND AccmJNTS 

The following funds and accounts are created under the Indenture: 

(i) Revenue Fund, held by the Agency 

(ii) Construction Fund, held by the Trustee 

(iii) Bond Fund, including the Sinking Fund Account, held by the Trustee 

(iv) Debt Service Reserve Fund, held by the Trustee 

(v) Reserve Instrument Fund, held by the Trustee 

(vi) Repair and Replacement Fund, held by the Agency 

(vii) Rebate Fund, held by the Trustee 

Additionally, the Agency may authorize the creation of additional funds and accounts in a 
Supplemental Indenture. 

FLOW OF FUNDS 

The General Indenture provides that: 

(a) All Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and accounted for by the 
Agency separate and apart from all other moneys of the Agency. 

(b) As a first charge and lien on the Revenues, the Agency will cause to be paid from 
the Revenue Fund from time to time as the Agency will determine, all Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses of the Agency as the same become due and payable, and thereupon such 
expenses will be promptly paid. 
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( c) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a second charge and lien on the Revenues, 
i.e. from Net Revenues, the Agency will, on or before the 1 5th Business Day of each month, 
transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal 
to: 

(i) one sixth (116) of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next 
succeeding Interest Payment Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so 
long as there are moneys representing capitalized interest on deposit with the Trustee to 
pay interest on the Bonds next coming due, the Agency need not allocate from the 
Revenue Fund to pay interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one twelfth (1/12) of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 

(iii) one twelfth (1/12) the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding Sinking Fund Installment payment date; 

(iv) the sum of which will be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in 
the Bond Fund, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
promptly on each such Interest Payment Date as the same become due and payable. The 
foregoing provisions may be revised by a Supplemental Indenture for any Series of 
Bonds having other than semi-annual Interest Payment Dates. 

( d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis), the Agency will 
make the following transfers to the Trustee on or before the 1 5th day of each month of each year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded 
with a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund any amounts required by the Supplemental Indenture to accumulate therein 
the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to each Series of Bonds at 
the times and in the amounts provided in the Indenture and (B) if funds will have been 
withdrawn from an account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund is at any time funded in an amount less than the applicable Debt 
Service Reserve Requirement, the Agency will deposit Revenues in such account(s) in 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund sufficient in amount to restore such account(s) within one 
year with twelve (12) substantially equal payments during such period (unless otherwise 
provided for by the Supplemental Indenture governing the applicable Debt Service 
Reserve Requirement); or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred 
pursuant to the General Indenture) of remaining Revenues if less than the amount 
necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with 
respect to all Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in 
effect after the end of such month, such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable 
portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the General Indenture) of the 
amount so remaining if less than the amount necessary, that is required to be paid, on or 
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before the next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument 
Fund, to the Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, 
other than Reserve Instrument Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage 
to equal the Reserve Instrument Limit within one year from any draw date under the 
Reserve Instrument. 

( e} As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, the Agency will deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund any amount required by the Indenture to accumulate therein the Repair 
and Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the event that the amount on deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund will ever be less than the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement 
for the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the issuance of Additional Bonds, the amount required 
to be on deposit therein}, from time to time, the Agency will deposit to the Repair and 
Replacement Fund from the Revenue Fund all remaining Revenues of the UIA Network after 
payments required under the General Indenture have been made until there is on deposit in the 
Repair and Replacement Fund an amount equal to the Repair and Replacement Reserve 
Requirement. Subject to the provisions of the General Indenture, this provision is not intended 
to limit, and will not limit, the right of the Agency to deposit additional moneys in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund from time to time as the Agency may determine. 

The Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement at the time of issuance of the 
Series 2018 Bonds is $0. 

(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, the Agency may use the balance of the 
Revenues accounted for in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: 

(i) redemption of Bonds; 

(ii) refinancing, refunding or advance refunding of any Bonds 

(iii) any amounts owed by the Agency to any Contracting Member under the 
Service Contract; or 

(iv) for any other lawful purpose, including any intergovernmental transfers, 
including but not limited to transfers to UTOPIA. 

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOlJNTS 

The General Indenture establishes a Debt Service Reserve Fund, held by the Trustee. 
Each Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds will specify if a Debt 
Service Reserve Account will be established for such Series and the Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement, as applicable. The Debt Service Reserve Requirement will be deposited: 

(a) immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series of Bonds from 
(i) proceeds from the sale thereof or from any other legally available source, (ii) by a 
Reserve Instrument or Instruments, or (iii) any combination thereof; 
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(b) from available Net Revenues over the period of time specified therein; or 

(c) from any combination of (a) and (b) above; provided however, the 
foregoing provisions will be subject to the requirements of any Security Instrument Issuer 
set forth in the related Supplemental Indenture. 

In calculating the amount on deposit in each account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, 
the amount of any Reserve Instrument Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit in such 
account. If at any time the amount on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
is less than the minimum amount to be maintained, the Trustee is required to act in accordance 
with the provisions of the General Indenture to cure the deficiency. Moneys on deposit in any 
account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be used to make up any deficiencies in the Bond 
Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account, and any Reserve Instrument will only 
be drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for which such Reserve Instrument was 
obtained. For more information about the operation and use of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, 
see "APPENDIX B-Extracts of Certain Provisions of the Indenture." 

The Agency will fund a Series 201 8  Debt Service Reserve Account as established 
pursuant to the Indenture. The Series 201 8  Debt Service Reserve Requirement is $1 ,678,940.63, 
which will be funded by proceeds of the Series 201 8  Bonds. The Series 2018 Debt Service 
Reserve Account is generally sized as the least of (i) 10% of the par amount of the Series 2018  
Bonds, (ii) the maximum annual debt service for such Series of Bonds or (iii) 125% of the 
average annual debt service for the Series 201 8  Bonds, calculated as of the date of issuance of 
the Series 2018  Bonds and to be maintained until all Series 2018  Bonds are no longer 
outstanding. 

ADDITIONAL BONDS; SERIES 201 8 BONDS 

The Agency may not issue additional indebtedness, bonds or notes payable from Net 
Revenues or any portion thereof on a priority basis senior to the Bonds or the Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations. The Agency may issue Additional Bonds and other parity 
obligations ifthe following requirements have been met: 

(a) (i) A certificate, based upon the most recent audited financial statements of the 
Agency or a report prepared by the Agency's auditor, will be delivered to the Trustee by an 
Authorized Representative to the effect that the sum of the Net Revenues and any Available 
Franchise Tax Revenues for any Year within the 24 months immediately preceding the issuance 
of the Additional Bonds was at least 150% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service for 
any Bond Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of such 
Additional Bonds; or 

(ii) An Authorized Representative will have delivered to the Trustee a certificate from 
a Qualified Consultant: 

(1) setting forth projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues and the 
Estimated Net Revenues as herein described (assuming, if applicable, the completion of 
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any contemplated additions, improvements, extensions, replacements or repairs to the 
UIA Network (collectively, the "Improvements ")) either: 

i. for each of the two Bond Fund Years succeeding the latest 
estimated date of completion of the Improvements, if proceeds of the Additional 
Bonds are used to fund interest during the construction period; or 

ii. if i. is not the case, for the then current Bond Fund Year and the 
next succeeding Bond Fund Year; and 

(2) verifying that the sum of the projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues 
and the Estimated Net Revenues as shown in (1) above for each Bond Fund Year during 
which Bonds are Outstanding is not less than 150% of the maximum annual debt service 
requirement for each of such Bond Fund Years with respect to all of the Bonds which 
would then be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds so proposed to be 
issued. 

For purposes of this subsection (ii) "Estimated Net Revenues'' will be determined 
by the Qualified Consultant as follows: 

(A) The Net Revenues for any Year in the 24 months immediately 
preceding the delivery of the Additional Bonds shall first be determined. Net 
Revenues may be adjusted to give full effect to rate increases implemented prior 
to the issuance of the Additional Bonds. 

(B) Next, the additional Net Revenues, if any, resulting from the 
Improvements financed with proceeds of the Additional Bonds will be estimated 
by the Qualified Consultant for the applicable Bond Fund Years as determined in 
(ii)(l)i or ii above. 

(C) The Estimated Net Revenues will be the sum of the Net Revenues 
as calculated in (A) above, plus 75% of the estimated additional Net Revenues as 
calculated in (B) above. 

(b) All payments required by the General Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund 
must have been made in full, and there must be in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the full amount 
required by the General Indenture to be accumulated at such time, taking into account any 
Reserve Instrument Coverage. 

(c) The coverage test set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above will not apply to the issuance 
of any Additional Bonds to the extent such Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds 
issued hereunder, and the Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for such Additional Bonds 
does not exceed the then remaining Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for the Bonds being 
refunded therewith. 

(d) All Repayment Obligations then due and owing will have been paid. 
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( e) All payments required by the General Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund 
must have been made in full, and there must be on deposit in each account in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund (taking into account any Reserve Instrument Coverage) the full amount required 
by the General Indenture to be accumulated therein. 

(f) The proceeds of the Additional Bonds, less costs ot" issuance and funding of 
reserves, must be used in connection with (i) the refunding of Bonds issued hereunder or any 
borrowing of the Agency, (ii) the financing of a Project or (iii) any other lawful purpose. 

(g) No Event of Default is existing under the General Indenture on the date of 
authentication of such Additional Bonds, unless (i) the Security Instrument Issuers, Reserve 
Instrument Issuers and Owners of all Outstanding Bonds (subject to the consent authorized by 
the General Indenture) have each consented to the issuance of such Additional Bonds or (ii) upon 
the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof, all such 
Events of Default will be cured. 

Pursuant to the foregoing, the sum of the Net Revenues ($7,889,277) and Available 
Franchise Tax Revenues ($5,151 , 152) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, will be at least 
150% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service for any Bond Fund Year on all of the 
Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of the Series 2018  Bonds. The debt service 
coverage using such amounts ranges from a minimum of l .74x in Bond Fund Years 2020 and 
2021 to a maximum of l .83x in Bond Fund Year 2019. 

OUTSTANDING PARITY BONDS 

The Agency has previously issued the Series 2017 Bonds, which are currently 
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $77,405,000. The Series 201 8  Bonds are 
secured by the Net Revenues on a parity with the Series 2017  Bonds. 
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DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 

PLUS: DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE 
UIA FRANCHISE TOTAL ON THE ON THE 

FISCAL NETWORK TAX AVAILABLE LF.ss: O&M SERIES 2017 SERIF.s 2018 DEBT SERVICE 
YEAR REvENlJEs(l) REvENuES<2> REVENUES ExPENsF.S<3l NET R.EvENuF.s BONDS BONDS COVERAG�4XS) 

2018 $10,772,700 $5,151,152 $15,823,852 $2,091,224 $13,832,628 $1,172,824 $ 0 6.77x 
2019 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 6,237,125 867,543 2.13x 
2020 12,713,100 5, 151 ,  152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,781,575 1,676,088 2.03x 
2021 12,713,100 5, 151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,775,125 1,677,838 2.03x 
2022 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,751,600 1,678,088 2.03x 
2023 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,752,400 1 ,676,838 2.03x 
2024 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,743,125 1,674,088 2.04x 
2025 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,533,750 1,674,713 2.lOx 
2026 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,528,750 1,678,463 2.lOx 
2027 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,527,500 1,675,338 2.lOx 
2028 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,529,500 1,675,338 2.lOx 
2029 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,524,500 1,678,213 2.lOx 
2030 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,522,250 1,677,700 2.lOx 
2031 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,517,375 1,678,613 2.lOx 
2032 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,504,750 1,676,900 2.lOx 
2033 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,508,750 1,677,431 2.lOx 
2034 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,503,750 1,675,075 2.l lx 
2035 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,494,625 1,673,963 2.llx 
2036 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 _J�.H�.182 __ 5,490,875 1 ,678,656 2.l lx 
2037 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,486,875 1,674,722 2.l lx 
2038 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,471,250 1,677,025 2.l lx 
2039 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,476,375 1,675,297 2.l lx 
2040 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,473,500 1,674,403 2.1 lx 
2041 12,713,100 5,151,152 17,864,252 2,716,070 15,148,182 5,463,250 1,678,941 2.12x 

Source: The Agency md the Municipal Advisor. Amounts are rounded_ 
(I) Projected based on the Agency's Amended Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, and Budget fur the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Does not include Available Franchise Tax 

Revenues_ 
(2) Pledged by the Contracting Members pursuant to the Service Contract. 
(3) Excludes depreciation. The Agency's Operation and Maintenance Expenses primarily consist of the monthly fees it pays to UTOPIA pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement. Projectl!d 

Operation and Maintenance Expemes arc based on the Agency's Amended Budget fur the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, and Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 
(4) Net Revenues divided by Debt Service on the Series 2017 Bonds and the Series 2018 Bonds. 
(5) Coverage shown is based on different assumptions than those used to evidence compliance with the Additional Bonds test under the Indenture. See "Sl!CURJTY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 

SERIES 2018 BONDS-Additional Bonds; Series 2018 Bonds." 
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THE SERIES 2018 BONDS 

GENERAL 

The Series 201 8  Bonds will be dated the date of issuance thereof, will be in fully 
registered form, without coupons, and will be in denominations of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof under a book-entry only system operated by The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York ( "DTC"). Principal of and interest on the Series 201 8  Bonds wiJI be 
payable by the Trustee, acting as paying agent. 

The Series 20 1 8  Bonds will mature as shown on the inside cover page hereof. Interest on 
the Series 20 1 8  Bonds will be payable each April 1 5  and October 1 5 ,  beginning October 15, 
201 8. The Series 201 8  Bonds will bear interest from their dated date, or from the most recent 
interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for, computed on the basis of a 
360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Principal of and the interest on the Series 20 1 8  Bonds will be payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America. Payment of the interest on any Series 201 8  Bond will be made to 
the person appearing on the Register (as hereinafter defined) of the Registrar as provided in the 
Indenture as the Registered Owner thereof by check or draft mailed on the Interest Payment Date 
to the Registered Owner at his or her address as it appears on such registration books or to 
owners of $ 1 ,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Series 201 8  Bonds (or owners of 
1 00% of any Series then Outstanding) by wire transfer to a bank account designated by the 
Registered Owner in written instructions furnished to the Trustee no later than the Regular 
Record Date for such payment. The interest on the Series 20 1 8  Bonds so payable, and 
punctually paid and duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will be paid to the person 
who is the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for 
such interest immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so 
punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner of 
any Series 201 8 Bond on such Regular Record Date, and may be paid to the person who is the 
Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of 
such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice thereof to be given to such Registered 
Owner not less than ten (10) days prior to such Special Record Date. The principal of and 
premium, if any, on Series 201 8  Bonds are payable upon presentation and surrender thereof at 
the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee. All such payments will be valid and effectual 
to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 201 8  Bond to the extent of the sum or sums 
so paid. 

REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 

The Agency will cause books for the registration or transfer of the Bonds (the 
"Register") to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee and appoints the 
Trustee to act as its registrar and transfer agent to keep the Register and to make such registration 
and transfers. Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of 
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the Trustee, the Agency will execute, and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver in the name of 
the transferee or transferees, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denomination for the aggregate 
principal amount which the registered Owner is entitled to receive. Bonds of authorized 
denominations may be exchanged for Bonds of other authorized denominations of the same 
maturity, series and interest rate upon request of the Owner thereof. 

All Bonds presented for transfer, exchange, or payment will be accompanied by a written 
instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in form and with guaranty of 
signature reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the registered Owner or by his 
or her duly authorized attorney. 

New Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange will be valid obligations of the 
Agency, evidencing the same debt as the Bonds surrendered, will be secured by and entitled to 
all of the security and benefits of the Indenture to the same extent as the Bonds surrendered. No 
service charge will be made for any exchange, transfer, or registration of Bonds, but the Agency 
may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may 
be imposed in relation thereto. The Agency and the Trustee will not be required to transfer or 
exchange any Bond (a) during the period from and including any Regular Record Date, to and 
including the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, (b) during the period from and including 
the day fifteen days prior to any Special Record Date, to and including the date of the proposed 
payment pertaining thereto, ( c) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to 
the mailing of notice calling any Bonds for redemption, to and including the date of such 
mailing, or { d) at any time following the mailing of notice calling such Bond for redemption. 

REDEMPTION 

Optional Redemption. The Series 201 8  Bonds maturing on or after October 15, 2028, are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Agency in whole or in part on any 
date on or after October 15, 2027, in such order of maturity as may be designated by the Agency, 
at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed plus 
accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2018 Bonds maturing on October 15 
of the years 2025, 2028, 2033 and 2040 are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, by lot 
in such manner as the Trustee may determine, at a price equal to one hundred percent {100%) of 
the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the 
principal amounts as follows: 

FOR TIIE SERIES 201 8  BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 15, 2025 

YEAR 

2024 
2025 
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PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$705,000 
745,000 (stated maturity) 



FOR THE SERIES 201 8  BONDS MATURING ON OCTOBER 1 5, 2028 

YEAR 

2026 
2027 
2028 

PRINCIPAL .AMOUNT 

$780,000 
820,000 
865,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR THE SERIES 2018 BONDS MATUR1NG ON 0CTOBER 15,  2033 

YEAR 

2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$ 910,000 
960,000 

1 ,010,000 
1 ,065,000 
1 , 120,000 (stated maturity) 

FOR THE SERIES 2018  BONDS MA TURING ON OCTOBER 15,  2040 

YEAR 

2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$1,1 80,000 
1 ,250,000 
1 ,315,000 
1 ,390,000 
1 ,465,000 
1 ,545,000 
1 ,635,000 (stated maturity) 

If fewer than all of the Series 2018  Bonds maturing on October 15 ,  2025, 2028, 2033 and 
2040 are redeemed in a manner other than pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund redemption, the 
principal amount so redeemed will be credited at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount thereof by the Trustee against the obligation of the Agency on future mandatory sinking 
fund redemption dates for the Series 201 8  Bonds maturing on October 15 ,  2025, 2028, 2033 and 
2040, respectively, in such order as directed by the Agency. 

SELECTION OF SERIES 2018  BONDS FOR REDEMPTION 

If less than all of the Series 2018  Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the particular 
Series 201 8  Bonds or portion of the Series 2018 Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed will be 
selected by the Trustee by lot, in such manner as the Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and 
appropriate. The portion of any registered Series 2018  Bond of a denomination of more than 
$5,000 to be redeemed will be in the principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof (the 
"Minimum Denomination ''), and in selecting portions of such Series 2018 Bonds for redemption 
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the Trustee will treat each such Series 2018  Bond as representing that number of Series 201 8  
Bonds of the Minimum Denomination that is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 
Series 2018 Bonds by the Minimum Denomination. 

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION; EFFECT OF REDEMPTION 

Notice of Redemption. In the event any of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar 
will cause notice to be given as provided in the Indenture. Notice of such redemption (i) will be 
filed with the Paying Agent designated for the Bonds being redeemed; and (ii) will be mailed by 
first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Registered Owners of Bonds to be redeemed at their 
addresses as they appear on the registration hooks of the Registrar at least thirty days but not 
more than sixty days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Such notice will include, among 
other information specified by the Indenture, the following: (i) the complete official name of the 
Bonds; (ii) in the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts 
thereof to be redeemed; (iii) the date of mailing of redemption notices and the redemption date; 
and (iv) the redemption price. 

In addition to the foregoing, further notice of any redemption of Bonds under the 
Indenture will be given by the Trustee, simultaneously with the mailed notice to Registered 
Owners, by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery service to the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB "), and all registered securities depositories (as reasonably 
determined by the Trustee) then in the business of holding substantial amounts of obligations of 
types comprising the Bonds. Such further notice will contain the information required for a 
notice of redemption under the Indenture. Failure to give all or any portion of such further notice 
will not in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption. Upon the payment of 
the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for 
such purpose will bear the CUSIP number, if any, identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds 
being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

If at the time of mailing of any notice of optional redemption there will not be on deposit 
with the Trustee moneys sufficient to redeem all the Bonds called for redemption, such notice 
will state that such redemption will be conditioned upon receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the 
date fixed for such redemption of moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such 
Bonds to be redeemed and that if such moneys will not have been so received said notice will be 
of no force and effect and the Agency will not be required to redeem such Bonds. In the event 
that such moneys are not so received, the redemption will not be made and the Trustee will 
within a reasonable time thereafter give notice, one time, in the same manner in which the notice 
of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so received. 

A second notice of redemption will be given, not later than ninety days subsequent to the 
redemption date, to Registered Owners of Bonds or portions thereof redeemed but who failed to 
deliver Bonds for redemption prior to the 60th day following such redemption date. 

Any notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not 
the owner of such Bonds receives the notice. Receipt of such notice will not be a condition 
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precedent to such redemption, and failure to receive any such notice by any of such Registered 
Owners will not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds. 

In case any Bond is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption which relates to 
such Bond will state also that on or after the redemption date, upon surrender of such Bond, a 
new Bond in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such Bond will be issued. 

Partial Redemption. In case any registered Bond will be redeemed in part only, upon the 
presentation of such Bond for such partial redemption, the Agency will execute and the Trustee 
will authenticate and will deliver or cause to be delivered to or upon the written order of the 
Registered Owner thereof, at the expense of the Agency, a Bond or Bonds of the same Series, 
interest rate and maturity, in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of such 
registered Bond. Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, a portion of any Bond 
of a denomination of more than the minimum denomination of such Series specified in the 
Indenture or in the related Supplemental Indenture to be redeemed will be in the principal 
amount of such minimum denomination or an integral multiple thereof and in selecting portions 
of such Bonds for redemption, the Trustee will treat each such Bond as representing that number 
of Bonds of such minimum denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of 
such Bonds by such minimum denomination. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

THE 2018 PROJECT 

The 2018  Project consists of the acquisition, construction, and installation of advance 
communication lines, equipment and improvements, and related improvements and facilities as 
part of a fiber optic advance communications network. The 2018  Project includes the 
construction of "last mile" or access-level fiber in defined footprints, lateral infrastructure to 
commercially zoned areas, "curb to the premises" construction and connection to the UIA 
Network and/or UTOPIA Network where available. The majority of the 2018  Project will be 
undertaken throughout the boundaries of the Contracting Members; provided, however, that 
approximately 10% of the Series 2018  Bond proceeds will be used to expand UIA Network 
services to the Utah Education Network, a broadband and digital broadcast network serving 
public education, higher education, applied technology campuses, libraries and public charter 
schools throughout the State. 
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SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The sources and uses of proceeds of the Series 201 8  Bonds are shown below: 

SOURCES 
Principal Amount 
Original Issue Premium 

Total Sources 

USES 
Deposit to Series 2018 Construction 

Account 
Deposit to Series 201 8  Debt Service 

Reserve Account 
Costs oflssuance<1) 

Total Uses 

(1) Including undcrv.titcr's discount and other costs of issuance. 

THE AGENCY 

GENERAL 

$21,810,000.00 
2.323.343.00 

$24.133.343.00 

$22,000,000.00 

1 ,678,940.63 
454.402.37 

$24. 133.343.00 

Creation and Purpose. The Agency is a separate legal entity, body politic and corporate, 
and a political subdivision of the State regularly created, established, organized and existing 
under and by virtue of the provisions of the Interlocal Agreement, the Interlocal Cooperation Act 
and the State constitution. The Members include the following Utah municipalities: Brigham 
City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, 
Payson City and West Valley City. A map showing the location of the Members is provided on 
page ii of this Official Statement. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the lnterlocal Cooperation Act, cities may exercise and 
enjoy jointly with other cities any power, privileges or authority exercised or capable of being 
exercised by a city. State law permits municipalities to purchase, lease, construct or equip 
communications facilities that are designed to provide services within the municipality, and that 
the municipality uses for internal municipal government purposes, or by written contract, leases, 
sells capacity in or grants other similar rights to a private provider to use the facilities in 
connection with a private provider offering cable television services or public 
telecommunications services. The lnterlocal Cooperation Act permits cities to make the most 
efficient use of their power by enabling them to cooperate with other cities on the basis of mutual 
advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and under forms of 
governmental organization that will accord best with geographic, economic, population and other 
factors influencing the needs of development of local communities and will provide the benefit 
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of economy of scale, economic development and utilization of natural resources for the overalJ 
promotion of the general welfare of the State. 

Corporate and Statutory Powers. Pursuant to the lnterlocal Cooperation Act and the 
Interlocal Agreement, the Agency has the power to: (i) issue bonds, and construct, lease, operate 
(or cause the same to occur) and own the UIA Network; (ii) enter into contracts with suppliers, 
contractors, providers and others to facilitate the accomplishment of the purposes listed in (i); 
(iii) undertake such actions as are necessary or advisable to effectuate its general purpose; 
(iv) enter into contracts, bond, construct and undertake actions to effectuate such purposes, 
which may be done in series or phases, as determined by the Board; (v) upgrade and expand the 
UIA Network as new development occurs within the boundaries of the Member cities and as 
other municipalities join the Agency; and (vi) engage in such other lawful activity in which an 
interlocal cooperative may become involved and conduct any and all transactions and activities 
related thereto. 

Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement, by a two-thirds vote of the Members as determined 
pursuant to the formula set forth in such Agreement, a formula is to be adopted to equitably 
distribute the Excess Revenues (as described below) to Members. The specific timing, method, 
and interpretation of the sharing formula is to be determined by a two-thirds vote of the 
Members. The formula will attempt to calculate the Excess Revenues attributable to each 
Member. Until construction of the UIA Network is substantially completed within the 
boundaries of all Members, the Interlocal Agreement currently provides that there will be no 
distribution of Excess Revenues to the Members, and all Excess Revenues will be used to build 
out the UIA Network within the Members' boundaries as determined by a two-thirds vote of the 
Members according to the weighted voting of the Members set forth in the Interlocal Agreement. 

Discretionary Revenues is determined under the Interlocal Agreement to mean any 
remaining revenues after payment of all operation and maintenance expenses, all debt service 
payments with respect to bonds of the Agency, and all funding requirements for those funds and 
accounts as well as use of funds established with respect to the issuance of bonds of the Agency 
( "Discretionary Revenues ''). After payment of such items, Discretionary Revenues may be used 
to pay costs of construction of the UIA Network, and costs of redeeming bonds of the Agency, all 
at the discretion of the Board. Any remaining revenues ( "Excess Revenues '') may be paid to 
Members pursuant to a formula determined by the Board, subject to the limitations described in 
the immediately preceding paragraph. 

The lnterlocal Agreement, including the provisions providing for distribution of Excess 
Revenues to the Members, is subject to amendment by the written approval of two-thirds of all 
Members. 

Organization. The Agency is governed by a nine-member governing board (the 
"Board"), consisting of representatives appointed from each of the Members. The present Board 
members are as follows: 
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NAME CITY BOARD ROLE 

Alex Jensen Layton City Chair 
Jason Roberts Brigham City First Vice Chair 
Sam Lentz City of Orem Third Vice Chair 
Jeff Acerson Lindon City Director 
Danyce Steck Murray City Director 
Paul Isaac West Valley City Director 
Clark Wilkinson Centerville City Director 
Michael Hardy Payson City Director 
Laurie Harvey Midvale City Director 

The Board is required to hold at least one regular meeting annually, but may call other 
meetings as necessary. Each Member is entitled to one vote for each one-thousand (1 ,000) 
residents, rounded to the nearest one thousand, as determined by the most recent official census 
or census estimate of the United States Census Bureau or the Utah Population Estimates 
Committee. There must be a quorum present at each meeting in order to take any action. A 
quorum consists of the presence of the Board members entitled to cast a majority of the votes, 
which is not a simple majority of Board members since votes are weighted based on population. 

MEMBER 

West Valley City 
City of Orem 
Layton City 
Murray City 

Midvale City 
Payson City 

Brigham City 
Centerville City 

Lindon City 

201 7  ESTIMATED 
POPULATION{!) 

134,609 
93,220 
72,413  
48,834 
3 1 ,659 
19,480 
1 8,586 
16,727 
10,686 

(I) Source: U.S. Census Bureau; population estimate as ofJuly 1, 2017. 

APPROXIMATE CURRENT 
VOTING % 

30 
21  
17  
1 1  
7 
4 
4 
4 
2 

The Board also elects from among its members a Chair, a First Vice Chair, a Second Vice 
Chair (currently vacant), a Third Vice Chair and a Fourth Vice Chair (currently vacant). The 
aforementioned officials serve as the Executive Committee of the Board. The Executive 
Committee has oversight over the operations of the Agency as delegated by the Board. 

The Board appoints a Chief Executive Officer, who, subject to oversight by the Board, 
has general supervision, management, administration, direction and control of the business and 
officers of the Agency and has such other related duties as may be prescribed by the Board and 
the bylaws. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to perform any function required of the 
Agency by the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement. The day-to-day operations are handled by the 
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Chief Executive Officer. The following is a brief description of key administrative personnel of 
the Agency. 

Roger Timmerman, Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Timmerman has served as Chief 
Executive Officer of the Agency since 20l6. He also serves as Executive Director of UTOPIA, a 
position he has also held since 2016. Prior to joining the Agency and UTOPIA, Mr. Timmerman 
was Vice President of Engineering for Vivint Wireless, one of the country's largest wireless 
internet service providers, and helped launch wireless ISP in Utah and Texas. Mr. Timmerman 
also previously served as the Chief Technology Officer for UTOPIA for five years. He also 
worked as a Network Engineer for the City of Provo for its iProvo fiber-to-the-home project. 
After graduation, he worked for the BYU Office of Information Technology as a Network 
Product Manager and oversaw the deployment of various network products. He graduated from 
Brigham Young University with a B.S. in Information Technology in 2004 and received a Master 
of Science degree in Information Technology from Brigham Young University in 2009. 

Kirt Sudweeks, Secretary/Treasurer. Mr. Sudweeks has served as Secretaryffreasurer of 
the Agency since 2010. He also serves as the Chief Financial Officer of UTOPIA, a position he 
has held since 2007. Prior to joining the Agency and UTOPIA, Mr. Sudweeks was the controller 
for Scotland Construction, a local residential construction company. Mr. Sudweeks worked for 
Flying J Communications for five years as Director of Financial Systems Development. He also 
worked for American Stores Company in various finance and accounting positions, including 
Director, Construction and Property Accounting, Director of Financial Accounting, and Manager, 
Corporate Financial Planning. He graduated from Brigham Young University with a B.S. in 
business management/finance in 1 982 and received an MBA from the University of Utah in 
1 985. 

ADDITION/WITHDRA WAiiDISSOLUTION 

Any municipality that wishes to become a Member of the Agency may do so upon 
approval of the governing body of the governmental entity and the Agency's Board. Entities that 
become members of the Agency subsequent to the original execution of the Interlocal Agreement 
have substantially similar rights, power and authority as the original Members. To date, no 
additional members have been added since the inception of the Agency. 

The Agency may be dissolved by a two-thirds vote of the Members, so long as it has no 
outstanding bonds (including the Series 2018 Bonds). Upon dissolution and after payment in full 
of all outstanding bonds and other obligations, the Board will equitably disburse the assets of the 
Agency to the then current Members. To the extent possible, each Member will receive 
ownership of that portion of the UIA Network within its boundaries at no additional cost to each 
then current Member. 
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OUTSTANDING BONDS AND NOTES OF THE AGENCY 

Upon issuance, the Series 2017 Bonds and the Series 2018  Bonds will be the only 
outstanding Bonds of the Agency payable from the Net Revenues. 

Telecommunications Revenue Bonds (Principal Only) 

CALENDAR 
YEAR 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
203 1 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 

TOTAL 

SERIES 201 7 A 
BONDS 

(October 15) 

$ 2,145,000 
1 ,625,000 
1 ,660,000 
1 ,705,000(l) 

1 795 000(1) , ' 
1,880,000(J) 

2 440 000<1) , ' 
2,560,000 
2 690 ooo<l) ' ' 
2,830,000(l) 

2 970 oooc1> ' ' 
3,120,000 
3,275,ooo<l) 

3 430 000<1> ' ' 
3,610,000 
3 190 000<1> ' , 
3,975,000 
4,175,000(l) 

4,385,000<1> 

4,600,000 
4,835,000(I) 

5 080 OOO(l) ' , 
5,330,000 

$73,205.000 

(1) Mandatory sinking fund payment. 

SERIES 20 I 7B 
BONDS 

(October 1 5) 

$ 450,000<1> 

s10 000<1> ' 
590,000<1> 

610,000(l) 

630,000(l) 

650,000 

$3,500.000 

PLUS: THE 
SERIES 2018  

BONDS 
(October 15) 

$ 550,000 
580,000 
61 0,000 
640,000 
670,000 
705 000<1> , 
745,000 
780,000<1> 

820 000<1> ' 
865,000 
910 000<1) ' 
960,ooo<1> 

1 ,0 10,000<1> 

1 065 ooo<I) 
' ' 

1 , 120,000 
I 1 80 000(1) ' ' 
1 ,250,000(l) 

1,315,000(!) 

1 ,390,000(1) 

1 465 000<1> ' ' 
1 545 000<1> ' ' 
1,635,000 

$2128 l 02000 

TOTAL 
OUTSTANDING 

BONDS 

$ 2,595,000 
2,745,000 
2,830,000 
2,925,000 
3,065,000 
3,200,000 
3,145,000 
3,305,000 
3,470,000 
3,650,000 
3,835,000 
4,030,000 
4,235,000 
4,440,000 
4,675,000 
4,91 0,000 
5,1 55,000 
5,425,000 
5,700,000 
5,990,000 
6,300,000 
6,625,000 
6.965.000 

s22.� 2 � ,ooo 

The Agency has outstanding its notes (the "Member Notes '} in the aggregate amount of 
$3,650,976 payable to certain of the Members. The Member Notes evidence working capital 
assessments made by the Agency to such Members for fiscal years 201 3-201 5  pursuant to the 
Interlocal Agreement in order to help the Agency meet ongoing operational expense obligations, 
including payments to UTOPIA for operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network. The Member 
Notes are payable from the Net Revenues on a subordinate basis to the Bonds. Assessments are 
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subject to the budgetary processes and approvals of the Members. Although most of the 
Members agreed to pay at least some portion of the assessments in the past, no assurance can be 
given that the Members will agree to do so in the future in the event that any additional 
assessments are necessary. The Agency did not assess the Members (and no new notes were 
issued) for the past two fiscal years, and the Agency does not expect to issue any additional notes 
in the future. 

FUTURE FINANCING 

The Agency must satisfy certain conditions prior to the issuance of any Additional Bonds 
under the Indenture. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 201 8  BONDS-­
Additional Bonds; Series 2018 Bonds" herein. Currently, the Agency does not have plans to 
issue any Additional Bonds under the Indenture for the next 18  to 24 months unless demand for 
the Agency's services is greater than currently anticipated. 

As discussed herein, Layton City desires to expedite expansion of the UIA Network 
within its boundaries. The Agency and Layton City have entered into an agreement providing 
for the Agency to issue its bonds in July 2018 in the approximate amount of $23,000,000 to 
finance such expansion (the "VIA-Layton Bonds "). The UIA-Layton Bonds will be ultimately 
secured by a pledge of Layton City's Franchise Tax Revenues on a parity with its Franchise Tax 
Obligation. The UIA-Layton Bonds, if issued, will be payable pursuant to the terms of a separate 
indenture and will not be issued under or secured by the General Indenture. The UIA-Layton 
Bonds, if issued, will be special limited obligations of the Agency payable from revenues derived 
from amounts payable under the service contract entered into between the Agency and Layton 
City. Pursuan.t to such service contract, beginning July 1 ,  2018, a portion of the revenues 
received from new customers acquired in Layton City as a result of the expenditure of proceeds 
of the UIA-Layton Bonds will be allocated to the payment of the UIA-Layton City Bonds. See 
"CONTRACTING MEMBERS - Layton City" herein for more information. 

The Agency has had periodic discussions with cities, including non-Members, to provide 
services aild, in connection therewith, to issue bonds to finance any related UIA Network 
expansion. The Agency currently expects that such bonds, if issued, would be payable pursuant 
to the terms of one or more separate indentures and would not be issued under or secured by the 
General Indenture. 

NO DEFAULT 

The Agency has never been in default on any material contractual or financial obligation, 
including the punctual payment of principal or interest on any of its indebtedness. 
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FINANCIAL SU.tv1MARIES AND BUDGET 

The following tables summarize the Agency's recent financial history as well as its 
budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The Agency prepared the historical tables based on 
information set forth in the Agency's audited :financial statements for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
Operating Revenues 

Access fees $7,078,457 $6,059,951 $4,872,660 $3,038,824 $ 1,779,298 
Installations 123,933 258,449 472,018  514,871 1,294,842 
Reconnections 1,813,818 1 ,362,514 982,663 769,246 366,320 
Miscellaneous operating revenue 39,352 8,400 0 0 0 

Total Operating Revenues $9,055.560 $7,689.314 $6.327.341 $4.322.941 $3,440,460 

Operating Expenses 

Marketing $ 323,884 $ 231 ,039 $ 86,013 $ 85,778 $ 161 ,626 
Professional services 138,352 97,680 78,238 65,765 41,484 
Network 704,047 420,302 364,21 2  321,543 255,417  
Depreciation 3,542,885 3,002,055 2,653,388 2,251,384 1,716,158 

Total Operating Expenses $4.716.168 $3,751.076 $�1.851 $2.724.470 $2.174,685 

Operating Income (Loss) $4.339.392 $3.938.238 $3.145.490 $1.598,471 $1.265.775 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest income $ 491,518 $ 386,958 $ 291,526 $ 329,094 $ 288,164 
Installation related capital contributions 376,682 247,294 799,864 577,877 840,840 
Bond interest and fees (2, 774,126} (2,993,006} (1,917,828) (2,374,095} (2,095,998) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) $(1.905,926) $(2,358,754) $ (826.508) $(1.467.124) $ (966.994) 

Change in Net Position $2,433,466 $1,579,484 $2,318,982 $ 13 1,347 $ 298,781 

Total Net Position, July 1 $2,167,043 $ 587,559 $(1,731,423} $(1,862,770)<1> $(924,528} 
Total Net Position, June 30 $4,600.509 $2,167,043 $ 587,559 $0 ,73] .423) $(625.747) 

Source: The Agency has provided this unaudited summary based on its audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017. 
(I)  Restated from fiscal year end 2013 ending balance to comply with requirements of GASB 63. 
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AsSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Restricted cash equivalents 
Trade receivables, net 
Inventory 
Notes receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total CurrentAssets 
Noncurrent Assets 

Notes receivable 
Capital Assets: 

Construction in progress 
Land 
Property and equipment, net fiber optic network 
Deferred charges cost of issuance 

Total NoncurrentAssets 
Total Assets 

DEFERRED 0UTFLoWs OF RllsOURCl!S 
Deferred issuance costs on bonds 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows ofResoun:es 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Liabilities payable ftom restricted assets 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned/Deferred revenue 
Interest payable from restricted assets 
Capital leases payable 
Revenue bonds payable 

Total Current Liabilities 
N oncurrent Liabilities 

Capital Leases Payable 
Notes Payable 
Revenue Bonds Payable 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Unspent bond proceeds 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

2017 

$ 6,185,494 
8,970,265 
1,0l J,SS3 
1,240,161 

218,007 
17,210 

$17 642 689 

$ 3,208,739 

749,640 
500,000 

51,856,193 
0 

$56 314 572 
$73 251261 

$ 0 
0 

$13 251261 

$ 957,025 
0 

68,819 
9,675 

596,607 
640,171 

1,620,000 
$ 3 962,297 

$ 1,012,403 
3,83S,636 

605�M;J6 
$65394455 
$62 356152 

$ 2,076,379 

2,559,705 
5,813,952 

(5,849J2D 
$ HQQ5Q2 

$Z3 252261 

2016 

$ 3,146,791 
25,443,378 

491,703 
885,408 
193,111 

0 
$30 160 391 

$ 3,275,771 

109,706 
0 

40,519,444 
0 

$43 904 921 
$'.M 065 312 

$ 0 
0 

$14065 312 

$ 409,987 
0 

29,186 
0 

605,940 
620,709 

1,645,000 
$ 3 310 822 

$ 2,807,455 
3,417,291 

6, J6' ZOl 
$68 587 447 
$71 828 262 

$ 2,763,232 

2,543,S94 
22,293,844 

(25 433 627) 
$ 2161Q4J 

$24 065 312 

2015 

$ 2,168,755 
2,298,904 

468,801 
658,843 
180,946 

0 
$ 5 776 249 

$ 3,402,970 

13,230 
0 

40,129,117 
0 

M:3 545 317 
$42 321 566 

$ 0 

0 
$42 321 566 

$ 238,511 
0 

63,184 
0 

402,597 
595,117 

1,005,000 
$ V04409 

s 5,168,053 
3,352,210 

3Z 202 335 
$Af! 429 598 
$48134 QOZ 

s 3,384,664 

1,635,981 
260,326 

(4 693,412) 
$ 581552 
$49 321 566 

2014 

$ 996,661 
S,573,S15 

327,634 
296,805 
151,665 

0 
$ 7 346,280 

$ 3,576,268 

2,852,028 
0 

36,506,565 
0 

$42,934 861 
$SQ281 HI 

$ 0 

0 
$5Q281 HI 

$ 380,330 
431,on 
129,636 
300,000 
408,513 
655,000 
980,000 

$ 3.284 556 

$ 7,540,602 
2,248,467 

l8 2J8 2l2 
$48 728 008 
$52 012 �4 

$ 3,350,994 

1,133,381 
3,600,544 

(9 816 342) 
$(I 231 42.J) 
$50 281 141 

2013 

$ 666,897 
2,728,701 

336,717 
162,042 
126,780 

0 
$ 4,021,137 

$ 3,422,307 

918,369 
0 

32,354,791 
1,237,023 

$37,932,490 
S�J 2SJ 62Z 

$ 0 

0 
s�11 253 621 

$ 191,740 
948,695 

18,554 
0 

621,166 
6,529,073 

� 
$ 8 994 228 

$ 4,344,199 
798,754 

,8 !1:1:, 193 
$33,585,146 
$!12512JM 

$ (2,764,104) 

789,593 
369,247 
979 517 

$ Uj25 Mf) 
$41 253 �2Z 

Source: The Agency has provided this unaudited summary based on its audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017. 
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AMENDED BUDGET, FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018 

Total Revenues(1l 

Expenses 
Marketing 
Administrative services 
Professional services 
Network management 
Depreciation<2l 
Bond interest and fees 

Total Expenses 

Net Income 

$10,772,700 

$ 5 19,600 
147,200 
25,200 

1,399,224 
4,800,000 
3.370,581  

$10,261 ,805 

$ 510,895 

Source: The Agency. The Amended Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, was adopted by the BoaJd of the Agency on June 25, 2018. 
{l) Consists of projected operating revenues in the amount of $10, 735,200 and projected interest income in the amount of $3 7 ,500. Does not 
include Series 2017 Bond proceeds, the m�iority of which were used to refund obligations of the Agency and a portion of which are being used to 
fund certain capital projects. 
(2) Depreciation expense is specifically. excluded as an Operation and Maintenance Expense when calculating Net Revenues. 

BUDGET, FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

Total Revenues(l) 

Expenses 
Marketing 
Administrative services 
Professional services 
Network management 
Depreciation<2l 
Bond interest and fees 

Total Expenses 

Net Income 

$12,713,100 

$ 518,600 
150,000 
25,200 

2,022,270 
4,800,000 
3.757.946 

$11 ,274,016 

$ 1,439,084 

Source: The Agency. The Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, was adopted by the Board of the Agency on June 25, 2018. 
( 1) Consists of projected operating revenues in the amount of $12, 765,000 and projected interest income in the amount of $3 7,500. Does not 
include Series 2018 Bond proceeds. 
(2) Depreciation expense is specifically excluded as an Operation and Maintenance Expense when calculating Net Revenues. 

THE NETWORK 

THE UIANETWORK 

The UIA Network is an advanced communications network built with fiber optic 
technology, providing transmission of voice, data and video at speeds that are significantly faster 
than those available through certain competing technologies. Fiber optic technology supports the 
long-term projected growth in bandwidth and capacity required for increasing usage demand and 
requirements. The use of fiber optic technology to support homes and businesses has become 
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more accepted as the telecommunications industry continues to implement new infrastructure 
and technology to meet increasing demand and economic needs. The Agency provides the fiber 
optic cable, laid both underground and above-ground, necessary to connect each Member and the 
homes and businesses within each Member. Other elements of the UIA Network include 
conduits, fiber strands, splices, switches, transmitters, terminals, internal power sources and all 
other items necessary to operate the UIA Network. 

The VIA Network is based on providing transport services at layer 2 of the open systems 
interconnect (OSI) model. The core backbone is built around internet provider multi-protocol 
label switching (IP-MPLS). This structure gives the UIA Network a powerful, highly redundant 
core that remains transparent to customer traffic. The UIA Network employs an Active Ethernet 
architecture, meaning that customers are connected to community cabinets with active 
electronics. This architecture permits the Agency to scale economically and service business and 
residential customers over the same carrier grade network. It also allows the UIA Network to 
operate as an Open Access network with multiple internet service providers (ISPs) delivering 
customized services and products to customers. The UIA Network extends into the customer site 
with Customer Premise Equipment (CPE). The CPE device allows the conversion of optical 
signals to electrical signals that are separated by the ports on the CPE device. This device allows 
the UIA Network to deliver ISP services consisting of data, video and VoIP services with 
minimum equipment investment on behalf of the ISP or the customer. This design makes it 
possible to support flexible customer service without requiring a service visit each time the 
customer makes a change in services. 

The UIA Network deploys a fiber-to-the-premises (FTI'P) network with a minimum 
capacity of 250 Mbps (megabits per second) in both directions, upload and download. The VIA 
Network is Gigabit capable for residents and currently supports speeds of up to 100 Gigabit for 
commercial customers. The Agency believes that this bandwidth makes it possible for service 
providers using the DIA Network to deliver higher quality. services and launch innovative new 
services that existing networks cannot currently support. Also, since the carrying capacity of 
fiber plant can be significantly increased by changing the electronics in the UIA Network, the 
Agency believes the UIA Network has a long useful life and is able to support innovations 
created by evolving technologies. 

The UIA Network operates as a network under an open access model which is available 
to all qualified service providers. The Agency provides carrier-class transport services to the 
Members and provides physical connections and transport services on behalf of the Members to 
end-users. Service providers contract with the Agency directly, or with UTOPIA, as the 
Agency's operator, for access to the UIA Network and then market and provide internet, video, 
telephone and other services to their customers. Such services will utilize the transport services 
provided by the Agency. The Agency, the Members and UTOPIA may also independently 
market and promote the benefits and uses of connecting to the VIA Network. 

The following table shows the five largest service providers on the VIA Network for the 
past three fiscal years, as measured by comparing the percentage of Revenues generated from 
such service provider against Revenues generated from all Service Provider Agreements: 
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SERVICE PROVIDER FISCAL YEAR 201 7  FISCAL YEAR 20 1 6  FISCAL YEAR 201 5 

Xmission 22.7% 20.7% 19.4% 

Veracity 1 8.9% 1 8.4% 1 8.8% 

Windstream 1 1 .4% 1 3 . 1 %  14.0% 

Sumo 7.8% 8.6% 9.7% 

First Digital 7.4% 7.1% 6.4% 

Total 68. 1 %  67.9% 68.2% 

Source: The Agency 

THE UTOPIA NETWORK 

UTOPIA is a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State which was created 
under the Interlocal Cooperation Act by 1 5  Utah municipalities. UTOPIA is governed by the 
First Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement of the Utah Telecommunication 
Open Infrastructure Agency, dated as of June 1 ,  2004. 

UTOPIA has the following member cities: Brigham City, Cedar City, Cedar Hills City, 
Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, Midvale City, Murray City, City of Orem, Payson 
City, Perry City, Riverton City, Tremonton City, Town of Vineyard and West Valley City. The 
Agency connects the UIA Network to the UTOPIA Network pursuant to the !RU Agreement and 
other agreements. See "Intersection of UIA Network and Utopia Network" herein for a further 
discussion of the IRU Agreement. As of June 30, 2017, the UTOPIA Network consisted of 
approximately 3,266 miles of fiber cable (and associated duct) within the boundaries of eleven of 
UTOPIA's member cities. 

The table below presents the percentages of addresses within the Members that are 
passed by the UTOPIA Network as of May 20 1 8. 

Source: The Agency 

MEMBER 

Centerville City 
Brigham City 
Lindon City 
Murray City 
Midvale City 
City of Orem 
Payson City 

West Valley City 
Layton City 
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PASSED BY UTOPIA 

NETWORK 

99% 
96% 

95% 
69% 
57% 
49% 
53% 
37% 
50% 



INTERSECTION OF VIA NETWORK AND UTOPIA NETWORK 

The physical location of the UTOPIA Network is critical to the Agency's success because 
the Agency does not have the backbone telecommunications infrastructure in place nor the 
financing available to provide for such a large construction endeavor. Technically, the UIA 
Network could connect to many other networks other than the UTOPIA Network; however, no 
other fiber optic networks have the physical connections to the homes that the Agency intends to 
connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of connecting to different networks would be 
prohibitive. The IRU Agreement provides long-term rights to the Agency to connect the VIA 
Network to the UTOPIA Network. The initial term of the IRU Agreement runs until April 30, 
2042, and the IRU Agreement will automatically renew in additional five (5) year increments, 
unless either party gives the other party at least 365 days written notice of such party's intent to 
terminate at the expiration of the then current term. A party under the IRU Agreement may 
deliver to the other party a written notice of default for (i) failing to make any payment of any 
amounts owed under the IRU Agreement, when no bona fide dispute exists, (ii) the breaching by 
either party or its agents, assigns or affiliates of any material provision (as defined in the IRU 
Agreement), or (iii) the filing or initiating of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or certain 
similar actions. If the Agency receives a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event 
described in (i) above, the Agency will have 30 days to cure. If the Agency fails to cure such 
event within the cure period, UTOPIA will have the right to either (a) suspend its performance 
obligations under the IRU Agreement, (b) seek an award for the past due balance, including 
interest and reasonable attorneys' fees, and/or (c) require the Agency to post a reasonable deposit 
or other adequate assurance of payment as a condition of continuing performance by UTOPIA. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, UTOPIA may not disconnect service or revoke the indefeasible 
right of use of the Agency with respect to any additional capacity except for non-payment of any 
additional indefeasible right of use fee with respect to that additional capacity. A party that has 
received a notice of default related to the occurrence of an event described in (ii) above will have 
30 days to cure the alleged breach. If the defaulting party has commenced actions in good faith 
to cure such defaults which are not susceptible of being cured during such 30-day period, such 
period will be extended (but not in excess of 90 additional days) while such party continues such 
actions to cure. If such party fails to cure the breach within the applicable cure period, the IRU 
Agreement will not be terminated, but as long as such default shall be continuing, the 
non-defaulting party shall have the right to either (a) suspend its performance or payment 
obligations under the IRU Agreement, (b) seek an order of specific performance, and/or ( c) seek 
the award of compensatory damages. Upon the expiration of the term of the IRU Agreement, or 
as a result of a material breach of a component set forth in the IRU Agreement which has gone 
uncured as set forth in the IRU Agreement, the IRU Agreement will terminate and the Agency 
shall owe UTOPIA no additional compensation. 

The Agency does not have a payroll, and both employees of the Agency are also 
employees of UTOPIA and are paid by UTOPIA. Pursuant to the UTOPIA Service Agreement, 
the Agency has contracted for UTOPIA to provide for the management of various services for 
certain portions of the VIA Network, including planning and pre-construction management 
services to build the VIA Network and administration and operations management of the UIA 
Network, including service provider management. The initial term of the UTOPIA Service 
Agreement was for 5 years (beginning June 29, 201 0), and the Agency has continued rights to 
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renew such Agreement, unless UTOPIA later objects in writing within 30 days, for successive 
one-year periods, on the same terms and conditions existing on the date of such renewal by 
delivering written notice to UTOPIA at least 30 days prior to the end of the then existing term. 
The UTOPIA Service Agreement may be terminated as follows: (a) as required by law, 
(b) 30 days after a non-breaching party has delivered written notice of a material breach of the 
UTOPIA Service Agreement to the breaching party and such breach remains uncured, (c) by 
written mutual agreement of the parties, or (d) immediately, without delivery of notice, upon the 
insolvency or bankruptcy of a party, or upon the occurrence of certain similar events set forth in 
the UTOPIA Service Agreement. A party is required under the UTOPIA Service Agreement to 
immediately notify the other party in writing upon the occurrence of any of the events listed in 
(d). Failure to do so constitutes a material breach of the UTOPIA Service Agreement and will 
result in automatic termination of the UTOPIA Service Agreement. The UTOPIA Service 
Agreement is also subject to termination by the Agency for business convenience, for any or no 
reason, and without penalty, liability or obligation of any kind (except for payment for 
conforming services already received) by delivering at least 90 days' written notice to UTOPIA. 

The combined UTOPWUIA Networks consist of 1 5 8  production footprints passing a 
total of 91 ,939 addresses, of which 76, 1 2 1  are able to receive services at the decision of the 
household or business (marketable). The remaining non-marketable addresses are located in 
apartment buildings, condominium developments or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole 
access issues. 
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The following chart shows the total number of business and residential customers, the 
"take-rate" and the "churn rate" of the combined UTOPIAIUIA Networks for the past four fiscal 
years. "Take-rate" means the percentage of potential business and residential customers in that 
city that have signed up for either the UIA Network or the UTOPIA Network. Upon complete 
build out of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks, the total projected potential customers for 
the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks is approximately 1 60,000. "Churn rate" means the 
percentage of customers of the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks that have terminated services 
in such fiscal year. 

Combined UTOP IAIUIA Networks - Customers, Take-Rate and Churn Rate 

FY2017 FY2016 FY201 5  FY2014 

TAKE- TAKE- TAKE- TAKE-
CUSTOMERS RATE CUSTOMERS RATE CUSTOMERS RATE CUSTOMERS RATE 

Brigham City 1,833 31 .3% 1,640 29.5% 1,380 31 .4% 1,272 30.0% 
Centerville 1,607 32.9% 1,515 30.0% 1,360 28.7% 1 ,268 26.6% 
Layton 1,749 1 8.6% 1,096 16.1% 599 16.8% 505 20.8% 
Lindon 1,442 44.8% 1,385 43.4% 1,294 45.0% 1,209 43.3% 
Midvale 747 13.6% 677 12.2% 599 17.7% 565 19.0% 
Murray 2,629 23.7% 2,474 22.4% 2,288 25.6% 2,148 24.3% 
Orem 3,316 26.5% 3,200 24.4% 3,182 29.2% 3,157 29.3% 
Payson 756 24.4% 681 25.0% 570 24.9% 547 24.1% 
Perry 344 19.3% 132 7.5% 2 0.0% 2 0.0% 
Tremonton 608 22.0% 508 18 .2% 336 14.5% 287 12.6% 
West Valley 1,098 9.6% 839 10.3% 695 14.3% 635 13.6% 
Misc ___il.Q ---1M � ---1§.2. 

TOTAL 16,539 14,515 12,631 1 1 ,860 

LOST CUSTOMERS 565 736 5 1 8  610 
CHURN RATE 3.42% 5.07% 4.10% 5.14% 

Source: The Agency 

Certain potential Customers are candidates for services by both the Agency and 
UTOPIA. In such situations, the Agency and UTOPIA have a practice of allocating such 
potential Customers to the Agency if any of the Agency's funds are expended when providing 
connection services to such Customers. 

CONTRACTING MEMBERS 

Set forth below is a brief description and demographic information for each Contracting 
Member, a five-year history of its Franchise Tax Revenues, and a description of any City Debt 
secured by the Franchise Tax Revenues. Outstanding City Debt information is as of April 12, 

20 1 8. 

Pursuant to the Service Contract, each Contracting Member may create or incur 
additional debt on a parity with any outstanding debt secured by a priority lien pledge of such 
Contracting Member's Franchise Tax Revenues or on parity with the pledge created pursuant to 
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the Service Contract so long as the pledged Franchise Tax Revenues received by such 
Contracting Member during the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year in which the 
additional priority or parity City Debt is to be incurred is not less than 150% of the sum of (a) the 
Maximum Annual Debt Service (as defined below) of (i) the additional priority or parity City 
Debt proposed to be incurred and (ii) any City Debt secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
previously issued and outstanding, plus (b) the total maximum annual amount of such 
Contracting Member's Franchise Tax Obligation under the Service Contract. For purposes of 
this test, "Maximum Annual Debt Service" means, with respect to any outstanding City Debt of 
the Contracting Member, the maximum annual principal and interest payable on such City Debt 
for any one fiscal year, less any moneys, other than Franchise Tax Revenues, that are legally 
pledged and applied to pay debt service on such City Debt in the fiscal year immediately 
preceding the fiscal year in which the additional priority or parity City Debt is to be incurred. 

WEST VALLEY CITY 

General. West Valley City is the second most populous city in the State. It is located 
four miles from the Salt Lake City International Airport and is a commercial and industrial center 
for Salt Lake County and the metropolitan area. West Valley City was incorporated on July 1 ,  
1980, and encompasses approximately 35 square miles. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010  2017  201 0/2017  

West Valley City 108,896 129,480 134,609 3.96% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1 ,029,655 1 , 135,649 10.29% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 3,101 ,833 1 1 .88% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 
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Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

WEST VALLEY SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUN1Y STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 2,345 9.35% 9,841 4.17% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 541 2.16% 4,429 1 .88% 23,292 3.65% 
$ 100,000 to $149,999 5,203 20.74% 24,965 10.57% 85,390 13.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 8,864 35.34% 42,857 18.15% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 6,899 27.50% 72,843 30.85% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 1 , 1 16  4.45% 58,200 24.65% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 50 0.20% 20,236 8.57% 42,228 6.61% 
$ 1,000,000 or more ___M 0.26% 2,776 1 . 18% 7,773 1 .22% 

Total 25,083 100.00% 236,147 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $171,200 $234,700 $224,600 

Source; U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Smvey 5-Year Estimates 

Median Household Income 

WEST VALLEY SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUN1Y STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 1,438 3.96% 15,852 4.45% 42,815 4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 1 , 147 3.16% 12,023 3.38% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 3,435 9.45% 28,074 7.88% 74,51 1  8 . 11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 3,840 10.57% 31 ,089 8.73% 81,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 5,978 16.45% 46,326 13.01% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 8,472 23.3 1% 71,375 20.05% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 5,527 15.21% 53,156 14.93% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 4,961 13.65% 56,986 16.00% 141, 162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 918 2.53% 20,472 5.75% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more ____filQ 1.73% 20,708 5.82% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 36,346 100.00% 356,061 100.00% 918,367 100.00% 

Median Income $55,933 $ 64,601 $ 42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2017 
2016 
201 5  
2014 
2013 

Source: West Valley City and the Municipal Advisor 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES 
RECEIVED ($) 

8,095,002 
8,065,445 
7,847,940 
7,705,249 
7,383,444 

(I) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$6,703,922. 

% CHANGE 

3.66 
2.77 
1 .85 
4.36 

10.14(1) 

Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. West Valley City has previously issued its Franchise 
Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 (the "West Valley Bonds "), which are outstanding in 
the aggregate principal amount of $2,850,000. The West Valley Bonds are payable from and 
secured by Franchise Tax Revenues of West Valley City with a lien that is senior to that of the 
Franchise Tax Obligation of West Valley City under the Service Contract. The West Valley 
Bonds are additionally payable from and secured by revenues that are received from the levy of a 
telecommunications franchise tax, which revenues equaled $2, 123 ,53 7 in fiscal year 2017 and 
which revenues are not pledged to the payment of the Franchise Tax Obligation of West Valley 
City. The final maturity date of the West Valley Bonds is April 15 ,  2020. 

West Valley City has also entered into a pledge agreement (the "Pledge Agreement') 
with its Redevelopment Agency (the "West Valley RDA ") in connection with the issuance by the 
West Valley RDA of its Franchise Tax and Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B 
(Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds) (the "RDA 2010B Bonds"), which 
are outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $4,620,000. The RDA 2010B Bonds are 
payable from and secured by a pledge of tax increment revenues of the West Valley RDA. 
However, in the event that such tax increment revenues are not sufficient to pay debt service on 
the RDA 2010B Bonds, West Valley City will, pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, transfer to the 
West Valley RDA an amount of Franchise Tax Revenues that is sufficient to pay the debt service 
on the RDA 201 0B Bonds. The final maturity date of the RDA 2010B Bonds is November 1 ,  
2025. The lien on Franchise Tax Revenues created pursuant to the Pledge Agreement is senior to 
the lien of the Franchise Tax Obligation on such revenues. 

West Valley City has also entered into a contribution agreement (the "Contribution 
Agreement") with the West Valley RDA in connection with the issuance by the West Valley RDA 
of its Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (the "RDA 2016 Bonds " and together with the 
RDA 2010B Bonds, the "West Valley RDA Bonds"), which are outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $10,125,000. The RDA 201 6  Bonds are payable from and secured by a 
pledge of certain franchise tax revenues of West Valley City, made available under the 
Contribution Agreement, and certain revenues derived from investment income. The final 
maturity date of the RDA 201 6  Bonds is November 1 ,  2036. The lien on Franchise Tax 

-40· 



Revenues created pursuant to the Contribution Agreement is senior to the lien of the Franchise 
Tax Obligation on such revenues. 

West Valley City has indicated it does not have any current plans to incur additional 
obligations payable from Franchise Tax Revenues within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCIIlSE FRANCIIlSE 
FISCAL TAX TAX 
YEAR REVENUES(t) CITY DEBT(2) OBLIGATION 

2018  $8,095,002 $2,503,356 $1 ,568,781 
2019 8,095,002 2,626,462 1,568,781 
2020 8,095,002 2,467,937 1 ,568,781 
2021 8,095,002 1 ,022,487 1,568,781 
2022 8,095,002 1,023,362 1 ,568,781 
2023 8,095,002 2,089,287 1 ,568,781 
2024 8,095,002 2,064,919 1 ,568,781 
2025 8,095,002 2,043,326 1,568,781 
2026 8,095,002 2,024,688 1,568,781 
2027 8,095,002 771,525 1,568,781 
2028 8,095,002 773,300 1 ,568,781 
2029 8,095,002 771,700 1,568,781 
2030 8,095,002 772,150 1,568,781 
203 1 8,095,002 774,750 1,568,781 
2032 8,095,002 771,825 1,568,781 
2033 8,095,002 770,250 1,568,781 
2034 8,095,002 769,750 1,568,781 
2035 8,095,002 769,750 1,568,781 
2036 8,095,002 765,000 1,568,781 
2037 8,095,002 763,625 1,568,781 

2038 and 8,095,002 0 1,568,781 
thereafter 

Source: West Valley City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
(2) Consists of outstanding debt service on the West Valley Bonds and the West Valley RDA Bonds. 
(3) Sum of City Debt and Franchise Tax Obligation. 
(4) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total. 
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TOTAL(3) 

$4,072,137 
4,195,243 
4,036,71 8  
2,591 ,268 
2,592,143 
3,658,068 
3,633,700 
3,612,107 
3,593,469 
2,340,306 
2,342,081 
2,340,481 
2,340,931 
2,343,53 1 
2,340,606 
2,339,03 1 
2,338,531 
2,338,531 
2,333,781 
2,332,406 
1 ,568,781 

COVERAGE(4) 

l .99x 
l .93x 
2.0lx 
3.12x 
3.12x 
2.2lx 
2.23x 
2.24x 
2.25x 
3 .46x 
3 .46x 
3.46x 
3.46x 
3.45x 
3 .46x 
3 .46x 
3 .46x 
3.46x 
3.47x 
3.47x 
5.16x 



CITY OF OREM 

General. The City of Orem was incorporated in 1919 and covers an area of 
approximately 1 8  square miles. It is located in Utah County, approximately 40 miles south of 
Salt Lake City and adjacent to Provo City. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 

NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010 2017 2010/2017 

City of Orem 84,324 88,328 93,220 5.54% 
Utah County 368,536 516,564 606,425 17.40% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 3,101 ,833 1 1 .88% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

CITY OF UTAH THE 

OREM COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 706 4.42% 3,321 3 .26% 28,603 4.48% 

$50,000 to $99,999 1 68 1 .05% 1 ,3 1 5  1 .29% 23,292 3.65% 

$ 100,000 to $ 149,999 1 ,864 1 1 .67% 9,593 9.43% 85,390 13.37% 

$ 150,000 to $199,999 4,009 25. 1 0% 20,405 20.06% 127,971 20.03% 

$200,000 to $299,999 5,918 37.05% 35,377 34.77% 1 90,476 29.82% 

$300,000 to $499,999 2,568 16.08% 23,753 23.35% 133,034 20.83% 

$500,000 to $999,999 601 3.76% 6,989 6.87% 42,228 6.61% 

$ 1,000,000 or more _ill 0.87% 987 0.97% 7.773 1 .22% 

Total 1 5,973 1 00.00% 101 ,740 100.00% 638,767 1 00.00% 

Median Value $21 5,200 $239,300 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Median Household Income 

CITY OF UTAH THE 
OREM COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000- 1,319 4.95% 6,6 1 1  4.37% 42,815 4.66% 
$ 10,000 to $14,999 1 ,176 4.42% 5,124 3.39% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 2,438 9.16% 1 1 ,900 7.86% 74,51 1  8 . 11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 2,505 9.41% 12,518 8.27% 81,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 4,080 15.33% 20,232 13.37% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 5,688 21 .37% 32,055 21 .18% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 3,836 14.41% 23,559 15.57% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 3,538 13.29% 24,557 16.23% 141,162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1 ,078 4.05% 8,310 5.49% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more � 3.61% 6,476 4.28% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 26,620 100.00% 151,342 100.00% 918,367 100.00% 

Median Income $56,376 $ 64,321 $ 42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES 
RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017  
2016 
2015  
2014 
2013 

Source: City of Orem and the Municipal Advisor 

6,549,235 
6,454,275 
6,238,725 
6,322,744 
6,1 1 0,388 

(I) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 ofSS,649,644. 

-43-

1 .47 
3.46 

(1 .33) 
3.48 
8.16<1> 



No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. The City of Orem does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. The City of Orem has indicated it 
does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCIIlSE FRANCIIlSE 
FISCAL TAX TAX CITY 
YEAR REVENuES<1> OBLIGATION DEBJ<2> TOTAL(l) COVERAGEC4> 

2018 $6,549,235 $1,223,786 $546,000 $1,769,786 3 .70x 
2019 and 6,549,235 1 ,223,786 0 1,223,786 5.35x 
thereafter 

Source: City of Orem and the Municipal Advisor 
(I) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended Jtme 30, 2017. 
(2) Consists of debt service on the Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010, which matured on March IS, 2018. 
(3) Sum of Franchise Tax Obligation and City Debt. 
(4) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total. 

MURRAY CITY 

General. Murray City is located in the central portion of Salt Lake County, 
approximately eight miles south of Salt Lake City. Murray City was incorporated in 1 902. 

Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Murray City 
Salt Lake County 
The State 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 

2000 

34,024 
898,387 

2,233,169 

2010 

46,746 
1 ,029,655 
2,772,373 
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2017 

48,834 
1 , 1 35,649 
3,101,833 

% CHANGE 
201 0/20 1 7  

4.47% 
10.29% 
1 1 .88% 



Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

MURRAY SALT LAKE THE 

CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 499 4.16% 9,841 4.17% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 380 3.17% 4,429 1.88% 23,292 3.65% 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,198 9.99% 24,965 10.57% 85,390 13.37% 
$ 150,000 to $199,999 1,955 16.30% 42,857 18.15% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 4,754 39.64% 72,843 30.85% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 2,580 21.51% 58,200 24.65% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 557 4.64% 20,236 8.57% 42,228 6.61% 
$1 ,000,000 or more ___.1Q 0.58% 2,776 1 . 18% 7,773 1 .22% 

Total 1 1,993 100.00% 236,147 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $236,200 $234,700 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community SUIVey S·YearEstimates 

Median Household Income 

MURRAY SALT LAKE 
THE 

CITY COUN1Y STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $ 10,000 793 4.23% 15,852 4.45% 42,815 4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 805 4.30% 12,023 3.38% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,914 10.22% 28,074 7.88% 74,51 1  8 . 11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 1 ,770 9.45% 31 ,089 8.73% 81,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,791 14.90% 46,326 13.01% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 3,616 19.30% 71,375 20.05% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 2,791 14.90% 53,156 14.93% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 2,776 14.82% 56,986 16.00% 141,162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 813 4.34% 20,472 5.75% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more ___Ml 3.56% 20,708 5.82% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 18,736 100.00% 356,061 100.00% 918,367 · 100.00% 

Median Income $55,483 $ 64,601 $ 42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Smvey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2017  
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 

Source: Murray City and the Municipal Advisor 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) 

3,5 1 8,071 
3,586,379 
3,51 8,888 
3,645,488 
3,584,418 

(1) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$3,41 l,740. 

% CHANGE 

(1 .90) 
1 .92 

(3.47) 
1 .70 
5.06<1> 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Murray City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Murray City has indicated it does 
not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues within 
the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FISCAL FRANCHISE 
YEAR TAX REVENUES(!) 

2018  and ·$3,5 18,071 
thereafter 

Source: MW111y City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fisc:al year ended June 30, 2017. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 
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FRANCHISE 
TAX 

OBLIGATION COVERAGE(2) 

$690,241 5 .lOx 



MIDVALE CITY 

General. Midvale City was incorporated in 1909 and covers an area of approximately 
6.5 square miles within Salt Lake County. Midvale City is located approximately 10 miles south 
of Salt Lake City on Interstate 15  in the middle of the Salt Lake Valley. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010 2017 201 0/2017  

Midvale City 27,029 27,964 31 ,659 13.21% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1 ,029,655 1 , 135,649 10 .29 %  
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 3,101,833 1 1 .88% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

MIDVALE SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 190 3.77% 9,841 4.17% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 80 1.59% 4,429 1 .88% 23,292 3.65% 
$100,000 to $149,999 601 1 1 .92% 24,965 10.57% 85,390 13.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,617 32.08% 42,857 18.15% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 2,1 18  42.02% 72,843 30.85% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 384 7.62% 58,200 24.65% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 50 0.99% 20,236 8.57% 42,228 6.61% 
$1 ,000,000 or more __ o 0.00% 2,776 1 . 18% 7,773 1 .22% 

Total 5,040 100.00% 236,147 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $201 ,200 $234,700 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Y ear Estimates 
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Median Household Income 

MIDVALE SALT LAKE 
THE 

CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 671 5.63% 15,852 4.45% 42,815 4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 773 6.49% 12,023 3.38% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 1,093 9.18% 28,074 7.88% 74,51 1  8 . 11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,094 9.19% 31,089 8.73% 81,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 1,857 15.59% 46,326 13.01% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 2,820 23.68% 71,375 20.05% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 1,702 14.29% 53,156 14.93% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 1,360 1 1 .42% 56,986 16.00% 141,162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 271 2.28% 20,472 5.75% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more _____2Q2 2.26% 20,708 5.82% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 1 1,910 100.00% 356,061 100.00% 91 8,367 100.00% 

Median Income $52,521 $ 64,601 $ 42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 

YEAR 

FRANCHISE 

TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017  
2016 
201 5  
2014 
201 3  

Source: Midvale City and the Municipal Advisor 

2,205,527 
2,192,132 
2,086,63 1 
2,102,495 
1 ,776,227 

(1) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$1,564,620. 
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0.61 
5.06 

(0.75) 
1 8.37 
13 .52(l) 



No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Midvale City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Midvale City has indicated it does 
not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues within 
the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCJilSE 
TAX FISCAL 

YEAR 
FRANCHISE 

TAX REVENUES(l) OBLIGATION COVERAGE(2) 

2018  and 
thereafter 

Source: Midvale City and the Municipal Advisor 

$2,205,527 

(!) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation 

LAYTON CITY 

$339,988 6.49x 

General. Layton City was incorporated in 1920 and covers an area of approximately 
22 square miles. Layton City is located in Davis County, approximately 25 miles north of Salt 
Lake City and approximately 1 5  miles south of Ogden City. 

Popu.lation Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010  2017 2010/2017 

Layton City 58,474 67,3 1 1  72,413 7.58% 
Davis County 238,994 306,479 347,637 1 3.43% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 3,101,833 1 1 .88% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 
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Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

LAYTON DAVIS THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 887 5.45% 3,197 4.18% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 306 1 .88% 1,146 1 .50% 23,292 3.65% 
$ 100,000 to $149,999 1,865 1 1 .47% 7,253 9.49% 85,390 13.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 4,3 1 1  26.50% 15,607 20.42% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 5,029 30.92% 26,621 34.83% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 3,340 20.53% 18, 1 17 23.70% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 401 2.47% 3,741 4.89% 42,228 6.61% 
$1 ,000,000 or more _ill. 0.78% � 0.98% 7,773 1 .22% 

Total 16,266 100.00% 76,434 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $212,000 $234,300 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Median Household Income 

LAYTON DAVIS THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 971 4.27% 3,422 3.44% 42,815  4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 755 3 .32% 2,546 2.56% 32,6�9 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 1 ,484 6.52% 5,617 5.65% 74,51 1  8.1 1% 
$25,000 to $34,999 1,589 6.98% 6,301 6.33% 81 ,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 2,586 1 1 .37% 12,043 12.10% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 5,181 22.77% 22,096 22.21% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 4,179 18.37% 16,997 17.08% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 3,723 16.36% 19,044 19.14% 141, 162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 1,517 6.67% 6,810 6.84% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more __]fil 3.37% 4,619 4.64% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 22,752 100.00% 99,495 100.00% 918,367 100.00% 

Median Income $68,507 $72,661 $42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2017  
2016 
201 5  
2014 
2013 

Source: Layton City and the Municipal Advisor 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES 

RECEIVED ($) 

3,904,354 
3,918,3 18  
3,775,194 
3,836,957 
3,659,998 

(1) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$3,335,994. 

% CHANGE 

(0.36) 
3.79 

(1 .61) 
4.83 
9.11<1> 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Layton City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Layton City is accelerating the 
expansion of the DIA Network within its boundaries through the issuance of the UIA-Layton 
Bonds in July 2018  (the "Anticipated City Debt") by the Agency. The UIA-Layton Bonds, if 
issued, will be special limited obligations of the Agency payable from revenues derived from 
amounts payable under the service contract entered into between the Agency and Layton City. 
Such amounts will be ultimately secured by Franchise Tax Revenues of Layton City on a parity 
with Layton City's Franchise Tax Obligation. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCHISE 

TAX 
FISCAL FRANCHISE OBLIGATION 
YEAR TAX REVENUES(!) 

2018  and $3,904,354 $937,272 
thereafter 

Source: Layton City and the Municipal Advisor 
(I) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
(2) Sum ofFranchise Tax Obligation and Anticipated City Debt. 
(3) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Total. 

LINDON CITY 

ESTIMATED 
MAXIMUM 

DEBT 
SERVICE ON 

ANTICIPATED TOTAL<2> COVERAGE(3) 

CITY DEBT 

$1,524,500 $2,461,772 1 .59x 

General. Lindon City was incorporated in 1 924 and is located in northern Utah County, 
approximately 3 8 miles south of Salt Lake City. It is bordered by the cities of Orem, Pleasant 
Grove and American Fork, and has an area of approximately eight square miles. 
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Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 201 0  2017 2010/201 7  

Lindon City 8,363 1 0,070 1 0,686 6.12% 
Salt Lake County 898,387 1 ,029,655 1 , 135,649 10.29% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 3,101 ,833 1 1 .88% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

LINDON SALT LAKE nm 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 36 1 .63% 9,841 4.17% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 19 0.86% 4,429 1 .88% 23,292 3.65% 
$ 100,000 to $149,999 53 2.40% 24,965 10.57% 85,390 13.37% 
$ 150,000 to $199,999 138 6.25% 42,857 18.15% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 675 30.58% 72,843 30.85% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 854 38.70% 58,200 24.65% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 410 18.58% 20,236 8.57% 42,228 6.61% 
$1,000,000 or more � 1 .00% 2,776 1 .18% 7,773 1 .22% 

Total 2,207 100.00% 236,147 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $333,900 $234,700 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Y ear Estimates 
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Median Household Income 

LINDON SALT LAKE THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 72 2.72% 15,852 4.45% 42,815 4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 106 4.01% 12,023 3.38% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 66 2.49% 28,074 7.88% 74,51 1  8 .11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 162 6.12% 31 ,089 8.73% 81 ,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 330 12.47% 46,326 13.01% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 395 14.93% 71,375 20.05% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 429 16.21% 53,156 14.93% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 653 24.68% 56,986 16.00% 141, 162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 224 8.47% 20,472 5.75% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more 209 7.90% 20,708 5.82% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 2,646 100.00% 356,061 100.00% 918,367 100.00% 

Median Income $84,417 $ 64,601 $ 42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

FRANCIIlSE 
TAX REVENUES 
RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017  
2016  
2015  
2014 
201 3  

Source: Lindon City and 1he Municipal Advisor 

1,301 ,408 
1,312,423 
1 ,259,381  
1 ,250,990 
1 ,209,024 

(I) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$1,1 13,503. 

-53-

(0.84) 
4.21 
0.67 
3.47 
8.ss<1> 



No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Lindon City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Lindon City has indicated that it 
does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FRANCHISE 
FISCAL FRANCHISE TAX 
YEAR TAX REVENUES(I) OBLIGATION COVERAGE(2) 

2018  and $1,301,408 
thereafter 

Source: Lindon City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 

BRIGHAM CITY 

$172,5 16 7.54x 

General. Brigham City was incorporated in 1 867 and is located in Box Elder County, 
approximately 60 miles north of Salt Lake City. Brigham City encompasses approximately 
23 square miles. 

Population Data 

NAME OF ENTITY 

Brigham City 
Box Elder County 
The State 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 

2000 

17,41 1 
42,745 

2,239,169 

2010  

17,899 
49,975 

2,772,373 
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2017  

18,586 
54,079 

3,101,833 

% CHANGE 
2010/2017  

3.84% 
8.21% 

1 1 .88% 



Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

BRIGHAM BOX ELDER THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 135 3 . 11% 405 3.19% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 215 4.96% 638 5.02% 23,292 3.65% 
$100,000 to $149,999 1 ,696 39.1 1% 3,663 28.85% 85,390 13.37% 
$1 50,000 to $199,999 1,394 32.14% 3,487 27.46% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 731 16.85% 2,964 23.34% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 106 2.44% 1 ,277 10.06% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 32 0.74% 219 1 .72% 42,228 6.61% 
$ 1 ,000,000 or more � 0.65% � 0.35% 7 773 1 .22% 

Total 4,337 100.00% 12,698 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $153,500 $169,200 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Conununity Swvey S· Year Estimates 

Median Household Income 

BRIGHAM BOX ELDER THE 
CITY COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 355 5 .54% 602 3.61% 42,815 4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 361 5.63% 618  3.71% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 567 8.84% 1,399 8.40% 74,5 1 1  8 .11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 856 13.35% 1,821 10.93% 81 ,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 1 ,233 19.23% 2,878 17.28% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 1 ,470 22.93% 3,880 23.30% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 825 12.87% 2,334 14.01% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 532 8.30% 2,273 13.65% 141,162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 151 2.36% 592 3.55% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more __fil 0.2�� � 1.55% 42.��7 4.60% 
Total 6,411  100.00% 16,655 100.00% 918,367 100.00% 

Median Income $47,675 $55,514 $42,247 

Source: U.S. Cemus Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Swvey 5-Year Estimates 
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Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

2017 
2016 
201 5  
2014(!) 

2013<1) 

Source: Brigham City and the Municipal Advisor 

FRANCIDSE 
TAX REVENUES 
RECEIVED ($) 

1,230,038 
1 ,203,869 
1,05 1 , 1 1 7  

740,253 
559,046 

% CHANGE 

2.17 
14.53 
4 1 .99 
32.41 
46.os<2) 

(1) Brigham City increased its Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax rate to 4% effective January I,  2013, and to 6% effective October I,  2014. 
(2) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of$382,772. 

No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Brigham City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Brigham City has indicated that it 
does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

201 8  and 
thereafter 

FRANCJilSE 
TAX REVENUES(!) 

$1 ,230,038 

Source: Brigham City and the Municipal Advisor 
(I) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 
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FRANCJilSE 
TAX 

OBLIGATION 

$31,831 

COVERAGE{2) 

38.64x 



CENTERVILLE CITY 

General. Centerville City was incorporated in 1915.  It covers an area of approximately 
six square miles and is located in Davis County. Centerville City is approximately 12 miles 
north of Salt Lake City and 25 miles south of Ogden City. 

Population Data 

% CHANGE 
NAME OF ENTITY 2000 2010  2017 2010/2017  

Centerville City 14,585 1 5,335 16,727 9.08% 
Davis County 238,994 306,479 347,637 13.43% 
The State 2,233,169 2,772,373 3,101 ,833 1 1 .88% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 

Specified Owner-Occupied Units 

CENTERVILLE DAVIS THE 
CITY COUN1Y STATE 

VALUE NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $50,000 1 14 2.53% 3,197 4.18% 28,603 4.48% 
$50,000 to $99,999 252 5.59% 1,146 1 .50% 23,292 3.65% 
$ 100,000 to $149,999 127 2.82% 7,253 9.49% 85,390 13.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 737 16.34% 15,607 20.42% 127,971 20.03% 
$200,000 to $299,999 1 ,763 39.08% 26,621 34.83% 190,476 29.82% 
$300,000 to $499,999 1,327 29.42% 18, 1 17 23.70% 133,034 20.83% 
$500,000 to $999,999 163 3.61% 3,741 4.89% 42,228 6.61% 
$ 1,000,000 or more � 0.62% _.ill. 0.98% 7.773 1.22% 

Total 4,51 1  100.00% 76,434 100.00% 638,767 100.00% 

Median Value $252,500 $234,300 $224,600 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
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Median Household Income 

CENTERVILLE DAVIS THE 
CI1Y COUNTY STATE 

NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT NUMBER PERCENT 

Under $10,000 182 3.39% 3,422 3.44% 42,815 4.66% 
$10,000 to $14,999 141 2.63% 2,546 2.56% 32,629 3.55% 
$15,000 to $24,999 300 5.59% 5,617 5.65% 74,511  8 .11% 
$25,000 to $34,999 214 3 .99% 6,301 6.33% 81,712 8.90% 
$35,000 to $49,999 575 10.71% 12,043 12.10% 123,987 13.50% 
$50,000 to $74,999 1,066 19.86% 22,096 22.21% 192,479 20.96% 
$75,000 to $99,999 1, 124 20.94% 16,997 17.08% 138,605 15.09% 
$100,000 to $149,999 994 18.52% 19,044 19. 14% 141, 162 15.37% 
$150,000 to $199,999 420 7.82% 6,810 6.84% 48,220 5.25% 
$200,000 or more 352 6.56% 4,619 4.64% 42,247 4.60% 
Total 5,368 100.00% 99,495 100.00% 918,367 100.00% 

Median Income $80,729 $72,661 $42,247 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-YearEstimates 

Franchise Tax Revenue 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

FRANCHISE 
TAX REVENUES 
RECEIVED ($) % CHANGE 

2017 
2016 
2015  
2014(!) 
2013 

Source: Centerville City and the Municipal Advisor 

864,741 
872,627 
858,683 
835,849 
699,287 

(!) Centerville City increased its Municipal Energy Sales and Use Tax rate to 6% during fiscal year 2014. 
(2) Based on the Franchise Tax Revenues Received for FY 2012 of $652, 783. 
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(0.90) 
1 .62 
2.73 

19.53 
7.12<2) 



No Outstanding Franchise Tax Debt. Centerville City does not currently have any 
outstanding obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues. Centerville City has indicated that 
it does not have any current plans to incur any obligations secured by Franchise Tax Revenues 
within the next two years. 

Franchise Tax Coverage Chart 

FISCAL FRANCHISE 
YEAR TAX REVENUES(!) 

2018 and $864,741 
thereafter 

Source: Centerville City and the Municipal Advisor 
(1) Franchise Tax Revenues received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
(2) Franchise Tax Revenues divided by Franchise Tax Obligation. 

FRANCJilSE 
TAX 

OBLIGATION 

$1 86,737 

RISK FACTORS 

COVERAGE(2) 

4.63x 

The purchase of the Series 2018  Bonds involves certain investment risks. Accordingly, 
each prospective purchaser of the Series 201 8  Bonds should make an independent evaluation of 
the entirety of the information presented in this Official Statement and its appendices in order to 
make an informed investment decision. Certain of the investment risks are described below. 
The following statements, however, should not be considered a complete description of all risks 
to be considered in the decision to purchase the Series 201 8  Bonds, nor should the order of the 
presentation of such risks be construed to reflect the relative importance of the various risks. 
There can be no assurance that other risk factors are not material or will not become material in 
the future. 

REVENUE LIMITATIONS 

General. The Series 2018  Bonds are payable solely from and secured by a pledge and 
assignment of the Net Revenues and certain other funds pledged under the Indenture. A variety 
of factors could impact the amount and the sources of Net Revenues and such other funds 
pledged. Among other things, economic conditions, the demand for communication services 
within the boundaries of the Contracting Members, competition from other telecommunications 
providers, technological advances, demographic changes, changes in governmental regulations 
and policies may adversely affect the financial condition of the Agency, and consequently, the 
availability of Net Revenues. Since inception, the Agency has been able to operate without 
requesting or requiring loans pursuant to the Franchise Tax Obligation provisions of the 
Interlocal Agreement to cover operation and maintenance expenses of the Agency and debt 
service on outstanding bonds. For fiscal years 2013-2015, the Agency assessed its Members 
pursuant to the working capital provisions of the lnterlocal Agreement in order to meet necessary 
operational expense obligations of the Agency, including payments to UTOPIA for operational 
expenses of the UTOPIA Network. See "THE AGENCY - Outstanding Bonds and Notes of the 

-59-



Agency." The Agency believes that the UIA Network will continue to operate in a manner that 
will allow it to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses and to pay debt service on the 
Series 201 8  Bonds from Net Revenues. Further, the Agency does not expect any further working 
capital assessments will be required to pay operational expenses of the UTOPIA Network. 
However, no assurance can be given that the Net Revenues will be sufficient to pay debt service 
on the Series 2018  Bonds when due. 

Revenues from Fees. Certain Revenues (other than Franchise Tax Revenues) are 
generated from fees that Contracting Members, service providers or the Agency charge to 
Customers. Unlike other municipal enterprises, such as water and sewer systems or electric 
systems, residents within the Contracting Members are not required to participate in the UIA 
Network. Subscription to the UIA Network by end users is voluntary and may be canceled upon 
request. Therefore, price is more elastic than fees for other municipal enterprise systems and 
cannot be set and sustained at levels that would discourage participation by existing and potential 
Customers. Additionally, although Contracting Members have the ability to establish such fees 
without obtaining approval of any regulatory or other governmental agency, under State law, 
such fees must be deemed reasonable for the service provided. The ultimate determination of 
reasonableness lies with the Utah courts in the event any such fees are challenged. 

Franchise Tax Revenues. The Franchise Tax Revenues for each Contracting Member are 
generated from receipts of Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes. The national and state 
economy, weather conditions and many other factors can affect the level of receipts of such 
Revenues. Additionally, the Agency and the Contracting Members cannot predict whether the 
State Legislature will modify franchise tax rates or distributions or take other actions that affect 
the ability of a Contracting Member to generate Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes. No 
assurance can be given that the Municipal Energy Sales and Use Taxes will remain sufficient to 
meet the Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member. 

Under certain circumstances, the Franchise Tax Obligation of a Contracting Member is 
permitted to be payable on a subordinate basis to a pledge of Franchise Tax Revenues for the 
payment of its City Debt. If a Contracting Member has City Debt outstanding and payable on a 
senior basis with respect to the Franchise Tax Revenues, all such Franchise Tax Revenues will be 
first applied to pay debt service on such City Debt prior to meeting its Franchise Tax Obligation. 
See "CONTRACTING MEMBERS" herein. 

The annual Franchise Tax Obligation of each Contracting Member is limited as set forth 
in the Service Contract. See "NET REVENUES OF TIIB AGENCY-Franchise Tax Obligation" herein. 
Further, each Franchise Tax Obligation is not a joint and several obligation of the Contracting 
Members, and no Contracting Member is obligated to satisfy the Franchise Tax Obligation of any 
other Contracting Member. 

CONSTRUCTION, EXPANSION AND OPERATION OF THE UIA NETWORK 

Construction of the UIA Network commenced in June 201 1 ,  and as of April 30, 2017, 
there were 9,560 active business and residential Customers. Timely construction and expansion 
of the VIA Network is ongoing and is critical to gaining new users and generating additional 
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Revenue. Expansion of the UIA Network involves many risks common to construction projects 
such as shortages or delays in the availability of materials and qualified labor, work stoppages, 
contractual disputes with contractors or suppliers or others, weather interferences, construction 
accidents, delays in obtaining legal approvals, unforeseen engineering, archeological or 
environmental problems and unanticipated cost increases, any of which could give rise to 
significant delays or cost overruns. No assurance can be given that the construction and 
expansion of the UIA Network will be completed in a timely manner or that the cost will not 
exceed available funds of the Agency. Further, future bond issues of the Agency to finance 
capital expansion of the UIA Network are dependent upon sufficient Net Revenues to support the 
payment of debt service on such bonds and other factors and may not be a viable option for the 
Agency. 

The Agency and UTOPIA, as the Agency's contracted operator, are tasked with 
managing, operating and maintaining the UIA Network in an efficient and economical manner 
consistent with prudent telecommunications utility practice. As the UIA Network expands, its 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses may increase, and no assurance can be given that such 
expenses will not exceed available funds of the Agency. The Agency is exempt from regulation 
by the Utah Public Service Commission ( "PSC"), but the operation of the UIA Network is 
subject to various other governmental rules and regulations. If the UIA Network is not operating 
or operable as required by State law, the Agency may be subject to certain penalties or other 
remedies. In addition, service providers who utilize the UIA Network may be subject to 
regulation by the PSC, and any noncompliance by such service providers could negatively affect 
the operation of the UIA Network. 

The success of the UIA Network will depend in part on its continued ability to attract 
qualified service providers who can meet the changing needs of the citizens of the Members. 
The Agency will continue to focus its expansion and marketing efforts to potential users with the 
highest likelihood of using the UIA Network. Although the Agency believes the continued 
construction, expansion and operation of the UIA Network is feasible, such conclusion is based 
upon certain assumptions and the realization of certain events, including its continued ability to 
attract Customers, which may or may not occur. 

COMPETITION 

There is significant competition in the Utah telecommunications market. While the 
Agency believes that the UIA Network currently offers competitive pricing and certain distinct 
technological advantages, competing telecommunications providers utilize greater name 
recognition, financial resources and marketing services to compete for users. Additionally, 
certain competitors offer some services at lower prices than service providers utilizing the UIA 
Network. There can be no assurance that the Agency or its service providers will have the 
financial resources or management expertise to continue to compete effectively for customers in 
the future. 

Advances in internet, data, television, telephone and related technology may occur at a 
very rapid pace. There can be no assurance that future advances in technology implemented by 
existing competitors or others will not render the services provided by the service providers of 
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the combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks noncompetitive. Additionally, future advances in 
technology could render the VIA Network or the UTOPIA Network (or portions thereof) 
obsolete. 

DESTRUCTION OF TIIB NETWORK 

The Indenture requires that the Agency, in its operation of the UIA Network, maintain 
insurance in such amounts and to such extent as is normally carried by other operating public 
utilities of the same size and type. In the event of any loss or damage, the Indenture requires that 
the proceeds of any such insurance be used first to restore or replace the property lost or 
damaged. Any remaining insurance proceeds are to be paid into the Bond Fund. There can be 
no assurance that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to restore or replace the 
lost or damaged property of the Agency. 

Pursuant to the issuance of the UTOPIA Bonds (hereinafter defined). UTOPIA is required 
to maintain similar insurance, and in the event of any loss or damage, such insurance proceeds 
would be used first to restore or replace the property lost or damaged. There can be no assurance 
that the proceeds of any such insurance will be sufficient to restore or replace the lost or 
damaged property of UTOPIA. 

The infrastructure of the UIA Network and the UTOPIA Network is regionally diverse 
and widely distributed. However, any damage to or destruction of any portions of the UIA 
Network or the UTOPIA Network may prevent the Agency from providing telecommunications 
services to some or all of its service providers. In such event, the Revenues of the Agency may 
decrease. 

RELIANCE ON UTOPIA 

The Agency entered into the UTOPIA Service Agreement and the IRU Agreement to 
advance the Agency's objective of providing high-speed telecommunications facilities to its 
Members and to capitalize on the economies of scale that can be achieved by connecting the 
VIA Network to the UTOPIA Network. Although the UIA Network could connect to many other 
networks other than the UTOPIA Network, no other fiber optic networks have the physical 
proximity to the homes that the Agency intends to connect to the UIA Network, and the costs of 
connecting to different networks would be prohibitive. 

UTOPIA undertook the acquisition and construction of the UTOPIA Network in 2004 
and financed and refinanced such acquisition and construction with the issuance of bonds that are 
secured both by revenues of the UTOPIA Network and by a sales tax pledge of certain of 
UTOPIA's members. Although the UTOPIA Network is operational and generating revenues, 
the revenues have previously been insufficient to pay operational expenses and meet debt service 
requirements of the UTOPIA Bonds. However, there has been no payment default of debt 
service on the UTOPIA Bonds. 

As of June 30, 2017, UTOPIA has outstanding revenue bonds in the aggregate amount of 
$183,699,173, comprised of $109,289,038 Tax-Exempt Adjustable Rate Telecommunications 
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and Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 201 IA (the "UTOPIA Series 201 JA Bonds"), 
and $74,410,135 Taxable Adjustable Rate Telecommunications and Sales Tax Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 201 1B (the "UTOPIA Series 2011B Bonds, and together with the 
UTOPIA Series 201 1A Bonds, the "UTOPIA Bonds"). The original principal amount of the 
UTOPIA Series 201 IA Bonds was $ 1 10,000,000, and the original principal amount of the 
UTOPIA Series 201 l B  Bonds was $75,000,000. The final maturity date of the UTOPIA Bonds 
is June I,  2040. KeyBank National Association is the owner of the UTOPIA Series 201 IA 
Bonds, and Bank of America National Association is  the owner of the UTOPIA Series 201 1 B  
Bonds. UTOPIA has two derivative contracts that hedge against variable interest rate volatility 
by matching the required pledged revenues of its member cities to the cash flow required for the 
debt service on the UTOPIA Bonds and the associated derivative contracts. The derivative 
contracts effectively fix the interest rate for the UTOPIA Series 201 IA Bonds at 4.984% and for 
the UTOPIA Series 201 l B  Bonds at 5.665%. KeyBank National Association is the counterparty 
on the derivative contract related to the UTOPIA Series 201 lA Bonds; Bank of America 
National Association is the counterparty on the derivative contract related to the UTOPIA Series 
201 lB Bonds. UTOPIA also has notes payable to its members cities in the approximate amount 
of $83,853,023, reflecting member city contributions to pay the UTOPIA Bonds. The notes are 
payable on a subordinate basis to the UTOPIA Bonds. 

The Agency is not responsible for paying debt service on the UTOPIA Bonds or its other 
outstanding obligations. If UTOPIA is unable to meet its financial obligations as they become 
due, its continued ability to operate the UTOPIA Network could be impacted. Any disruption or 
inability of UTOPIA to operate the UTOPIA Network would likely have a material adverse 
impact on the ability of the Agency to meet its customer and financial obligations. 

Without sufficient moneys to operate, the UTOPIA Network could terminate, which 
would likely cause a shut-down of the UIA Network. In the event of a shut-down of the UIA 
Network following the termination of the UTOPIA Network or otherwise, amounts payable by 
Contracting Members under the Service Contract are required to continue to be paid; however, 
there can be no assurance that such amounts will be sufficient to pay debt service on the 
Series 201 8  Bonds after other required expenses have been paid. 

CYBERSECURITY 

The risk of cyberattacks against commercial enterprises, including those operated for a 
governmental purpose, has become more prevalent in recent years. At least one of the rating 
agencies factors the risk of such an attack into its ratings analysis, recognizing that a cyberattack 
could affect liquidity, public policy and constituent confidence, and ultimately credit quality. A 
cyberattack could cause the lJIA Network or the UTOPIA Network to cease or limit operational 
capacity, for short or extended lengths of time. Additionally, other potential negative 
consequences include data loss or compromise, diversion of resources to prevent future 
incidences and reputational damage resulting in loss of future revenues. To date, the Agency has 
not experienced a successful cyberattack. The Agency believes it has made all reasonable efforts 
to ensure that any such attack is not successful and that the UIA Network and the UTOPIA 
Network will not see any loss of service to Customers or other consequences. However, there 
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can be no assurance that a cyberattack will not occur in a manner resulting in damage to the UIA 
Network or the UTOPIA Network or other challenges. 

FUTIJRE CHANGES IN LAWS 

Various state and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the 
Agency, UTOPIA, each respective network, the Members and the Series 2018  Bonds. Future 
actions of State or federal legislatures may affect the overall financial conditions of the Agency 
or its ability to continue to collect revenues for its ongoing operations. The Agency can give no 
assurance that there will not be a change in, interpretation of or addition to such applicable laws, 
provisions and regulations that would have a material effect on the finances of the Agency, its 
corporate existence or its ability to offer advanced telecommunications services, collect revenues 
or attract service providers and customers. 

LIMITED REMEDIES 

The remedies of the Series 2018  Bondholders upon an Event of Default under the 
Indenture are limited. See "APPENDIX B-Extracts of Certain Provisions of the Indenture­
Remedies." Under the Indenture, there is no contractual remedy of acceleration. Further, the 
legal right and ability of a Series 201 8  Bondholder to enforce its rights and remedies under the 
Indenture may be limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 
or other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights. In addition, a Series 201 8  
Bondholder's ability to enforce such rights and remedies may require judicial actions that are 
often subject to discretion and delay or that otherwise may not be readily available or may be 
limited. 

WITHDRAW AL OR CHANGE OF BOND RATING 

The Series 2018  Bonds have received a credit rating from Fitch Ratings, Inc., New York, 
New York ( "Fitch "). The rating can be changed or withdrawn at any time for reasons both 
under and outside the Agency's control. Any change or withdrawal of any rating on the 
Series 2018  Bonds could adversely affect the ability of investors to sell the Series 201 8  Bonds or 
may affect the price at which they can be sold. 

SECONDARY MARKET FOR TIIE BONDS 

No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale 
of the Series 201 8  Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Series 2018  Bonds can be 
sold for any particular price. The Underwriter is not obligated to engage in secondary market 
trading or to repurchase any of the Series 2018  Bonds at the request of the owners thereof. 

Prices of the Series 201 8  Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to 
adjustment upward and downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other 
circumstances. No guarantee exists as to the future market value of the Series 2018  Bonds. 
Such market value could be substantially different from the original purchase price. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

A failure by the Agency to comply with its Continuing Disclosure Undertaking with 
respect to the Series 2018 Bonds (see "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE " herein) will not constitute an 
event of default on the Series 2018 Bonds. Any failure of the Agency's obligations under the 
Undertaking must be reported in accordance with Rule 1 5c2-12 (the "Rule ") adopted by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission ") under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and may adversely affect the transferability and 
liquidity of the Series 201 8  Bonds and their market price. 

SUITABILITY OF INVESTMENT 

The interest rate borne by the Series 201 8  Bonds is intended to compensate the investor 
for assuming the risk of investing in the Series 201 8  Bonds. Furthermore, the tax-exempt feature 
of the Series 201 8  Bonds is currently more valuable to high tax bracket investors than· to 
investors that are in low tax brackets. As such, the value of the interest compensation to any 
particular investor will vary with individual tax rates and circumstances. Each prospective 
investor should carefully examine this Official Statement and its own financial condition to make 
a judgment as to its ability to bear the economic risk of such an investment and whether or not 
the Series 201 8  Bonds are an appropriate investment for such investor. 

FACTORS RELATING TO TAX EXEMPTION 

As discussed under "TAX MATTERS" herein, interest on the Series 201 8  Bonds could 
become includible in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, retroactive to the 
date the Series 20 1 8  Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the Agency in 
violation of its covenants in the Indenture. Should such an event of taxability occur, the 
Series 201 8  Bonds are not subject to any special redemption. 

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals 
relating to the federal tax treatment of interest on the Series 201 8  Bonds, including some that 
carry retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could affect the market value of the Series 201 8  
Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or 
whether, if enacted, it would apply to Series 201 8  Bonds issued prior to enactment. Finally, 
reduction or elimination of the tax-exempt status of obligations such as the Series 20 1 8  Bonds 
could have an adverse effect on the Agency's ability to access the capital markets to finance 
future capital or operational needs by reducing market demand for such obligations or materially 
increasing borrowing costs of the Agency. 

The tax-exempt bond office of the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service ") is 
conducting audits of tax-exempt bonds, both compliance checks and full audits, with increasing 
frequency to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt 
obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax 
purposes. It cannot be predicted whether the Service will commence any such audit. If an audit 
is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the Agency as a taxpayer and the 
Series 201 8  Bondholders may have no right to participate in such proceeding. The 
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commencement of an audit with respect to any tax-exempt obligations of the Agency could 
adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Series 2018  Bonds, regardless of the 
ultimate outcome. 

BOND RATING 

Fitch has assigned the Series 20 1 8  Bonds a credit rating of .. BBB-" (Stable Outlook). 
This rating reflects only the views of such organization and any explanation of the significance 
of such rating may only be obtained from the rating agency. Certain information concerning the 
Series 201 8  Bonds and the Agency not included in this Official Statement may have been 
furnished to Fitch by the Agency. There is no assurance that the rating will be maintained for 
any given period of time or that it may not be changed by Fitch if, in such rating agency's 
judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward change in or withdrawal of the rating may 
have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 2018  Bonds. 

Except as may be required by the Undertaking described below under the heading 
"CONTINUING DISCLOSURE," neither the Agency nor the Underwriter undertakes responsibility to 
bring to the attention of the owners of the Series 2018  Bonds any proposed change m or 
withdrawal of any rating or to oppose any such change or withdrawal. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Agency will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking'') for 
the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds to send certain information annually and to 
provide notice of certain events to the MSRB pursuant to the requirements of the Rule. No 
person, other than the Agency, has undertaken, or is otherwise expected, to provide continuing 
disclosure with respect to the Series 2018  Bonds. At present, such dissemination is made 
through the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system, referred to as EMMA 
( "EMMA ''). The Agency is required to deliver such information within 210 days after the last 
day of the Agency's fiscal year (currently June 30), beginning with the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2018. The information to be provided on an annual basis, the events which will be noticed 
on an occurrence basis and a statement of other terms of the Undertaking, including termination, 
amendment and remedies, are set forth in "APPENDIX D - Form of Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking." 

Although the Agency timely filed its audited financ1ai statements in connection with 
previously executed undertakings, it failed to timely file a notice of reportable event related to an 
S&P underlying rating upgrade that occurred on May 31 ,  2013. Such notice was filed on 
November 13, 2017. During the past five years, there have been numerous rating actions 
reported by Moody's Investors and Standard & Poor's Rating Corporation affecting the municipal 
bond insurance companies, including Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. ( "AGM"), which had 
insured obligations previously issued by the Agency. Notice regarding rating actions involving 
AGM was filed on EMMA on November 1 3, 2017. The Agency has retained the Trustee to act 
as the Agency's Dissemination Agent to assist the Agency with future compliance with its 
continuing disclosure filing obligations. 

-66-



TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of the material foderal and State income tax consequences of 
holding and disposing of the Series 2018 Bonds. This summary is based upon laws, regulations, 
rulings and judicial decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to change (possibly on a 
retroactive basis). This summary does not discuss all aspects of federal income taxation that may 
be relevant to investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or describe the tax 
consequences to certain types of owners subject to special treatment under the federal income tax 
laws (for example, dealers in securities or other persons who do not hold the Series 201 8  Bonds 
as a capital asset, tax-exempt organizations, individual retirement accounts and other tax deferred 
accounts, and foreign taxpayers), and, except for the income tax laws of the State of Utah, does 
not discuss the consequences to an owner under any state, local or foreign tax laws. The 
summary does not deal with the tax treatment of persons who purchase the Series 2018  Bonds in 
the secondary market. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors 
regarding federal, state, local and other tax considerations of holding and disposing of the 
Series 201 8  Bonds. 

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to the Agency, under the law 
currently existing as of the issue date of the Series 2018  Bonds: 

Federal Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2018 Bonds properly allocable to an 
owner thereof) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Alternative Minimum Tax. The interest on the Series 2018  Bonds is not an item of tax 
preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax. 

State Tax Exemption. The interest on the Series 2018  Bonds is exempt from State 
individual income taxes. 

Bond Counsel's opinions are provided as of the date of the original issue of the 
Series 201 8  Bonds, subject to the condition that the Agency comply with all requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code "), that must be satisfied subsequent to 
the issuance of the Series 2018  Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Agency has covenanted to 
comply with all such requirements. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may 
cause the inclusion of interest on the Series 201 8  Bonds in gross income for federal income tax 
purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 201 8  Bonds. 

No 0TIIER OPINION 

Bond Counsel is expressing no op1mon regarding other federal, state or local tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Series 2018  Bonds, except as expressly provided herein. 
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OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES 

Original Issue Premium. For federal income tax purposes, premium is the excess of the 
issue price of a Series 2018 Bond over its stated redemption price at maturity. 

The issue price of a Series 20 1 8  Bond is generally the first price at which a substantial 
amount of the Series 2018 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. Under 
Section 171 of the Code, premium on tax-exempt bonds amortizes over the term of the 
Series 201 8  Bond using constant yield principles, based on the purchaser's yield to maturity. As 
premium is amortized, the owner's basis in the Series 20 1 8  Bond and the amount of tax-exempt 
interest received will be reduced by the amount of amortizable premium properly allocable to the 
owner, which will result in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for 
federal income tax purposes on sale or disposition of the Series 201 8  Bond prior to its maturity. 
Even though the owner's basis is reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed. 
Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors concerning the calculation and 
accrual of bond premium. 

Sale, Exchange or Retirement of Bonds. Upon the sale, exchange or retirement 
(including redemption) of a Series 2018 Bond, an owner of the Series 2018 Bond generally will 
recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash and the 
fair market value of any property received on the sale, exchange or retirement of the Series 201 8  
Bond (other than in respect of accrued and unpaid interest) and such owner's adjusted tax basis 
in the Series 2018 Bond. To the extent a Series 201 8  Bond is held as a capital asset, such gain or 
loss will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or lossifthe Series 2018 Bond 
has been held for more than 12 months at the time of sale, exchange or retirement. 

Reporting Requirements. In general, information reporting requirements will apply to 
certain payments of principal, interest and premium paid on the Series 2018 Bonds, and to the 
proceeds paid on the sale of the Series 201 8  Bonds, other than certain exempt recipients (such as 
corporations and foreign entities). A backup withholding tax will apply to such payments if the 
owner fails to provide a taxpayer identification number or certification of foreign or other 
exempt status or fails to report in full dividend and interest income. The amount of any backup 
withholding from a payment to an owner will be allowed as a credit against the owner's federal 
income tax liability. 

Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Series 201 8  
Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Series 201 8  Bonds may result in collateral federal 
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial 
institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security 
or Railroad Retirement benefits, certain S corporations with "excess net passive income," foreign 
corporations subject to the branch profits tax, life insurance companies, and taxpayers who may 
be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry or have paid or 
incurred certain expenses allocable to the Series 201 8  Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no 
opinion regarding these tax consequences. Purchasers of Series 20 1 8  Bonds should consult their 
tax advisors as to the applicability of these tax consequences and other federal income tax 
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consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 201 8  Bonds, including the 
possible application of state, local, foreign and other tax laws. 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The audited financial statements of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 7  
(the ''Audit"), contained in Appendix A, including the independent auditor's report 
accompanying the Audit, have been prepared by Keddington & Christensen, LLC, Salt Lake 
City, Utah (the "Auditor'). The Agency has not requested the Auditor to update information 
contained in the Audit. The Agency has received consent to the use of the Audit by the Auditor 
in this Official Statement. Other than as expressly set forth in this Official Statement, the 
financial information contained in the Audit has not been updated since the date of the Audit. 
The inclusion of the Audit in this Official Statement in and of itself is not intended to 
demonstrate the fiscal condition of the Agency since the date of the Audit. Specific questions or 
inquiries relating to the fmancial information of the Agency since the date of the Audit should be 
directed to the Secretary!freasurer of the Agency. 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 201 8  Bonds. The Series 2018  Bonds 
will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. One fully-registered Series 2018 Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of each 
series of the Series 201 8  Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity and will be 
deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of 
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" 
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 7 A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds and 
provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate 
and municipal debt issues and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's 
participants ( "Direct Participants '') deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. 
Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ( "DTCC"). DTCC is the holding 
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its 
regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. 
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations 
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or 
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indirectly ( "Indirect Participants"). DTC has an S&P Global Ratings rating of "AA+". The 
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Commission. More information 
about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Series 201 8  Bonds on DTC's records. The 
ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Series 201 8  Bond ( "Beneficial Owner '') is in 
turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not 
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, 
expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic 
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2018  Bonds 
are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their 
ownership interests in Series 2018 Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system 
for the Series 2018  Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2018  Bonds deposited by Direct Participants 
with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other 
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 2018  
Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee 
do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual 
Beneficial Owners of the Series 2018  Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the 
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 201 8  Bonds are credited, which may or may 
not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for 
keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may 
wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with 
respect to the Series 201 8  Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults and proposed 
amendments to the Series 2018  Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 
Series 2018  Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 201 8  Bonds for 
their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, 
Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar and request 
that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Series 2018 Bonds within 
an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of 
each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Series 2018  Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with 
DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the 
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Agency as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s 
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series 201 8  Bonds 
are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the Series 2018  Bonds will 
be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authoriz.ed 
representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's 
receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the Agency or Registrar, on 
payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments 
by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of OTC, the 
Registrar, or the Agency, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to 
Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC) is the responsibility of the Agency or the Registrar, disbursement of such payments to 
Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 201 8  
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Agency or the Registrar. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Series 2018  Bond 
certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The Agency may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Series 2018  Bond certificates will be 
printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been 
obtained from DTC, and the Agency takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

The Agency will have no responsibility or obligation to any Securities Depository, any 
Participants in the Book-Entry System or the Beneficial Owners with respect to (a) the accuracy 
of any records maintained by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (b) the payment by the 
Securities Depository or by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in 
respect of the principal amount or redemption price of, or interest on, any Series 2018  Bonds; 
(c) the delivery of any notice by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (d) the selection of 
the Beneficial Owners to receive payment in the event of any partial redemption of the 
Series 2018  Bonds; or ( e) any other action taken by the Securities Depository or any Participant. 
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CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS 

ABSENCE OF LITIGATION 

The City Attorney of Layton City, Utah, Issuer's Counsel to the Agency, will issue an 
opinion dated the date of closing that will state, among other things, that there is no action, suit, 
proceeding, inquiry or any other litigation or investigation at law or in equity, before or by any 
court, public board or body, which is pending or threatened, (a) challenging the creation, 
organization or existence of the Agency; (b) challenging the titles of its directors or officers to 
their respective offices; ( c) contesting the validity of the Interlocal Agreement, Service Contract 
or Service Provider Agreements; ( d) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of 
the Series 2018  Bonds; ( e) directly or indirectly contesting or affecting the proceedings or the 
authority by which the Series 201 8  Bonds are issued; (f) contesting the validity of the 
Series 2018 Bonds or the issuance thereof, or (g) which if determined adversely to the Agency 
would have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition of the Agency or its ability to 
meet the debt service requirements on the Series 2018  Bonds. 

GENERAL 

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Series 201 8  
Bonds are subject to the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel. Bond Counsel has reviewed 
this Official Statement and is of the view that statements or summaries of the matters set forth 
therein insofar as such statements purport to summarize the terms of the Series 201 8  Bonds, the 
Bond Resolution, the Indenture and the tax status of the Series 2018  Bonds are accurate in all 
material respects. 

Chapman and Cutler LLP, Salt Lake City, Utah ( "Chapman and Cutler"), has been 
retained by the Underwriter to serve as Underwriter's Counsel with respect to the Series 201 8  
Bonds. Although as Underwriter's Counsel, Chapman and Cutler has assisted the Underwriter 
with certain disclosure matters, Chapman and Cutler has not undertaken to independently verify 
the accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Official Statement or other offering material 
related to the Series 201 8  Bonds and does not guarantee the accuracy, completeness or fairness 
of such information. Chapman and Cutler's engagement as Underwriter's Counsel was 
undertaken to assist the Underwriter in discharging its responsibility with respect to the Official 
Statement, and not for the benefit of any person purchasing Series 201 8  Bonds from the 
Underwriter, and did not include any obligation to establish or confinn factual matters, forecasts, 
projections, estimates or any other financial or economic information in connection therewith. 
Further, Chapman and Cutler makes no representation as to the suitability of the Series 2018  
Bonds for investment by any investor. 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah (the "Municipal 
Advisor"), has been employed as an independent municipal advisor to the Agency in connection 
with the issuance of the Series 2018  Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has not independently 
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verified any of the information contained in this Official Statement and makes no representation 
to the owners or purchasers of the Series 201 8  Bonds as to their completeness or accuracy. The 
Municipal Advisor's fee for services rendered with respect to the Series 2018 Bonds is 
contingent upon the delivery of such Series 20 1 8  Bonds. Lewis Young Robertson & 
Burningham, Inc. also serves as municipal advisor to UTOPIA. 

UNDERWRITING 

Pursuant to the terms of a Bond Purchase Agreement (the "Bond Purchase Agreement") 
between the Agency and KeyBanc Capital Markets, Inc., Chicago, Illinois (the "Underwriter''), 
the Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Series 201 8  Bonds at an aggregate purchase price of 
$23,965,406.00 (representing the principal amount of the Series 201 8  Bonds plus original issue 
premium of$2,323,343.00 and less Underwriter's discount of $1 67,937.00). 

The Bond Purchase Agreement provides that the obligation of the Underwriter is subject 
to certain conditions precedent and that the Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all of the 
Series 2018 Bonds if any of the Series 201 8 Bonds are purchased. The Series 2018 Bonds may 
be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such Series 2018 Bonds into 
investment trusts, accounts or funds) and others at prices different than the initial public offering 
price. After the initial public offering, the public offering price of the Series 2018 Bonds may be 
changed from time to time by the Underwriter. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG TIIE PARTIES 

In other transactions .or pursuant to other programs of the Agency not related to the 
Series 201 8  Bonds, each of the law firms and attorneys identified under the heading "CERTAIN 
LEGAL MATTERS" may have represented, or may be representing, the Agency, a Member, the 
Underwriter or UTOPIA in capacities different from those in connection with the issuance of the 
Series 2018 Bonds. Potential purchasers of the Series 201 8  Bonds should not assume that the 
Agency, any Member, UTOPIA, the Underwriter, the Municipal Advisor and the Trustee, or their 
respective counsel, have not previously engaged in, are not presently engaged in, or will not after 
the issuance of the Series 201 8  Bonds engage in, other transactions with each other or with any 
affiliates of any of them, and no assurance can be given that there are or will be no past, present 
or future relationships or transactions between or among any of these parties or the law firms or 
attorneys referenced herein. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

References to statutes, the Series 201 8  Bonds, the Indenture, the Bond Resolution, the 
Interlocal Agreement, the IRU Agreement, the UTOPIA Service Agreement, the Service 
Contract, the Service Provider Agreements, the Bond Purchase Agreement and other documents 
contained in this Official Statement may have been intended as summaries of certain provisions 
thereof and in such cases do not purport to be definitive or comprehensive, and all references 
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thereto are qualified in their entirety by reference to the actual statutes and documents. 
Statements herein involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, 
are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of 
the estimates will be realized. Neither this Official Statement nor any statement that may have 
been made orally or in writing is to be construed as, and is not, a contract with the owners of the 
Series 2018  Bonds. 

The attached Appendices A through E are integral parts of this Official Statement and 
should be read in their entirety together with all of the foregoing information. 
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AUTHORIZATION 

This Official Statement has been approved by the Agency for distribution to prospective 
purchasers of the Series 201 8  Bonds. The Board, acting through authorized officers, will 
provide to the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the Series 2018 Bonds, a certificate 
confirming that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, this Official Statement, together with any 
supplements thereto, at the time of the execution of the Agreement, and at the time of delivery of 
the Series 201 8  Bonds, was true and correct in all material respects and did not at any time 
contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated 
where necessary to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances under which they 
were made, not misleading. 

DATED: June 26, 201 8 .  

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

By___...__&;----"--�------
Chief Executive Officer 
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APPENDIX A 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Utah Inftastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Keddingtoa & Christensen, LLC 
C ertificd Public Accountants 

Ciuy I( K<.'ddingtun, C:l'i\ 
Phyl It. Wum1..:k, Ci>A 
M:ln:us K. Arhuclcl.i, CPA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and f� presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective fmancial position of Utah Infrastructure Agency as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes 
in its financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

· 

Telephone (801) 590-2600 
Fax (801) 265-9405 

1 1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary lnfonnation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of fmancial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
,. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15, 
2017 on our consideration of UIA' s internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering UIA's internal control over fmancial reporting and 
compliance. 

November 15, 2017 
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Introduction 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) financial activities for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 

Description of Business 
The Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) is a political subdivision of the State of Utah and was created in 
June 2010. Nine cities created the agency {Brigham City, Centerville City, Layton City, Lindon City, 
Midvale City, Murray City, Orem City, Payson City and West Valley City). 

The UIA network is a fiber optic network providing high-speed broadband voice, video and data access. 
This networlc includes fiber optic lines, transmitters, power sources and backups, switches and access 
portals. The networlc operates as a wholesale network, under an open-access model, whlch is available to 
all qualified service providers. The open-access aspect means subscn'bers-both residents and businesses­
have real choice for their broadband needs and can choose the provider and options that worlc best for them. 

Eight of the member cities (all except Payson City) pledged franchise tax revenues as partial loan guarantees 
in order to secure financing for the network. These cities have approved up to $65 million in bonds for the 
construction of the UIA network. 

The UIA network is connected to the UTOPIA fiber optic network pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use 
Agreement (IRU) between UIA and UTOPIA, which grants UIA access to certain facilities of and capacity 
in the UTOPIA network. The UTOPIA networlc provides telecommunications services, support and 
management services as well as crucial infrastructure for the UIA networlc. The synergy provided by UIA's 
partnership with UTOPIA allows both organizations to provide their citizens a state-of-tho-art broadband 
network. The project is facilitating economic development throughout UTOPIA member cities. Where the 
network is completed, residents and businesses have access to the fastest internet in the coun1Iy. 
Twenty five service providers-Including First Digital, SumoFiber, Verracity, Windstream, and 
XMission,-were actively providing services and a total of 1 6,479 homes and businesses had subscribed 
to services at year end on the UTOPIA/UIA network. Future growth of the network will be largely demand­
based, bringing the networlc first to those areas that will bring the best return on investment. UIA continues 
to make significant progress towards the project's original mission: to build and maintain a fiber network 
to service all of the businesses and residents in UTOPIA's member cities. 

As of the end of June, 2017, more than 3,266 miles of fiber cable have been placed within the boundaries 
of the eleven members cities. Within footprints serviced by 158 hut sites, there are approximately 87,000 
addresses, of which approximately 72,000 are able to receive services. The remaining addresses are located 
in apartment buildings, condominium developments, or in areas isolated by right-of-way or pole access 
issues. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Highlights 
Financial highlights include: 

• Net Position ofUIA increased $2,433,466 from the prior year. 
• UIA's revenues increased $ 1,366,246 from the prior year. 

Overview of Financial Statements 
The financial statements included in this report have been prepared in compliance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The balance sheet provides information about the Agency's resources and 
obligations at year end. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the results 
of business activities during the course of the year. The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash 
and cash equivalents, resulting from operational and investing activities. Notes to the financial statements 
provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to the full understanding of material 
data provided in the statements. The notes present information about UIA's accounting policies, significant 
account balances, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events. 

Operating revenues of$7.7 million exceeded budget by about $400,000. Total operating expense (expenses 
excluding interest and depreciation) was $ 18,000 below budget. Operating profit (EBITDA) for the year 
was $617,000 better than budgeted. The net profit for the year was $2.4 Million, which was better than 
budget by $ 1 .44 million. 

Table 1 - Summary of the Agency's Statement ofNet Position. 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-tenn liabilities outstanding 

Total Liabilities 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Net Position 

$ 

$ 

4 

2017 

20,851,428 
53,105,833 

73,957,261 

3,962,297 
65,394,455 

69,356,752 

2,076,379 
8,373,657 

(5,849,527) 

4,600,509 

$ 

$ 

2016 

33,436,162 
40,629,150 

74,065,312 

3,310,822 
68,587,447 

71,898,269 

2,763,232 
24,837,438 

(25,433,627) 

2,167,043 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Table 2 - Summary of the Agency's Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Revenues: 
Operating revenues 
Interest income 
Other revenues 

Total Revenues 

Elcpenditures: 
Marketing 
Professional services 
Network operations 
Depreciation 
Bond interest and fees 

Total F.Jq>enditures 

Oiange in net position 

Total net position, beginning of year 

Total net position, end of year 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

s 

$ 

2017 2016 

9,055,560 $ 7,689,314 
491,518 386,958 
376,682 247,294 

9,923,760 8,323,5(>6 

323,884 231,039 
138,352 97,680 
704,047 420,302 

3,549,885 3,002,055 
2,774,126 2,993,006 

7,490,294 617441082 

2,433,466 1,579,484 

2,167,043 587,559 

4,600,509 $ 2,167,043 

UIA's capital assets, net of depreciation, were $53. 1  million. Types of assets include outside plant (fiber 
and conduit), inside plant (electronics), customer premise equipment, construction in progress and a 
capitalized lease (IRU). 

As of June 30, 2017, UIA's outstanding debt amounted to $67.7 million. This is comprised of the revenue 
bonds and the capitalized IRU note payable. 

Table 3 - Summary ofUIA's Capital Assets at June 30, 2017: 

Construction in progress $ 
Lmd 
Building 
Furniture and equipment 
Outside plant 
Inside plant 
Customer premise equipm=nt 
Intangible right 

$ 

5 

2017 

749,640 
500,000 

2,oso,m 
687,599 

26,305,279 
2,468,854 
6,379,936 

13,933,752 

53,105,833 

2016 

$ 109,706 

18,780,8S4 
2,048,731 
5,081,871 

14,607,988 

$ 40,629,150 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Table 4 - Summary ofUIA's Debt at June 30, 2017: 

Revenue bonds payable 
Capital leases 
Notes payable 

Contacting UIA's Financial Management 

2017 

$ 62,236,416 
1,652,574 

3,835,636 

$ 67, 724,61Jj 

2016 

s 64,007,701 
3,428,164 

3,417,291 

$ 70,853, 156 

This financial report is designed to provide interested readers with a general overview of UIA' s financial 
position and to demonstrate accountability. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, 
Utah Infrastructure Agency, 5858 S 900 E Murray, UT 84121. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash 
Trade receivables, net 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Notes receivable 
Restricted cash equivalents 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Notes receivable 
Capital Assets: 

Construction in progress 
Land 
Assets, net of accumulated depreciation: 

Building 
Furiture and equipment 
Fiber optic network 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities:  
Accounts payable 
Accrued 1ia bilities 
Interest payable from restricted assets 
Capital leases payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Unearned revenue 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Capital leases payable 
Note payable 
Revenue bonds payable 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Future development 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

6,185,494 
1,01 1,553 
1,240,161 

17,210 
218,007 

8,970,264 
17,642,689 

3,208,739 

749,640 
500,000 

2,080,773 
687,599 

49,087,821 

56,314,572 

731957J;.61 

957,025 
68,819 

596,607 
640,171 

1,690,000 
9,675 

3,962,297 

1,012,403 
3,835,636 

60,546,416 
69,356,752 

2,076,379 

2,559,705 
5,813,952 

!52849227l 
4!600!509 

731957J;.61 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Operating Revenues: 
Access fees 
Installathns 
RecOMections 
Miscellaneous operating revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Marketing 
Professional services 
Network 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 
Installation related capital contribuOOns 
Bond interest and fees 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Change In Net Position 

Total Net Position, Beginning ofYear 

Total Net Position, End ofYear 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 7,078,457 
123,933 

1,813,818 
39,352 

9,055,560 

323,884 
138,352 
704,047 

3,549,885 

4,716,168 

4,339292 

491,518 
376,682 

(21774,12� 

(11905,92� 

2,433,466 

211671043 

$ 416001509 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 

Net cas b prol'idtd by operating activities 

Cash Flows From CaptaJ and Related Financing Activities: 
Purchase ofcapital assets 
Proceeds from installations 
Bond interest and fees 
Proceeds from issuance of new bonds 
Principal paid on bonds 
Principal paid on capital leases payabl.e 

Net cash used by captaJ and related financing activities 

Cash Flows From Non-Captal Financing Activities: 
Proceeds from notes payable addition 

Net cash &rol'idtd by non-captal financing aetivites 

Cash Flows From Investing Aethity: 
Interest income 

Net cash prol'idtd by investing activity 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash F.quiwlents 

Cash and Cash F.quiwlents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash F.quivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of operating Ion to net cash from operating aetil'ities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
from operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 

(Increase) decrease in assets related to operations 
Trade receivables, net 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 
Note receivable related to operating revenues 

Increase {decrease) in liabilities related to operations 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned Revenue 

Net Cash Prmidtd by Operating Activities 

SulJPementlll Information 

Non cash Inws ting, CaptaJ, and Financing Activities: 

Additions to capital assets includes inventory of $2,519,101. 
Additions to capital assets include change to discount on lease of $50,810. 
Additions to capital assets includes capitali2£d interest of$18,656. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 8,568,981 

�314701676l 
5,098,305 

{13,507,467) 
395,222 

(2,867,720) 

{l,645,000) 
{l,775,590) 

(19,400,555) 

376,321 

376,321 

491,518 

491 518 

(13,434,411) 

28,590,169 

$ 15,155,758 

$ 4,339,39'2 

3,549,885 

(519,850) 
{17,210) 

(2,873,854) 
23,596 

547,038 
39,633 
9,675 

$ 51098,305 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 SUM.1\'.IARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 
Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA), a separate legal entity and political subdivision of the State 
of Utah, was formed on July 29, 2010, by an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement pursuant to the 
provisions of the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act. UIA's Interlocal Cooperative Agreement has 
a term of five years, and is renewable every year thereafter. UIA consists of 9 member cities (8 
pledging and I non-pledging) at June 30, 2017. lJIA's purpose is to design, finance, build, 
operate, and maintain an open, wholesale, public telecommunication infrastructure that has the 
capacity to deliver high-speed connections to every home and business in the member 
communities. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

The Reporting Entity 
In evaluating how to define UIA for financial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit 
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in the related GASB 
pronouncement. The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a potential component 
unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight 
responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. 
Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not 
limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability 
to significantly influence operations and accountability of fiscal matters. The other criterion 
used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting 
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether UIA is able to 
exercise oversight responsibilities. UIA does not have any component units, nor is it a 
component unit of any primary government. 

Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting 
UIA prepares its financial statements on an entetprise fund basis, using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private businesses, where the intent is that all costs of 
providing certain goods and services to the general public be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges, or where it has been deemed that periodic determination of net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or 
other purposes. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. 

Restricted Assets 
UIA maintains investments held by fmancial institutions for safekeeping of funds relating to 
service reserves and to fund capital assets. When both restricted and unrestricted assets are 
available, it is UIA' s policy to use restricted assets fllSt, then unrestricted assets as they are 
needed. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Propertv and Eguipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalization of interest costs 
incurred during construction. Normal maintenance and repair expenses that do not add to 
the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed asset. The net 
book value of property sold or otherwise disposed of is removed from the property and 
accumulated depreciation accounts and the resulting gain or loss is included as nonoperating 
revenues or expenses. Depreciation of property and equipment was computed using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Outside plant and certain customer premise equipment 
Office furniture and equipment and vehicles 
Intangible rights 

25 years 
3-5 years 
25 years 

Depreciation of inside plant and certain customer premise equipment was computed using an 
accelerated method over a 6 year life. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
UIA considers all cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are defined as the cash accounts and the restricted cash equivalent accounts. 
Investments, in the form of accounts invested with the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment 
Fund (the State Treasurer's Pool) ofUIA are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is UIA's best estimate of the amount of probable credit 
losses in the existing accounts receivable. UIA has reserved $183,285 of accounts receivable. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in first-out method. 

Estimates and Assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Revenue Reco&nition 
Revenue is generally recorded when the service has been provided, and profit is recogniz.ed 
at that time. Revenues are reported net of bad debt expense. Total bad debt expense related 
to revenues of the current period is $0. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

UIA's deposit and investment policy is to follow the Utah Money Management Act. However, 
UIA does not have a separate deposit or investment policy that addresses specific types of deposit 
and investment risks to which UIA is exposed. 

Utah State law requires that UIA's funds be deposited with a "qualified depository" as defined 
by the Utah Money Management Act. "Qualified depository" includes any depository institution 
which has been certified by the Utah State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as having met 
the requirements as defined in Rule 1 1  of the Utah Money Management Act. Rule 1 1  establishes 
the formula for determining the amount of public funds which a qualified depository may hold 
in order to minimize risk of loss and defines capital requirements which an institution must 
maintain to be eligible to accept public funds. 

The Utah Money Management Act also governs the scope of securities allowed as appropriate 
temporary investments for VIA and conditions for making investment transactions. Investment 
transactions are to be conducted through qualified depositories or primary reporting dealers. 

As of June 30, 2017, UIA had the following deposits and investments, stated at carrying amount, 
which approximates fair value: 

Deposit and investment type 

Cash on deposit 
Investments in Utah Public Treasurer Investment Funds 

Cash on Deposit: 

Fair Value 

$ 1,166,296 
13,989,462 

$ 15,155,758 

Custodial credit risk- deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, UIA's deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2017, $1,085,751 of the 
$1,335, 751 balance of deposits was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and 
uncollateralized. UIA has no policy to manage this type of risk. 

Investment in Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Funds (PTIF): 
Interest rate risk. The risk that changes in the interest rate will have an adverse affect on the fair 
value of an investment. UIA' s investments in PTIF are not subject to interest rate risk. 

Credit risk. This is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations. As of June 30, 2017 the PTIF in which UIA has investments were unrated. 

Concentration of credit risk. This is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of UIA's 
investment in a single issuer. UIA' s investment in PTIF is not subject to a concentration of credit 
risk. 

Custodial credit risk - investments. This is the risk that, in the event of the fitilure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, UIA will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are 
in the possession of an outside party. UIA' s investment in PTIF has no custodial credit risk. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

VIA categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by general accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three 
levels, is based on valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs are 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Fair value measurements 
ofUIA's investments in PTIF at June 30, 2017, or $13,989,463 are based on significant other 
observable inputs (Level 2 inputs). 

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following summarizes UIA's property and equipment as of June 30, 2017: 

Beginning ED ding 
Balance Addtions Deletions Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ $ 500,000 $ $ 500,000 
Construction in progress 109,706 639934 749,640 

Total capital assets, not 

being depreciated 109,706 1,139,934 1,249,640 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Building 2,122,279 2,122,279 
Furniture and equipax:nt 687,599 687,599 
Outside plant 22,133,226 8,695,527 30,828,753 
Inside plant 4,505,789 1,603,194 6,108,983 
OJstoax:r premise equipax:nt 6,425,204 1,727,225 8,152,429 
Intangible right 18,126,154 50,810 18,176,964 

Total capital assets, 

being depreciated 51, 190,373 14,886,634 66,077,007 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Building (41,506) (41,506) 
Furniture and equipax:nt 

Outside plant (3,352,372) (l, 171,102) (4,523,474) 
Inside plant (2,457,058) (1,183,071) (3,640, 129) 
Custoax:r premise equipment (1,343,333) (429,160) (1,772,493) 
Intangible right (3,518, 166) (725,046) (4,243,212) 

Total accumulated depreciation (10,670,9292 �3,549,88� p4,22Qi814l 

Total capital asset, net of 

accumulated depreciation 40,519,444 11,336,749 51,856,193 

Property and Equipment, net $ 40,629,150 $ 12,476,683 $ $ 53,105,833 

Depreciation expense of $3,549,885 was charged to operating expense for the year ended June 
30, 2017. 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 
30, 2017. 

Beginning l!'nding Due Within 
Bal•nce Additions ReductiOllli B•lance One Year 

IUvenue Bondol 
Series 201 IA $ 21,095,000 $ $ $ 21,095,000 $ 
Series 2011B 5,615,000 (755,000) 4,860,000 775,000 
Original Issue Premiwn 253,943 (12,750) 241,193 
Series 2013 10,660,000 (28.S,000) 10,375,000 295,000 
Original Issue Premum 260,788 (11,854) 248,934 
Series 2015 24,295,000 (60S,OOO) 23,690,000 620,000 
Original ls sue Premium 1,827,970 (101,681) 1,726,289 

Totlll Revenue Bonds 64,007,701 (1,771,285) 62,236,416 1.690,000 

C.pital Leans 
UI'OPIA IRU J,428,164 p,7751590� 1,65�574 640,171 

Total Capital I..eues 3,428,164° (1,715,590) 1,652,574 640,171 

Notes Payable 
Pledging Members 3,315,856 383,582 3,699,438 
Tremonton Note 101,435 34,763 136,198 

Total Notes PayaHe 3,417,291 418,345 3,835,636 

Totlll Long-Term Debt $ 70,8531156 s 41�345 $ ��875� $ 67,724,626 $ 2,330,171 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Rewnue Bonm 
TaJPCJa::rr.pt Telecommunications and Franchise Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A, 
original issue of $21,095,000, principal paymmts due in annual instalhnents 
beginning October 2022, interest payments due semi-annually at 5.0"/o to 5.4%, with 
the final payment due October 2036. The bonds were issued to finance UIA's 
infrastructure construction and acquisition of the UTOPIA Indefeasible Right of 
Use. $ 21,095,000 

TaJ1able Telecommunications and Franchise Revenue Bonds, Series 201 lB original 
issue of $8,405,000, principal payments due in annual instalhnents beginning 
October 2012, interest payments due semi-annually at 3.2% to 5.45%, with the final 
payment due October 2022 The bonds were issued to finance UIA's infrastructure 
construction and acquisition of the UTOPIA Indefeasible Right ofUse. 

Telecommunications and Franchise Tax.Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 original issue 
of $11,205,000, principal payments due in annual installments beginning October 
2014, interest paymmts due semi-annually at 2.0"/o to 525%, with the final payment 
due October 2038. The bonds were issued to finance UIA's infrastructure 
construction. 

Telecommunications and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, original issue 
of $24,295,000, principal payments due in annual instalhnents beginning October 
2016, interest payments due semi-annually at 1.0% to 5.25%, with the final payment 
due October 2040. The bonds were issued to finance UIA's infrastructure 
construction of the fiberoptic netwoik. 

Total Revenue Bonds 

Less current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

4,860,000 

10,375,000 

23,690,000 

60,020,000 

(1,690,000) 

$ 58,330,000 

The following summarizes UIA' s revenue bonds debt service requirements as of June 30, 2017: 

Year PrinciJ.!!!! Interest Total 

2018 $ 1,690,000 $ 2,808,470 $ 4,498,470 
2019 1, 740,000 2,753,588 4,493,588 
2020 1,800,000 2,695,306 4,495,306 
2021 1,860,000 2,630,006 4,490,006 
2022 1,935,000 2,553,762 4,488,762 
2023-2027 11,1 10,000 11,316,165 22,426,165 
2028-2032 14,235,000 8,124,016 22,359,016 
2033-2037 18,285,000 4,038,274 22,323,274 
2038-2041 7,365,000 562,106 7!927,106 

$ 60,0201000 $ 37,481,693 $ 97,501,693 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Capital Lease 

Capital leases consist of the following: 

UIA is obligated under a lease for the use of a fiber optic network from Utah 

Teleconnnunications Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA). Because the terms 
and options contained in the lease have effectively created a financing 
arrangemmt, UIA is required to record this transaction as a capital lease. Teml'I of 
the lease were renegotiated in December 2013. Lease payments of$54,583 are paid 
nnnthly beginning December 2013 including imputed interest at l.09%. The 
capitalized cost of fiber optic network is $18,176,963, with accUIDilated depreciation 
of $4,243,211. $ 1,652,574 --���-

Total Capital Lease 

Less current portion 

Noncurrent portion 

Minimum lease payments for the years ending June 30 are as follows: 

2018 
2019 
2020 

Total minimum lease paymmts 

Less discount, representing imputed interest 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 

$ 

$ 

NOTE 5 INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

655,000 
655,000 
366,502 

1,676,502 

(23,928) 

1,652,574 

1,652,574 

(640,171) 

s 1,012,403 

UIA has entered into an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Utah Telecommunication Open 
Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA), wherein UIA will pay UTOPIA for network configuration, 
operation, and maintenance fees. The amount of the fees is determined based on the number of 
connections, subscribers, and services performed. The term of the amended agreement is for five 
years starting July 2010 and can be renewed for successive one year periods after the initial five 
year term. UIA recorded expenditures to UTOPIA of$704,047 forthe year ended June 30, 2017. 

NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITTMENTS 

The 8 Pledging Members of UIA have pledged energy sales and use tax revenues to ensure that 
UIA fulfills its revenue requirement from the bond agreements. UIA is required by the Series 
201 1  A & B bond covenants to have revenue equal to the operations and maintenance expenses 
and the capital costs in a fiscal year. In the event there is a shortfall, the pledging cities agree to 
lend its energy sales and use tax revenues in the maximum annual principal allocated to each city 
as set forth below: 
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UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 6 PLEDGING MEMBERS LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

2018 Share of 2018 
Pledging Total Max. Maximum 
Member Pledi!e Pledge * 

Brigham City 0.62% $ 31,831 
Centerville City 3.63% 186,737 
Layton City 18.20"/o 937,272 
Lindon City 3.35% 172,516 
Midvale City 6.60"/o 339,988 
Murray City 13.40% 690,241 
Orem City 23.76% 1,223,786 
West Valley City 30.44% 1,568,781 

100.00% $ 5,151,152 

• These amounts are the estimated maximum annual amount of 

franchise tax revenue payable by each city. 

The Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Cooperative Agreement ofUIA provides that the 
UIA Board of Directors may establish Working Capital Assessments to the Member Cities, the 
payment of which is subject to the appropriations authority of the governing bodies of the 
Member Cities. VIA has utilized this mechanism to pay certain operating expenses in order to 
avoid a shortfall under the Communications Services Contracts between UIA and the Member 
Cities. Under a shortfall scenario, UIA would be obligated to notify the Member Cities of their 
respective obligations to utilize Energy Sales and Use Taxes to replenish the shortfall. Provided 
enough cities pay their Working Capital Assessments, no shortfall exists and therefore, no 
obligation from Energy Sales and Use Taxes. The paid assessments, along with cumulative 
accrued interest of$85,666 for a total of$3,613,772, have been recorded as notes payable to the 

City 
Brigham City 

Centerville City 

Layton City 

Lindon City 

Midvale City 

Murray City 

Orem City 

Payson 

West Valley City 

2017 OpEI: 
Assenments 

Paid 

$ 

292,821 

50,000 

$ 342,821 

16 

Cumulative 
Paid 

$ 34,824 

221,373 
623,750 

1 18,155 

307,486 

141,666 

1,099,242 
50,000 

1,017,276 

$ 3,613,772 



UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued} 

NOTE 7 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to year-end, the Board approved issuance and sale of up to $79,500,000 of 
telecommunications revenue and refunding bonds. The anticipated use of the bonds will be to 
defease (in substance, refund) some or all of the outstanding portions of the Series 201 1 ,  2013, 
and 2015 bonds as well as provide additional proceeds to continue expanding the fiber-optic 
network. The bonds are expected be issued in December 2017. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Keddington & Christensen, LLC 
Certified Public Accounlants 

Gary IC Kadding!Oft. CPA 
Ph\'l It. Wamoc:k, CPA 
Ma�us K. Afbucklc. c;PA 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Utah Infrastructure 
Agency (VIA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered UIA's internal control 
over fmancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the fmancial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofUIA's internal control. Accordingly we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofUIA's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of UIA' s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over fmancial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weakness or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Telephone (801) 590-2600 
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Compliance and Other Matten 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether UIA's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination offmancial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

� � �  
November 15, 2017 

2 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AS 
REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPUANCE 

AUDIT GUIDE ON COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL 
STATE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS AND ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

Board ofDirectors 
Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

Report on Compliance with General State Compliance Requirements 

Keddington & Christensen, LLC 
Certified Puhl ic Accountants 

Gary K. K<?ddinglon. CPA 
Phy! R. Warnock, CPA 
M�m& K. Arbuckle, CPA 

We have audited the Utah Infrastructure Agency's (IBA) compliance with the applicable general 
compliance requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah 
State Auditor that could have a direct and material effect on mA for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

General state compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2017, in the following 
areas: 

Budgetary Compliance 
Fund Balance 

Management's Responsibility 

Open and Public Meetings Act 
Treasurer's Bond 

Management is responsible for compliance with the general state requirements referred to above. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on UIA's compliance based on our audit of the compliance 
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the State Compliance Audit Guide. Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on mA occurred. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about mA's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with general state 
compliance requirements. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of IBA's 
compliance. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, mA complied, in all material respects, with the general compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on UIA for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of UIA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered UIA' s internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements that 
could have a direct and materiaJ effect on UIA to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with general state 
compliance requirements and to test and report on internaJ control over compliance in accordance with 
the State Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of intemaJ control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
UIA's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not aJlow management or employees, in the normaJ course of perfonning their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement 
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a general state 
compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
intemaJ control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on requirements of the State 
Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

� � �  
November 15, 2017 
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APPENDIX B 

EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF mE INDENTURE 

The following excerpts briefly outline certain provisions contained in the General 
Indenture and are not to be considered as a full statement thereof. Reference is made to the 
General Indenture and the Second Supplemental Indenture, for full details of all of the terms of 
the Series 201 8  Bonds, the security provisions appertaining thereof, and the application of the 
Revenues derived from the System, and the definition of any terms used but not defined in this 
Official Statement. 

Definitions 

As used in the Indenture, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless 
the context otherwise clearly indicates: 

"Accreted Amount" means, with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds of any Series and 
as of the date of calculation, the amount representing the initial public offering price, plus the 
accumulated and compounded interest on such Bonds, as established pursuant to the 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

"Act" collectively means the lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Title 1 1 , Chapter 13, Utah 
Code, and the Utah Refunding Bond Act, Title 1 1 , Chapter 27, Utah Code. 

"Additional Bonds" means all Bonds issued under the Indenture, other than the Initial 
Bonds, which are secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge of Net 
Revenues for the payment of the Bonds and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
authorized in the Indenture. 

"Administrative Costs" means all Security Instrument Costs and Reserve Instrument 
Costs. 

"Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement" means the total Debt Service (including 
any Repayment Obligations) for any one Bond Fund Year (or other specific period) on all Series 
of Bonds Outstanding or any specified portion thereof. 

"Authorized Amount1' means, with respect to a Commercial Paper Program, the 
maximum Principal amount of commercial paper which is then authorized by the Issuer to be 
outstanding at any one time pursuant to such Commercial Paper Program. 

"Authorized Representative" means the Chair, any Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, 
Chief Executive Officer or any other officer of the Issuer so designated in writing by the Issuer 
to the Trustee. 

"Available Franchise Tax Revenues" means the maximum Franchise Tax Revenues 
available under the Service Contract and which (i) for purposes of (a)(i) under the heading 



"Issuance of Additional Bonds" were not used in the applicable 1 2-month period to make the 
payments due under the Service Contract and (ii) for purposes (a)(ii) "Issuance of Additional 
Bonds" are not projected by the Qualified Consultant to be required to make the payments due 
under the Service Contract during the related Bond Fund Years. 

"Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement" means the total of all Aggregate 
Annual Debt Service Requirements divided by the total Bond fund Years of the Bonds 
Outstanding or any specified portion thereof. 

"Bond Fund" means the UIA Bond Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the 
Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture 

"Bond Fund Year" means the 12-month period beginning July I of each year and ending 
on the next succeeding June 30, except that the first Bond Fund Year shall begin on the date of 
delivery of the Initial Bonds and shall end on the next succeeding June 30. 

"Bondholder," "Bondowner," "Registered Owner," or "Owner" means the registered 
owner of any Bonds authorized in the Indenture according to the registration books of the Issuer 
maintained by the Trustee as Registrar. 

"Bonds" means bonds, notes, commercial paper or other obligations (other than 
Repayment Obligations) authorized by and at any time Outstanding pursuant to the Indenture, 
including the Initial Bonds and any Additional Bonds. 

"Business Day" means any day (a)(i) on which banking business is transacted, but not 
including any day on which banks are authorized to be closed in New York City or in the city in 
which the Trustee has its Principal Corporate Trust Office or, with respect to a related Series of 
Bonds, in the city in which any Security Instrument Issuer has its principal office for purposes of 
such Security Instrument and (ii) on which the New York Stock Exchange is open, or (b) as 
otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" means Bonds the interest on which (a) is compounded and 
accumulated at the rates and on the dates set forth in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the 
issuance of such Bonds and designating them as Capital Appreciation Bonds, and (i) is payable 
upon maturity or prior redemption of such Bonds. 

"Chair" means the Chair of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such office. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Commercial Paper Program" means commercial paper obligations with maturities of not 
more than two hundred seventy (270) days from the dates of issuance thereof which are issued 
and reissued by the Issuer from time to time pursuant to the Indenture and are outstanding up to 
an Authorized Amount. 
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"Connection Services" means the wholesale services provided by the Issuer to each 
Member pursuant to the Service Contract whereby end users within each Member have access to 
the UIA Network through which they may contract with private providers to receive Cable 
Television Services and Public Telecommunication Services (as those terms are defined in the 
Telecommunications Act) provided through the UTOPIA Network. 

"Construction Fund" means the UIA Construction Fund created in the Indenture to be 
held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Contracting Members" means those Members who have entered into the Service 
Contract, namely Brigham City, Utah; Centerville City, Utah; Layton City, Utah; Lindon City, 
Utah; Midvale City, Utah; Murray City, Utah; City of Orem, Utah; and West Valley City, Utah. 

"Cost" or "Costs" or "Cost of Completion," or any phrase of similar import, in 
connection with a Project or with the refunding of any Bonds, means all costs and expenses 
which are properly chargeable thereto under generally accepted accounting principles or which 
are incidental to the financing, acquisition and construction of a Project, or the refunding of any 
Bonds, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 

(a) amounts payable to contractors and costs incident to the award of 
contracts; · 

(b) cost of labor, facilities and services furnished by the Issuer and its 
employees or others, materials and supplies purchased by the Issuer or others and permits 
and licenses obtained by the Issuer or others; 

(c) engineering, architectural, legal, planning, underwriting, marketings, 
accounting and other professional and advisory fees; 

{ d) premiums for contract bonds and insurance during construction and costs 
on account of personal injuries and property damage in the course of construction and 
insurance against the same; 

Project; 
(e) interest expenses, including interest on the Series of Bonds relating to a 

{f) printing, engraving and other expenses of financing, fees of financial 
rating services and costs of issuing the Series of Bonds; 

(g) costs, fees, and expenses in connection with the acquisition of real and 
personal property or rights therein, including premiums for title insurance; 

(h) costs of furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased by the Issuer and 
necessary to construct a Project; 

B-3 



(i) amounts required to repay moneys advanced by the Member or temporary 
or bond anticipation loans or notes made to finance the costs of a Project; 

Project; 
G) cost of site improvements performed by the Issuer in anticipation of a 

(k) moneys necessary to fund the funds created under the Indenture; 

(I) costs of any Operation and Maintenance Expenses and other working 
capital appertaining to any facilities to be acquired for a Project and of any interest on a 
Series of Bonds for any period not exceeding the period estimated by the Issuer to effect 
the construction of a Project plus one year, as provided in the Indenture, of any discount 
on bonds or other securities, and of any reserves for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on a Series of Bonds, of any replacement expenses and of any other cost of 
issuance of a Series of Bonds or other securities, Security Instrument Costs and Reserve 
Instrument Costs; 

(m) costs of amending the Indenture or other instrument authorizing the 
issuance of or otherwise appertaining to a Series of Bonds; 

(n) all other expenses necessary or desirable and appertaining to a Project, as 
estimated or otherwise ascertained by the Issuer, including costs of contingencies for a 
Project; and 

(o) payment to the Issuer of such amounts, if any, as shall be necessary to 
reimburse the Issuer in full for advances and payments theretofore made or costs 
theretofore incurred by the Issuer for any item of Costs. 

In the case of refunding or redeeming any bonds or other obligations, "Cost" includes, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the items listed in (c), (e), (f), (i), (k), (I), (m) 
and ( o) above, advertising and other expenses related to the redemption of such bonds to be 
redeemed and the redemption price of such bonds (and the accrued interest payable on 
redemption to the extent not otherwise provided for). 

"Cross-over Date" means with respect to Cross-over Refunding Bonds the date on which 
the Principal portion of the related Cross-over Refunded Bonds is to be paid or redeemed from 
the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Bonds. 

"Cross-over Refunded Bonds" means Bonds or other obligations refunded by Cross-over 
Refunding Bonds. 

"Cross-over Refunding Bonds" means Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds 
or other obligations if the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Bonds are irrevocably 
deposited in escrow in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 1 1 -27-3, Utah Code, to secure 
the payment on an applicable redemption date or maturity date of the Cross-over Refunded 
Bonds (subject to possible use to pay Principal of the Cross- over Refunding Bonds under certain 
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circumstances) and the earnings on such escrow deposit are required to be applied to pay interest 
on the Cross-over Refunding Bonds until the Cross-over Date. 

"Current Interest Bonds" means all Bonds other than Capital Appreciation Bonds. 
Interest on Current Interest Bonds shall be payable periodically on the Interest Payment Dates 
provided therefor in a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Debt Service" means, unless specified otherwise by Supplemental Indenture for a Series 
of Bonds, for any particular Bond Fund Year and for any Series of Bonds and any Repayment 
Obligations, an amount equal to the sum of (a) all interest payable during such Bond Fund Year 
on such Series of Bonds plus (b) the Principal Installments payable during such Bond Fund Year 
on (i) such Bonds Outstanding, calculated on the assumption that Bonds Outstanding on the day 
of calculation cease to be Outstanding by reason of, but only by reason of, payment either upon 
maturity or application of any Sinking Fund Installments required by the Indenture, and (ii) such 
Repayment Obligations then outstanding; 

provided, however, for purposes of issuance of Additional Bonds under the Indenture 

(A) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year for any 
Series of Variable Rate Bonds or Repayment Obligations bearing interest at a variable 
rate which cannot be ascertained for any particular Bond Fund Year, it shall be assumed 
that such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or related Repayment Obligations will bear 
interest at such market rate of interest applicable to such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or 
related Repayment Obligations as shall be established for this purpose in the opinion of 
the Issuer's financial advisor, underwriter or similar agent (which market rate of interest 
may be based upon a recognized comparable market index, an average of interest rates 
for prior years or otherwise); 

(B) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year with 
respect to any Commercial Paper Program, Debt Service shall include an amount equal to 
the sum of all principal and interest payments that would be payable during such Bond 
Fund Year assuming that the Authorized Amount of such Commercial Paper Program is 
amortized on a level debt service basis over a period of 30 years beginning on the date of 
calculation or, if later, the last day of the period during which obligations can be issued 
under such Commercial Paper Program, and bearing interest at such market rate of 
interest applicable to such Commercial Paper Program as shall be established for this 
purpose in the opinion of the Issuer's financial advisor, underwriter or similar agent 
(which market rate of interest may be based upon a recognized comparable market index, 
an average of interest rates for prior years or otherwise); and 

(C) when calculating interest payable on Bonds that are Paired Obligations, 
the interest rate on such Bonds shall be the resulting linked rate or effective fixed interest 
rate to be paid by the Issuer with respect to such Paired Obligations; 

and further provided, that there shall be excluded from Debt Service (x) interest on Bonds 
(including Cross-over Refunding Bonds or Cross-over Refunded Bonds) to the extent that 
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Escrowed Interest or capitalized interest is available to pay such interest, (y) Principal on Cross­
over Refunded Bonds to the extent that the proceeds of Cross-over Refunding Bonds are on 
deposit in an irrevocable escrow in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 1 1-27-3, Utah 
Code, as amended, and such proceeds or the earnings thereon are required to be applied to pay 
such Principal (subject to the possible use to pay the Principal of the Cross-over Refunding 
Bonds under certain circumstances) and such amounts so required to be applied are sufficient to 
pay such Principal, and (z) Repayment Obligations to the extent that payments on Pledged Bonds 
relating to such Repayment Obligations satisfy the Issuer's obligation to pay such Repayment 
Obligations. 

"Debt Service Reserve Fund" means the VIA Debt Service Reserve Fund created in the 
Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Debt Service Reserve Requirement" means with respect to each Series of Bonds issued 
pursuant to the Indenture, the definition set forth in the Supplemental Indenture relating to such 
Series of Bonds. 

"Direct Obligations" means noncallable Government Obligations. 

"Escrowed Interest" means amounts irrevocably deposited in escrow in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 1 1 -27-3, Utah Code, in connection with the issuance of Refunding 
Bonds or Cross-over Refunding Bonds secured by such amounts or earnings on such amounts 
which are required to be applied to pay interest on such Cross-over Refunding Bonds or the 
related Cross-over Refunded Bonds. 

"Event of Default" means with respect to any default or event of default under the 
Indenture any occurrence or event specified in and defmed in the Indenture. 

"Fiscal Year" means the 12-month period beginning July 1 of each year and ending on 
the next succeeding June 30. 

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings. 

"Franchise Tax Revenues" means proceeds of loans or payments of franchise tax 
revenues received by the Issuer from Contracting Members pursuant to the Service Contract. 

"Governing Body" means the Board of Directors of the Issuer. 

"Government Obligations" means solely one or more of the following: 

(a) State and Local Government Series issued by the United States Treasury 
("SLGS"); 

market; 
(b) United States Treasury bills, notes and bonds, as traded on the open 

B-6 



(c) Zero Coupon United States Treasury Bonds; and 

( d) Any other direct obligations of or obligations unconditionally guaranteed 
by, the United States of America (including, without limitation, obligations commonly 
referred to as "REFCORP strips"). 

"Indenture" means the General Indenture of Trust as from time to time amended or 
supplemented by Supplemental Indentures in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. 

"Initial Bonds" means the first Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture. 

"Interest Payment Date" means the stated payment date of an installment of interest on 
the Bonds. 

"Issuer" or "UIA" means the Utah Infrastructure Agency and its successors. "Member" 
means a member city of the Issuer as evidenced by the execution by said member city of the 
Interlocal Agreement which created the Issuer. 

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 

"Net Revenues" means all Revenues after payment of all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses. 

"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" means all expenses reasonably incurred by UIA 
in connection with the operation and maintenance of the UIA Network, whether. incurred by UIA 
or paid to any other entity, including UTOPIA or any Member, pursuant to contract or otherwise, 
necessary to keep the UIA Network in efficient operating condition, including cost of audits 
required by the Indenture, payment of promotional and marketing expenses and real estate 
brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance and, generally all expenses, exclusive of 
depreciation (including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) which under generally 
accepted accounting practices are properly allocable to operation and maintenance; provided, 
however, only such expenses as are reasonably and properly necessary to the efficient operation 
and maintenance of the UIA Network shall be included. 

"Outstanding" or "Bonds Outstanding" means at any date all Bonds which have not been 
canceled which have been or are being authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the 
Indenture, except: 

(a) Any Bond or portion thereof which at the time has been paid or deemed 
paid pursuant to Article X of the Indenture; and 

(b) Any Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Bond shall have 
been authenticated and delivered under the Indenture, unless proof satisfactory to the 
Trustee is presented that such Bond is held by a bona fide holder in due course. 
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"Paying Agent" means the Trustee, appointed as the initial paying agent for the Bonds 
pursuant to the Indenture and any additional or successor paying agent appointed pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

"Pledged Bonds" means any Bonds that have been (a) pledged or in which any interest 
has otherwise been granted to a Security Instrument Issuer as collateral security for Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations or (b) purchased and held by a Security Instrument Issuer 
pursuant to a Security Instrument. 

"Principal" means (a) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted 
Amount thereof (the difference between the stated amount to be paid at maturity and the 
Accreted Amount being deemed unearned interest), except as used in .connection with the 
authorization and issuance of Bonds and with the order of priority of payment of Bonds after an 
Event of Default, in which case "Principal" means the initial public offering price of a Capital 
Appreciation Bond (the difference between the Accreted Amount and the initial public offering 
price being deemed interest), and (b) with respect to any Current Interest Bond, the principal 
amount of such Bond payable at maturity. 

"Principal Corporate Trust Office" means, with respect to the Trustee, the office of the 
Trustee at One South Main, 12th floor, Salt Lake City, Utah 84133 or such other or additional 
offices as may be specified by the Trustee. 

"Principal Installment" means, as of any date of calculation, (a) with respect to any Series 
of Bonds, so long as any Bonds thereof are Outstanding, (i) the Principal amount of Bonds of 
such Series due on a certain future date for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been 
established, or (ii) the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund Installment due on a certain 
future date for Bonds of such Series, plus the amount of the sinking fund redemption premiums, 
if any, which would be applicable upon redemption of such Bonds on such future date in a 
Principal amount equal to such unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Installment and (b) with 
respect to any Repayment Obligations, the principal amount of such Repayment Obligations due 
on a certain future date. 

"Project" means the acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping of 
communications facilities, additions, extensions, facilities, equipment, buildings, furnishings, 
and improvements for the UIA Network including the acquisition of access rights to and capacity 
in the UTOPIA Network. 

"Put Bond" means any Bond which is part of a Series of Bonds which is subject to 
purchase by the Issuer, its agent or a third party from the Owner of the Bond pursuant to 
provisions of the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of the Bond and designating it 
as a "Put Bond." 

"Qualified Consultant'' means any firm, corporation, company or any other organization 
or person generally recognized as having expertise in matters relating to telecommunications or 
fiber optic systems, selected and paid by the Issuer, who shall not have any substantial interest, 
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direct or indirect with the Issuer, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or other 
periodic reports to the Issuer. 

"Qualified Investments" means any of the following securities: 

(a) Government Obligations; 

(b) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations 
represent full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America including: the 
Export-Import Bank of the United States; the Government National Mortgage 
Association; the Federal Financing Bank; the Farmer's Home Administration; the Federal 
Housing Administration; the Maritime Administration: General Services Administration, 
Small Business Administration; or the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(PHA's); 

(c) Money market funds rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" or better by S&P 
and/or the equivalent rating or better of Moody's (if so rated), including money market 
funds from which the Trustee or its affiliates derive a fee for investment advisory services 
to the fund; 

( d) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single 
highest classification, P-1 by Moody's or A-1+ by S&P, and which matures not more 
than 270 days after the date of purchase; 

(e) Bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness rated "AAA" by S&P and 
"Aaa" by Moody' s  issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association or the Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with remaining maturities not exceeding three years; 

(f) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and banker's 
acceptances with domestic commercial banks, including the Trustee and its affiliates, 
which have a rating on their shorMerm certificates of deposit on the date of purchase of 
"A-1" or "A-1+" by S&P and "P-1" by Moody's and maturing no more than 360 days 
after the date of purchase (ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating 
of the bank); 

(g) The fund held by the Treasurer for the State of Utah and commonly 
known as the Utah State Public Treasurer's Investment Fund; and 

(h) Any other investments or securities permitted for investment of public 
funds under the State Money Management Act of 1 974, Title 5 1 ,  Chapter 7, Utah Code, 
including investments contracts permitted by Section 5 1-7-17(2)(d) thereof. 

"Rating Agency" means Fitch, Moody's, or S&P and their successors and assigns, but 
only to the extent such rating agency is then providing a rating on a Series of Bonds issued under 
the Indenture at the request of the Issuer. If either such Rating Agency ceases to act as a 
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securities rating agency, the Issuer may designate any nationally recognized securities rating 
agency as a replacement. 

"Rating Category" or .. Rating Categories" mean one or more of the generic rating 
categories of a Rating Agency, without regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating 
category or categories by a numerical modifier or otherwise. 

"Rebatable Arbitrage" means with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest 
thereon is intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 
amount (determinable as of each Rebate Calculation Date) of rebatable arbitrage payable to the 
United States at the times and in the amounts specified in Section 1 48(t)(3) of the Code and 
Section 1 . 1 48-3 of the Regulations. 

"Rebate Calculation Date" means, with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest 
thereon is intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 
Interest Payment Date next preceding the fifth anniversary of the issue date of such Series of 
Bonds, each fifth anniversary of the initial Rebate Calculation Date for such Series of Bonds, and 
the date of retirement of the last Bond for such Series. 

"Rebate Fund" means the UIA Rebate Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the 
Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Registrar" means the Trustee (or other party designated as Registrar by Supplemental 
Indenture), appointed as the registrar for the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and any additional 
or successor registrar appointed pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Regular Record Date" means, unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture for 
a Series of Bonds, the fifteenth day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date. 

"Remarketing Agent" means a remarketing agent or commercial paper dealer appointed 
by the Issuer pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Repair and Replacement Fund" means the UIA Repair and Replacement Fund created in 
the Indenture to be held by the Issuer and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement" means the amount or amounts from 
time to time required under each Supplemental Indenture to be on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund. 

"Repayment Obligations" means, collectively, all Outstanding Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations and Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations. 

"Reserve Instrument" means a device or instrument issued by a Reserve Instrument 
Provider to satisfy all or any portion of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to a 
Series of Bonds with the prior written approval of the Secudty Instrument Issuer, if any. The 
term "Reserve Instrument" includes, by way of example and not of limitation, letters of credit, 
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bond insurance policies, surety bonds, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit, and 
other devices. 

"Reserve Instrument Agreement" means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a 
Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable 
portions of a Supplemental Indenture) and providing for the issuance by such Reserve Instrument 
Provider of a Reserve Instrument. 

"Reserve Instrument Costs" means all fees, premiums, expenses, and similar costs, other 
than Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations, required to be paid to a Reserve Instrument 
Provider pursuant to a Reserve Instrument Agreement. Each Reserve Instrument Agreement 
shall specify the fees, premiums, expenses, and costs constituting Reserve Instrument Costs. 

"Reserve Instrument Coverage" means, as of any date of calculation, the aggregate 
amount available to be paid to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture under all Reserve 
Instruments. 

"Reserve Instrument Fund" means the UIA Reserve Instrument Fund created pursuant to 
the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant the Indenture. 

"Reserve Instrument Limit" means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any 
Reserve Instrument, the maximum aggregate amount available to be paid under such Reserve 
Instrument into the Debt Service Reserve Fund assuming for purposes of such calculation that 
the amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has not been reduced or that the 
amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has only been reduced as a result of the 
payment of principal of the applicable Series of Bonds. 

"Reserve Instrument Provider" means any bank, savings and loan association, savings 
bank, thrift institution, credit union, insurance company, surety company, or other institution 
issuing a Reserve Instrument, which at the time of issuance of the Reserve Instrument, is rated in 
one of the four highest Rating Categories by a Rating Agency. 

"Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations" means, as of any date of calculation and 
with respect to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, those outstanding amounts payable by the 
Issuer under such Reserve Instrument Agreement to repay the Reserve Instrument Provider for 
payments previously made by it pursuant to a Reserve Instrument. There shall not be included in 
the calculation of Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations any Reserve Instrument Costs. 

"Revenue Fund" means the UIA Revenue Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the 
Issuer and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Revenues" means all revenues, fees, income, rents, sale proceeds, and receipts received 
or earned by the Issuer from or attributable to the ownership or operation of the UIA Network, 
including moneys received from the imposition of fees and charges to providers and end users 
and all payments received pursuant to the Service Contract, including any Franchise Tax 
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Revenues, together with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of investments in 
the related funds thereof. Revenues do not include gifts or grants received by UIA. 

"S&P" means S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor' s Financial 
Services LLC. 

"Secretary" means the Secretary of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such 
office. 

"Security Instrument" means an instrument or other device issued by a Security 
Instrument Issuer to pay, or to provide security or liquidity for, a Series of Bonds. The term 
"Security Instrument" includes, by way of example and not of limitation, letters of credit, bond 
insurance policies, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit and other security 
instruments and credit enhancement or liquidity devices (but does not include a Reserve 
Instrument); provided, however, that no such device or instrument shall be a "Security 
Instrument" for purposes of the Indenture unless specifically so designated in a Supplemental 
Indenture authorizing the use of such device or instrument. 

"Security Instrument Agreement" means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a 
Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable 
portions of a Supplemental Indenture) providing for the issuance by such Security Instrument 
Issuer of a Security Instrument. 

"Security Instrument Costs" means, with respect to any Security Instrument, all fees, 
premiums, expenses and similar costs, other than Security Instrument Repayment Obligations, 
required to be paid to a Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument Agreement 
or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such Security Instrument. Such Security 
Instrument Agreement or Supplemental Indenture shall specify any fees, premiums, expenses, 
and costs constituting Security Instrument Costs. 

"Security Instrument Issuer" means any bank or other financial institution, insurance 
company, surety company, or other institution issuing a Security Instrument. 

"Security Instrument Repayment Obligations" means, as of any date of calculation and 
with respect to any Security Instrument Agreement, any outstanding amounts payable by the 
Issuer under the Security Instrument Agreement or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the 
use of such Security Instrument to repay the Security Instrument Issuer for payments previously 
or concurrently made by the Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument. There 
shall not be included in the calculation of the amount of Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations any Security Instrument Costs. 

"Series" means all of the Bonds authenticated and delivered on original issuance and 
identified pursuant to the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bonds as a separate Series of 
Bonds, and any Bonds thereafter authenticated and delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution 
therefor. 

B-12 



"Service Contract" means that certain Service Contract dated as of May 1 ,  201 1 , entered 
into between the Issuer and the Contracting Members identified in that Service Contract, as such 
contract may be amended and supplemented from time to time. 

"Sinking Fund Account" means the UIA Sinking Fund Account of the Bond Fund created 
in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and administered pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Sinking Fund Installment" means the amount of money which is required to be 
deposited into the Sinking Fund Account in each Bond Fund Year for the retirement of Tenn 
Bonds as specified in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing said Term Bonds (whether at 
maturity or by redemption), and including the redemption premium, if any. 

"Special Record Date" means such date as may be fixed for the payment of defaulted 
interest on the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. 

"State" means the State of Utah. 

"Supplemental Indenture" means any indenture between the Issuer and the Trustee 
entered into pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture. 

"Telecommunications Act" means the Municipal Cable Television and Public 
Telecommunications Service Act, Title 10, Chapter 1 8, Utah Code. 

"Term Bonds" means the Bonds which shall be subject to retirement by operation of 
mandatory sinking fund redemptions from the Sinking Fund Account. 

"Trustee" means ZB, National Association, One South Main, 12th floor, Salt Lake City, 
Utah 84133 or any successor corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger 
to which it or its successors may be a party and any successor trustee at any time serving as 
successor trustee under the Indenture. 

"VIA Network" means fiber optic lines, connection lines and related improvements and 
facilities acquired, constructed and owned by UIA, together with the acquisition by UIA of 
access rights and capacity in the UTOPIA Network and access rights and capacity in other 
networks. 

Utah Code" means Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. 

"UTOPIA Network" means UTOPIA's wholesale telecommunications network, together 
with any additions, repairs, renewals, replacements, expansions, extensions and improvements to 
said network. 

"Variable Rate Bonds" means, as of any date of calculation, Bonds, the interest on which 
for any future period of time, is to be calculated at a rate which is not susceptible to a precise 
determination. 
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"Year" means any twelve consecutive month period. 

Indenture to Constitute Contract 

In consideration of the purchase and acceptance from time to time of any and all of the 
Bonds authorized to be issued under the Indenture by the Registered Owners thereof, the 
issuance from time to time of any and all Security Instruments by Security Instrument Issuers, 
and the issuance from time to time of any and all Reserve Instruments by Reserve Instrument 
Providers pursuant to the Indenture, the Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a 
contract between the Issuer and the Owners from time to time of the Bonds, the Security 
Instrument Issuers and the Reserve Instrument Providers; and the pledge made in the Indenture 
and the covenants and agreements set forth in the Indenture to be performed by or on behalf of 
the Issuer shall be, FIRST, for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Owners of any and 
all of the Bonds and the Security Instrument Issuers of any and all of the Security Instruments all 
of which, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, delivery, maturity or expiration, shall 
be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of the Bonds or Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations over any others, except as expressly provided in or permitted 
by the Indenture, and SECOND, for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Reserve 
Instrument Providers of any and all of the Reserve Instruments which, regardless of the time or 
times of their issuance, delivery or termination, shall be of equal rank without preference, 
priority or distinction of any Reserve Instrument over any other thereof. 

Perfection of Security Interest 

(a) The Indenture creates a valid and binding pledge and assignment of security interest 
in all of the Net Revenues pledged under the Indenture in favor of the Trustee as security for 
payment of the Bonds, enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms thereof. 

(b) Under the laws of the State, such pledge and assignment and security interest is 
automatically perfected by Section 1 1-14-501, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, and is 
and shall have priority as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or 
otherwise hereafter imposed on the Net Revenues. 

( c) The Issuer and the Trustee covenant and agree to take such action (including, as 
applicable, filing of UCC financing statements and continuations thereof) as is necessary from 
time to time to preserve the priority of the pledge of the Trust Estate under applicable law. 

Authentication and Delivery of Bonds 

(a) The Issuer shall deliver executed Bonds of each Series to the Trustee for 
authentication. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions for authentication of Bonds set forth 
in the Indenture, the Trustee shall authenticate such Bonds, and deliver them upon the order of 
the Issuer to the purchasers thereof (or hold them on their behalf) upon the payment by the 
purchasers to the Trustee for the account of the Issuer of the purchase price therefor. Delivery by 
the Trustee shall be full acquittal to the purchasers for the purchase price of such Bonds, and 
such purchasers shall be under no obligation to see to the application thereof. The proceeds of 
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the sale of such Bonds shall, however, be disposed of only as provided in the Indenture and in 
the related Supplemental Indenture. 

(b) No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or 
benefit under the Indenture, unless and until a certificate of authentication on such Bond 
substantially in the form set forth in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bond shall 
have been duly executed by the Trustee, and such executed certificate of the Trustee upon any 
such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and delivered 
under the Indenture. The Trustee's certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to 
have been executed by it if signed by an authorized officer of the Trustee, but it shall not be 
necessary that the same officer sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued 
under the Indenture. 

(c) Prior to the authentication by the Trustee of each Series of Bonds there shall have 
been filed with the Trustee: 

(d) A copy, duly certified by the Secretary, of the Indenture (to the extent not 
theretofore so filed) and the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series of Bonds. 

(i) A copy, certified by the Secretary, of the proceedings of the Issuer's 
Governing Body approving the execution and delivery of the instruments specified the 
Indenture and the execution and delivery of such Series of Bonds, together with a 
certificate, dated as of the date of authentication of such Series of Bonds, of the Secretary 
that such proceedings are still in force and effect without amendments except as shown in 
such proceedings. 

(ii) A request and authorization to the Trustee of the Issuer to authenticate 
such Series of Bonds in the aggregate principal amount therein specified and deliver them 
to purchasers therein identified upon payment to the Trustee, for account of the Issuer, of 
the sum specified therein. 

(iii) An opinion of bond counsel dated the date of authentication of such Series 
of Bonds to the effect that (a) the Issuer has authorized the execution and delivery of the 
Indenture and such Series of Bonds and the Indenture has been duly executed and 
delivered by the Issuer and is a valid and binding and enforceable agreement of the 
Issuer; (b) the Indenture creates the valid pledge which it purports to create of the Net 
Revenues; and (c) the Bonds of such Series are valid and binding obligations of the 
Issuer, entitled to the benefits and security hereof, provided that such opinion may 
contain limitations acceptable to the purchaser of such Series of Bonds. 

( e) The Issuer may provide by Supplemental Indenture for the delivery to the Trustee of 
one or more Security Instruments with respect to any Series of Bonds and the execution and 
delivery of any Security Instrument Agreements deemed necessary in connection therewith. 
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(f) Subject to any limitations contained in a Supplemental Indenture, the Issuer may 
provide a Security Instrument for any Series of Bonds (or may substitute one Security Instrument 
for another). 

(g) The Issuer may provide by Supplemental Indenture for the issuance and delivery to 
the Trustee of one or more Reserve Instruments and the execution and delivery of any Reserve 
Instrument Agreements deemed necessary in connection therewith. · 

(h) The Issuer may authorize by Supplemental Indenture the issuance of Put Bonds; 
provided that any obligation of the Issuer to pay the purchase price of any such Put Bonds shall 
not be secured by a pledge of Net Revenues on a parity with the pledge contained in the 
Indenture. The Issuer may provide for the appointment of such Remarketing Agents, indexing 
agents, tender agents or other agents as the Issuer may determine. 

(i) The Issuer may include such provisions in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing the 
issuance of a Series of Bonds secured by a Security Instrument as the Issuer deems appropriate, 
including: 

(i) So long as the Security Instrument is in full force and effect, and payment 
on the Security Instrument is not in default, (A) the Security Instrument Issuer shall be 
deemed to be the Owner of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series (1) when the approval, 
consent or action of the Bondowners for such Series of Bonds is required or may be 
exercised under the Indenture and (2) following an Event of Default and (B) the 
Indenture may not be amended in any manner which affects the rights of such Security 
Instrument Issuer without its prior written consent. 

(ii) In the event that the Principal and redemption price, if applicable, and 
interest due on any Series of Bonds Outstanding shall be paid under the provisions of a 
Security Instrument, all covenants, agreements and other obligations of the Issuer to the 
Bondowners of such Series of Bonds shall continue to exist and such Security Instrument 
Issuer shall be subrogated to the rights of such Bondowners in accordance with the terms 
of such Security Instrument. 

(iii) In addition, such Supplemental Indenture may establish such provisions as 
are necessary to provide relevant information to the Security Instrument Issuer and to 
provide a mechanism for paying Principal Installments and interest on such Series of 
Bonds from the Security Instrument. 

Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds 

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Issuer may execute and 
the Trustee may authenticate a new Bond of like date, Series, maturity and 

·
denomination as that 

mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed; provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bond, such 
mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Trustee, and in the case of any lost, stolen or 
destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the Trustee evidence of such loss, theft or 
destruction satisfactory to the Trustee, together in all cases with indemnity satisfactory to the 
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Trustee and the Issuer. In the event any such Bond shall have matured, instead of issuing a 
duplicate Bond, the Trustee may pay the same without surrender thereof upon compliance with 
the foregoing. The Trustee may charge the Registered Owner of such Bond with its reasonable 
fees and expenses in connection therewith. Any Bond issued pursuant to the Indenture shall be 
deemed part of the Series of Bonds in respect of which it was issued and an original additional 
contractual obligation of the Issuer. 

Cancellation 

All Bonds which have been surrendered for payment, redemption or exchange, and 
Bonds purchased from any moneys held by the Trustee under the Indenture or surrendered to the 
Trustee by the Issuer, shall be canceled and cremated or otherwise destroyed by the Trustee and 
shall not be reissued; provided, however, that one or more new Bonds shall be issued for the 
unredeemed portion of any Bond without charge to the Registered Owner thereof. 

Nonpresentation of Bonds 

Unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, in the event any Bond shall not be 
presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due, either at maturity or otherwise, 
or at the date fixed for redemption thereof, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond shall have been 
made available to the Trustee, all liability of the Issuer to the Registered Owner thereof for the 
payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and 
thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee to hold such fund or funds, without liability to the 
Registered Owner of such Bond for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Registered Owner of 
such Bond who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such fund or funds for any claim of 
whatever nature on his part under the Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If any Bond 
shall not be presented for payment within four years following the date when such Bond 
becomes due, whether by maturity or otherwise, the Trustee shall, to the extent permitted by law, 
repay to the Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such Bond, and such Bond 
shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured 
obligation of the Issuer, and the Registered Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the 
Issuer for payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid, and the Issuer shall not 
be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. The 
provisions of the Indenture are subject to the provisions of Title 67, Chapter 4a, Utah Code. 

Additional Bonds 

No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Issuer payable from Net Revenues or 
any portion thereof on a priority basis senior to the Bonds or the Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations authorized in the Indenture shall be created or incurred. The Issuer may issue 
Additional Bonds and other parity obligations if the following requirements have been met: 

{a) (i) A certificate, based upon the most recent audited financial statements of the 
Issuer or a report prepared by the Issuer's auditor, shall be delivered to the Trustee by an 
Authorized Representative to the effect that the sum of the Net Revenues and any Available 
Franchise Tax Revenues for any Year within the 24 months immediately preceding the issuance 
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of the Additional Bonds was at least 150% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service for 
any Bond Fund Year on all of the Bonds that will be Outstanding upon the issuance of such 
Additional Bonds; or 

(ii) An Authorized Representative shall have delivered to the Trustee a certificate from 
a Qualified Consultant: 

(1) setting forth projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues, and the 
Estimated Net Revenues as described in the Indenture (assuming, if applicable, the 
completion of any contemplated additions, improvements, extensions, replacements or 
repairs to the UIA Network (collectively, the "Improvements") financed with proceeds of 
the Additional Bonds) either: 

(i) for each of the two Bond Fund Years succeeding the latest 
estimated date of completion of the Improvements, if proceeds of the Additional 
Bonds are used to fund interest during the construction period, or 

(ii) if (i) is not the case, for the then current Bond Fund Year and the 
next succeeding Bond Fund Year; and 

(2) verifying that the sum of the projected Available Franchise Tax Revenues 
and the Estimated Net Revenues as shown in (1) above for each Bond Fund Year during 
which Bonds are Outstanding is not less than 1 50% of the maximum annual debt service 
requirement for each of such Bond Fund Years with respect to all of the Bonds which 
would then be Outstanding upon the issuance of such Additional Bonds so proposed to be 
issued. 

For purposes of subsection (ii) above "Estimated Net Revenues" shall be 
determined by the Qualified Consultant as follows: 

(A) The Net Revenues for any Year in the 24 months immediately 
preceding the delivery of the Additional Bonds shall first be determined. Net 
Revenues may be adjusted to give full effect to rate increases implemented prior 
to the issuance of the Additional Bonds. 

(B) Next, the additional Net Revenues, if any, resulting from the 
Improvements financed with proceeds of the Additional Bonds will be estimated 
by the Qualified Consultant for the applicable Bond Fund Years as determined in 
(ii)(l )(i) or (ii) above. 

(C) The Estimated Net Revenues will be the sum of the Net Revenues 
as calculated in (A) above, plus 75% of the estimated additional Net Revenues as 
calculated in (B) above. 

(b) All payments required by the Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have 
been made in full, and there must be in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the full amount required 
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by the Indenture to be accumulated at such time, taking into account any Reserve Instrument 
Coverage. 

(c) The coverage test set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above shall not apply to the issuance 
of any Additional Bonds to the extent such Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds 
issued under the Indenture and the Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for such Additional 
Bonds does not exceed the then remaining Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service for the 
Bonds being refunded therewith. 

(d) All Repayment Obligations then due and owing shall have been paid. 

(e) All payments required by the Indenture to be made into the Bond Fund must have 
been made in full, and there must be on deposit in each account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund (taking into account any Reserve Instrument Coverage) the full amount required by the 
Indenture to be accumulated therein. 

(f) The proceeds of the Additional Bonds, less costs of issuance and funding of 
reserves, must be used in connection with (i) the refunding of Bonds issued under the Indenture 
or any borrowing of the Issuer, (ii) the financing of a Project or (iii) any other lawful purpose. 

(g) No Event of Default is existing under the Indenture on the date of authentication of 
such Additional Bonds, unless (i) the Security Instrument Issuers, Reserve Instrument Issuers 
and Owners of all Outstanding Bonds (subject to the consent authorized by (h)(i) have each 
consented to the issuance of such Additional Bonds or (ii) upon the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof, all such Events of Default will be cured. 

Covenant against Creating or Permitting Liens 

Except for the pledge of Net Revenues to secure payment of the Bonds and Repayment 
Obligations under the Indenture, the Net Revenues are and shall be free and clear of any pledge, 
lien, charge or encumbrance thereon or with respect thereto; provided, however, that nothing 
contained in the Indenture shall prevent the Issuer from issuing, if and to the extent permitted by 
law, indebtedness having a lien on Net Revenues subordinate to that of the Bonds and 
Repayment Obligations. Nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to limit the Issuer from 
incurring additional obligations which are payable from or secured by a source of revenues that 
is different from the Revenues pledged in the Indenture. 

Special Funds and Accounts 

Use of Construction Fund. 

(a) So long as an Event of Default shall not have occurred and be continuing and except 
as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys deposited in the appropriate account 
in the Construction Fund shall be disbursed by the Trustee to pay the Costs of a Project. in each 
case within three Business Days (or within such longer period as is reasonably required to 
liquidate investments in the Construction Fund if required to make such payment) after the 
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receipt by the Trustee of a written requisition approved by an Authorized Representative of the 
Issuer, stating that the Trustee shall disburse swns in the manner specified by and at the direction 
of the Issuer and by the Security Instrument Issuer, if any, to the person or entity designated in 
such written requisition, and that the amount set forth therein is justly due and owing and 
constitutes a Cost of a Project based upon audited, itemized claims substantiated in support 
thereof. 

(b) Upon receipt of such requisition, the Trustee shall pay the obligation set forth in 
such requisition out of moneys in the applicable account in the Construction Fund. In making 
such payments the Trustee may rely upon the information submitted in such requisition. Such 
payments shall be presumed to be made properly and the Trustee shall not be required to verify 
the application of any payments from the Construction Fund or to inquire into the purposes for 
which disbursements are being made from the Construction Fund. 

(c) The Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee, within 90 days after the completion of a 
Project, a certificate executed by an Authorized Representative of the Issuer stating: 

{i) that such Project has been fully completed in accordance with the plans 
and specifications therefor, as amended from time to time, and stating the date of 
completion for such Project; and 

(ii) that the Project has been fully paid for and no claim or claims exist against 
the Issuer or against such Project out of which a lien based on furnishing labor or material 
exists or might ripen; provided, however, there may be excepted from the foregoing 
certification any claim or claims out of which a lien exists or might ripen in the event the 
Issuer intends to contest such claim or claims, in which event such claim or claims shall 
be described to the Trustee. 

( d) In the event the certificate filed with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture shall state 
that there is a claim or claims in controversy which create or might ripen into a lien, an 
Authorized Representative of the Issuer shall file a similar certificate with the Trustee when and 
as such claim or claims shall have been fully paid or otherwise discharged. 

(e) The Trustee and the Issuer shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to 
each account within the Construction Fund and all disbursements therefrom. 

{f) Unless otherwise specified in a Supplemental Indenture, upon completion of a 
Project and payment of all costs and expenses incident thereto and the filing with the Trustee of 
documents required by the Indenture, any balance remaining in the applicable account in the 
Construction Fund relating to such Project shall, as directed by an Authorized Representative of 
the Issuer, be deposited in the Bond Fund, to be applied, {i) toward the redemption of the Series 
of Bonds issued to finance such Project or {ii) to pay principal and/or interest next falling due 
with respect to such Series of Bonds. 
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(g) The Trustee shall, to the extent there are no other available funds held under the 
Indenture, use the remaining funds in the Construction Fund to pay principal and interest on the 
Bonds at any time in the event of a payment default. 

Application of Revenues 

(a) All Revenues shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and accounted for by the 
Issuer separate and apart from all other moneys of the Issuer. 

(b) As a first charge and lien on the Revenues, the Issuer shall cause to be paid from the 
Revenue Fund from time to time as the Issuer shall determine, all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses of the Issuer as the same become due and payable, and thereupon such expenses shall 
be promptly paid. 

(c) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, as a second charge and lien on the Revenues, 
i.e. from Net Revenues, the Issuer shall, on or before the first Business Day of each month, 
transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the Bond Fund from the Revenue Fund an amount equal 
to: 

(i) one sixth (116) of the interest falling due on the Bonds on the next 
succeeding Interest Payment Date established for the Bonds (provided, however, that so 
long as there are moneys representing capitalized interest on deposit with the Trustee to 
pay interest on the Bonds next coming due, the Issuer need not allocate to the Revenue 
Fund to pay interest on the Bonds); plus 

(ii) one twelfth (1/12) of the principal and premium, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding principal payment date established for the Bonds; plus 

(iii) one twelfth (1112) the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, falling due on the 
next succeeding Sinking Fund Installment payment date; 

(iv) the sum of which shall be sufficient, when added to the existing balance in 
the Bond Fund, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
promptly on each such Interest Payment Date as the same become due and payable. The 
foregoing provisions may be revised by a Supplemental Indenture for any Series of 
Bonds having other than semiannual Interest Payment Dates. 

(d) As a third charge and lien on the Revenues (on a parity basis}, the Issuer shall make 
the following transfers to the Trustee on or before the fifteenth day of each month of each year: 

(i) To the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, is not funded 
with a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, (A) to the accounts in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund any amounts required hereby and by any Supplemental Indenture to 
accumulate therein the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to each 
Series of Bonds at the times and in the amounts provided described in the Indenture and 
in any Supplemental Indenture and (B) if funds shall have been withdrawn from an 
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account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund or any account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund is at any time funded in an amount less than the applicable Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement, the Issuer shall deposit Revenues in such account(s) in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund sufficient in amount to restore such account(s) within one year with twelve 
(12) substantially equal payments during such period (unless otherwise provided for by 
the Supplemental Indenture governing the applicable Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement); or a ratable portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the 
Indenture of remaining Revenues if less than the amount necessary; and 

(ii) Equally and ratably to the accounts of the Reserve Instrument Fund with 
respect to all Reserve Instruments which are in effect and are expected to continue in 
effect after the end of such month, such amount of the remaining Revenues, or a ratable 
portion (based on the amount to be transferred pursuant to the Indenture) of the amount 
so remaining if less than the amount necessary, that is required to be paid, on or before 
the next such monthly transfer or deposit of Revenues into the Reserve Instrument Fund, 
to the Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to any Reserve Instrument Agreement, other 
than Reserve Instrument Costs, in order to cause the Reserve Instrument Coverage to 
equal the Reserve Instrument Limit within one year from any draw date under the 
Reserve Instrument. 

(e) As a fourth charge and lien on the Revenues, the Issuer shall deposit in the Repair 
and Replacement Fund any amount required hereby and by any Supplemental Indenture to 
accumulate therein the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement. In the event that the 
amount on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund shall ever be less than the Repair and 
Replacement Reserve Requirement for the Bonds then Outstanding (or, after the issuance of 
Additional Bonds, the amount required to be on deposit therein), from time to time, the Issuer 
shall deposit to the Repair and Replacement Fund from the Revenue Fund all remaining 
Revenues of the VIA Network after payments required by the Indenture have been made until 
there is on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund an amount equal to the Repair and 
Replacement Reserve Requirement. Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, this provision is 
not intended to limit, and shall not limit, the right of the Issuer to deposit additional moneys in 
the Repair and Replacement Fund from time to time as the Issuer may determine. 

(f) Subject to making the foregoing deposits, the Issuer may use the balance of the 
Revenues accounted for in the Revenue Fund for any of the following: 

(i) redemption of Bonds; 

(ii) refinancing, refunding, or advance refunding of any Bonds; 

(iii) any amounts owing from the Issuer to any Contracting Member under the 
Service Contract; or 

(iv) for any other lawful purpose, including any intergovernmental transfers, 
including but not limited to transfers to UTOPIA. 
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Use of Bond Fund. The Issuer may direct the Trustee, pursuant to a Supplemental 
Indenture, to create an account within the Bond Fund for a separate Series of Bonds under the 
Indenture. 

(a) The Trustee shall make deposits to the Bond Fund, as and when received, as 
follows: 

(i) accrued interest received upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds; 

(ii) all moneys payable by the Issuer as specified in the Indenture; 

(iii) any amount in the Construction Fund to the extent required by or directed 
pursuant to the Indenture upon completion of a Project; 

(iv) all moneys transferred from the Debt Service Reserve Fund or from a 
Reserve Instrument or Instruments then in effect as provided in the Indenture; and 

(v) all other moneys received by the Trustee under the Indenture when 
accompanied by directions from the person depositing such moneys that such moneys are 
to be paid into the Bond Fund. 

(b) Except as provided in the Indenture and except as otherwise provided by 
Supplemental Indenture, moneys in the Bond Fund shall be expended solely for the following 
purposes and in the following order of priority: 

(i) on or before each Interest Payment Date for each Series of Bonds, the 
amount required to pay the interest due on such date; 

(ii) on or before each Principal Installment due date, the amount required to 
pay the Principal Installment due on such due date; and 

(iii) on or before each redemption date for each Series of Bonds, the amount 
required to pay the redemption price of and accrued interest on such Bonds then to be 
redeemed. 

Such amounts shall be applied by the Paying Agent to pay Principal Installments and 
redemption price of, and interest on the related Series of Bonds. 

The Trustee shall pay out of the Bond Fund to the Security Instrument Issuer, if any, that 
has issued a Security Instrument with respect to such Series of Bonds an amount equal to any 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligation then due and payable to such Security Instrument 
Issuer. Except as otherwise specified in a related Supplemental Indenture all such Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations shall be paid on a parity with the payments to be made with 
respect to principal and interest on the Bonds; provided that amounts paid under a Security 
Instrument shall be applied only to pay the related Series of Bonds. If payment is so made on 
Pledged Bonds held for the benefit of the Security Instrument Issuer, a corresponding payment 
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on the Security Instrument Repayment Obligation shall be deemed to have been made (without 
requiring an additional payment by the Issuer) and the Trustee shall keep its records accordingly. 

The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to withdraw sufficient funds from 
the Bond Fund to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds and on Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations as the same become due and payable and to make said funds so 
withdrawn available to the Trustee and any Paying Agent for the purpose of paying said 
Principal and interest. 

(c) After payment in full ot the Principal of and interest on (i) all Bonds issued under 
the Indenture (or after provision has been made for the payment thereof as provided in the 
Indenture so that such Bonds are no longer Outstanding); (ii) all agreements relating to all 
outstanding Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and Reserve Instrument Repayment 
Obligations in accordance with their respective terms; and (iii) the fees, charges, and expenses of 
the Trustee, the Paying Agent and any other amounts required to be paid under the Indenture or 
under any Supplemental Indenture and under any Security Instrument Agreement and under any 
Reserve Instrument Agreement; all amounts remaining in the Bond Fund shall be paid to the 
Issuer. 

Use of Sinking Fund Account. 

(a) The Trustee shall apply moneys in the Sinking Fund Account to the retirement of 
any Term Bonds required to be retired by operation of the Sinking Fund Account under the 
provisions of and in accordance with the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of 
such Term Bonds, either by redemption in accordance with such Supplemental Indenture or, at 
the direction of the Issuer, ptirchase of such Term Bonds in the open market prior to the date on 
which notice of the redemption of such Term Bonds is given pursuant to the Indenture, at a price 
not to exceed the redemption price of such Term Bonds (plus accrued interest which will be paid 
from moneys in the Bond Fund other than those in the Sinking Fund Account). 

(b) On the maturity date of any Term Bonds, the Trustee shall apply the moneys on 
hand in the Sinking Fund Account for the payment of the principal of such Term Bonds. 

Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture or by 
Supplemental Indenture, and subject to the immediately following sentence, moneys in each 
account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall at all times be maintained in an amount not less 
than the applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any. In calculating the amount on 
deposit in each account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the amount of any Reserve Instrument 
Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit in such account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund. Each Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds shall specify 
the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, applicable to such Series which amount shall, 
unless otherwise specified by the respective Supplemental Indenture, either be (a) deposited 
immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series from (i) proceeds from the sale 
thereof or from any other legally available source, or (ii) by a Reserve Instrument or Instruments, 
or (iii) any combination thereof, (b) deposited from available Net Revenues over the period of 
time specified therein, or (c) deposited from any combination of (a) and (b) above; provided 
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however, the foregoing prov1S1ons shall be subject to the requirements of any Security 
Instrument Issuer set forth in the related Supplemental Indenture. If at any time the amount on 
deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the minimum amount to be 
maintained therein, the Trustee is required on behalf of the Issuer to exercise the Issuer's 
remedies under the Service Contract to collect amounts payable under the Service Contract, 
including the advance of Franchise Tax Revenues, sufficient to replenish the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, all amounts deposited in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of making 
transfers to the Bond Fund in the event of any deficiency at any time in the Bond Fund of the 
amount then required for payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds or, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Indenture, for the purpose of redeeming Bonds. Transfers shall be 
made from the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund in the event of a deficiency in the 
Bond Fund, in accordance the Indenture. 

In the event funds on deposit in an account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund are needed 
to make up any deficiencies in the Bond Fund as aforementioned, and there is insufficient cash 
available in such account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund to make up such deficiency and 
Reserve Instruments applicable to such Series are in effect, the Trustee shall immediately make a 
demand for payment on such Reserve Instruments, to the maximum extent authorized by such 
Reserve Instruments, in the amount necessary to make up such deficiency, and immediately 
deposit such payment upon receipt thereof into the Bond Fund. Thereafter, the Issuer shall be 
obligated to reinstate the Reserve Instrument as provided in the Indenture. 

No Reserve Instrument shall be allowed to expire or terminate while the related Series of 
Bonds are Outstanding unless and until cash has been deposited into the related account of the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, or a new Reserve Instrument has been issued in place of the expiring 
or terminating Reserve Instrument, or any combination thereof in an amount or to provide 
coverage, as the case may be, at least equal to the amount required to be maintained in the related 
account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Except as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys at any time on deposit 
in the account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund in excess of the amount required to be 
maintained therein (taking into account the amount of related Reserve Instrument Coverage) 
shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Bond Fund at least once each year. 

Moneys on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used to 
make up any deficiencies in the Bond Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account 
and any Reserve Instrument shall only be drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for 
which such Reserve Instrument was obtained. 

Whenever the balance in an account the Debt Service Reserve Fund exceeds the amount 
required to redeem or pay the related Series of Outstanding Bonds, including interest accrued to 
the date of payment or redemption and premium, if any, due upon redemption, the Trustee shall, 
upon receipt of a written direction of the Issuer, transfer the amount in the related account of the 
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Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund to be applied, on the next succeeding Interest 
Payment Date to the payment and redemption of all of the related Series of Outstanding Bonds. 

Use of Reserve Instrument Fund. There shall be paid into the Reserve Instrument Fund 
the amounts required by the Indenture and by a Supplemental Indenture to be so paid. The 
amounts in the Reserve Instrument Fund shall, from time to time, be applied by the Trustee on 
behalf of the Issuer to pay the Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations which are due and 
payable to any Reserve Instrument Provider under any applicable Reserve Instrument 
Agreement. 

Use of Repair and Replacement Fund. All moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund 
may be drawn on and used by the Issuer for the purpose of (a) paying the cost of unusual or 
extraordinary maintenance or repairs of the UIA Network; (b) paying the costs of any renewals, 
renovation, improvements, expansion or replacements to the UIA Network; and (c) paying the 
cost of any replacement of buildings, lines, equipment and other related facilities, to the extent 
the same are not paid as part of the ordinary and normal expense of the operation of the UIA 
Network. 

Funds shall be deposited monthly from available Revenues in such amounts as may be 
required from time to time by each Supplemental Indenture until the Repair and Replacement 
Fund has an amount equivalent to the Repair and Replacement Requirement. Any deficiencies 
below the Repair and Replacement Requirement shall be made up from Revenues of the UIA 
Network available for such purposes. Funds at any time on deposit in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund in excess of the amount required to be maintained therein may, at any time, 
be used by the Issuer for any lawful purpose. 

Use of Rebate Fund. 

(a) If it becomes necessary for the issuer to comply with the rebate requirements of the 
Code and the Regulations, the Trustee shall establish and thereafter maintain, so long as the 
Bonds which are subject to said rebate requirements are Outstanding, a Rebate Fund, which shall 
be held separate and apart from all other funds and accounts established under the Indenture and 
from all other moneys of the Trustee. 

(b) All amounts in the Rebate Fund, including income earned from investment of the 
fund, shall be held by the Trustee free and clear of the lien of the Indenture. In the event the 
amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund exceeds the aggregate amount of Rebatable Arbitrage for 
one or more Series of Bonds, as verified in writing by an independent public accountant or other 
qualified professional at the time the Rebatable Arbitrage is determined, the excess amount 
remaining after payment of the Rebatable Arbitrage to the United States shall, upon the Issuer's 
written request accompanied by the determination report, be paid by the Trustee to the Issuer. 

(c) The Issuer shall determine the amount of Rebatable Arbitrage and the 
corresponding Required Rebate Deposit with respect to each Series of Bonds on each applicable 
Rebate Calculation Date and take all other actions necessary to comply with the rebate 
requirements of the Code and the Regulations. The Issuer shall deposit into the Rebate Fund the 
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Required Rebate Deposit, if any, with respect to each Series of Bonds (or instruct the Trustee to 
transfer to the Rebate Fund moneys representing such Required Rebate Deposit from the Funds 
and Accounts held under the Indenture other than the Rebate Fund) or shall otherwise make 
payment of the rebate to be paid to the United States at the times required by the Code and the 
Regulations. If applicable, the Issuer shall instruct in writing the Trustee to withdraw from the 
Rebate Fund and pay any rebate over to the United States. The determination of Rebatable 
Arbitrage made with respect to each such payment date and with respect to any withdrawal and 
payment to the Issuer from the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Indenture must be verified in writing 
by an independent public accountant or other qualified professional. The Trustee may rely 
conclusively upon and shall be fully protected from all liability in relying upon the Issuer's 
determinations, calculations and certifications required by the Indenture and the Trustee shall 
have no responsibility to independently make any calculations or determination or to review the 
Issuer's determinations, calculations and certifications required by the Indenture. 

( d) The Trustee shall, at least 60 days prior to each Rebate Calculation Date, notify the 
Issuer of the requirements of the Indenture. By agreeing to give this notice, the Trustee assumes 
no responsibility whatsoever for compliance by the Issuer with the requirements of Section 148 
of the Code or any successor. The Issuer expressly agrees that (notwithstanding any other 
provision of the Indenture) any failure of the Trustee to give any such notice, for any reason 
whatsoever, shall not cause the Trustee to be responsible for any failure of the Issuer to comply 
with the requirements of said Section 148 or any successor thereof. 

( e) The provisions of the Indenture may be amended or deleted without Bondowner 
consent or notice, upon receipt by the Issuer and the Trustee of an opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel that such amendment or deletion will not adversely affect the 
excludability from gross income of interest on the Bonds or the status of the Bonds as entitled to 
Direct Payments, if applicable. 

Investment of Funds. Unless provided otherwise by Supplemental Indenture, any moneys 
in the Bond Fund, the Construction Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund, the Rebate Fund, the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, or the Repair and Replacement Fund shall, at the discretion and 
authorization of the Issuer, be invested by the Trustee in Qualified Investments; provided, 
however, that moneys on deposit in the Bond Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the 
Reserve Instrument Fund may only be invested in Qualified Investments having a maturity date 
of one year or less. If no written authorization is given to the Trustee, moneys shall be held 
uninvested. Such investments shall be held by the Trustee, and when the Trustee determines it 
necessary to use the moneys in the Funds for the purposes for which the Funds were created, it 
shall liquidate at prevailing market prices as much of the investments as may be necessary and 
apply the proceeds to such purposes. All income derived from the investment of the 
Construction Fund, the Bond Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund and the Rebate Fund shall be 
maintained in said respective Funds and disbursed along with the other moneys on deposit 
therein as provided in the Indenture. All income derived from the investment of the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund shall be disbursed in accordance with the Indenture, except as otherwise 
provided by Supplemental Indenture. All moneys in the Revenue Fund may, at the discretion of 
the Issuer, be invested by the Issuer in Qualified Investments. 
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The Trustee shall have no liability or responsibility for any loss resulting from any 
investment made in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee shall be 
entitled to assume that any investment, which at the time of purchase is a Qualified Investment, 
remains a Qualified Investment thereafter, absent receipt of written notice or information to the 
contrary. 

The Trustee may, to the extent permitted by the State Money Management Act of 1974, 
Title 51 ,  Chapter 7, Utah Code, make any and all investments permitted by the provisions of the 
Indenture through its own or any of its affiliate' s investment departments. 

The Issuer acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the comptroller of the currency 
or any other regulatory entity grant the Issuer the right to receive brokerage confirmations of the 
security transactions as they occur, the Issuer specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to 
the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will furnish the Issuer periodic cash transaction 
statements which include the detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee under the 
Indenture. 

The Issuer may invest the amounts on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund as 
permitted by applicable law. 

Trust Funds. All moneys and securities received by the Trustee under the provisions of 
the Indenture shall be trust funds under the terms of the Indenture and shall not be subject to lien 
or attachment of any creditor of the State or any political subdivision, body, agency, or 
instrumentality thereof or of the Issuer and shall not be subject to appropriation by any 
legislative body or otherwise. Such moneys and securities shall be held in trust and applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. Except as provided otherwise in the Indenture, 
unless and until disbursed pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, all such moneys and securities 
(and the income therefrom) shall be held by the Trustee as security for payment of the principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the Trustee payable 
under the Indenture. 

Method of Valuation and Frequency of Valuation. In computing the amount in any fund 
or account, Qualified Investments shall be valued at market, exclusive of accrued interest. With 
respect to all funds and accounts, valuation shall occur annually, except in the event of a 
withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund, whereupon securities shall be valued 
immediately after such withdrawal. 

Covenants 

General Covenants. The Issuer covenants and agrees with each and every Registered 
Owner of the Bonds issued under the Indenture, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve 
Instrument Provider as follows: 

(a) While any of the principal of and interest on the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, 
or any Repayment Obligations are outstanding, any resolution or other enactment of the 
Governing Body of the Issuer, applying the Revenues for the payment of the Bonds and the 
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Repayment Obligations shall be irrevocable until the Bonds and/or any Repayment Obligations 
have been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and is not subject to amendment in any 
manner which would impair the rights of the holders of those Bonds or the Repayment 
Obligations which would in any way jeopardize the timely payment of principal or interest when 
due. Furthermore, the Revenues, for all services of the UIA Network including to the Members 
under the Service Contract and to all end users within the boundaries of said Members, shall be 
sufficient to pay the Operation and Maintenance Expenses, and to provide moneys for each Bond 
Fund Year sufficient to meet the Issuer's payment obligations under the Indenture. The Issuer 
agrees that should its annual financial statement made in accordance with the provisions the 
Indenture disclose that during the period covered by such financial statement the Revenues were 
not at least equal to the above requirement, the Issuer may modify its rates, fees and charges. 

(b) The Issuer will maintain the UIA Network in good condition and operate the same 
in an efficient manner. 

(c) Each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument 
Provider shall have a right, in addition to all other rights afforded it by the laws of the State, to 
apply to and obtain from any court of competent jurisdiction such decree or order as may be 
necessary to require the Issuer to charge or collect reasonable rates for services supplied by the 
UIA Network sufficient to meet all requirements of the Indenture and of any applicable Reserve 
Instrument Agreement. 

( d) So long as any principal and interest payments of the Bonds are Outstanding, or any 
Repayment Obligations are outstanding, proper books of record and account will be kept by the 
Issuer separate and apart from all other records and accounts, showing complete and correct 
entries of all transactions relating to the UIA Network. Each Registered Owner, Security 
Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider, or any duly authorized agent or agents 
thereof shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all records, accounts and data 
relating thereto and to inspect the UIA Network. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, 
the Issuer further agrees that it will within two hundred and ten (2 10) days following the close of 
each Bond Fund Year cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made by an independent 
firm of certified public accountants, showing the receipts and disbursements for account of the 
Revenues and the UIA Network, and that such audit will be available for inspection by each 
Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider. 

All expenses incurred in compiling the information required by the Indenture shall be 
regarded and paid as an Operation and Maintenance Expense 

First Lien of Bonds; Equality of Liens. The Bonds and any Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations constitute an irrevocable lien upon the Net Revenues. The Issuer 
covenants that the Bonds and Security Instrument Repayment Obligations hereafter authorized to 
be issued and from time to time outstanding are equitably and ratably secured by a lien on the 
Net Revenues and shall not be entitled to any priority one over the other in the application of the 
Net Revenues regardless of the time or times of the issuance of the Bonds or delivery of Security 
Instruments, it being the intention of the Issuer that there shall be no priority among the Bonds or 
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the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations regardless of the fact that they may be actually 
issued and/or delivered at different times. 

Any assignment or pledge from the Issuer to a Reserve Instrument Provider of (a) 
proceeds of the issuance and sale of Bonds, (b) Net Revenues, or ( c) Funds established hereby, 
including investments, if any, thereof, is and shall be subordinate to the assignment and pledge 
effected hereby to the Registered Owners of the Bonds and to the Security Instrument Issuers. 

Payment of Principal and Interest. The Issuer covenants that it will punctually pay or 
cause to be paid the Principal of and interest on every Bond issued under the Indenture, any 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and any Reserve Instrument Repayment 
Obligations, in strict conformity with the terms of the Bonds, the Indenture, any Security 
Instrument Agreement and any Reserve Instrument Agreement, according to the true intent and 
meaning hereof and thereof. The Principal of and interest on the Bonds, any Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations and any Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations are payable solely 
from the Net Revenues (except to the extent paid out of moneys attributable to Bond proceeds or 
other funds created under the Indenture or the income from the temporary investment thereof), 
which Net Revenues are hereby specifically pledged and assigned to the payment thereof in the 
manner and to the extent specified in the Indenture, and nothing in the Bonds, the Indenture, any 
Security Instrument Agreement or any Reserve Instrument Agreement should be considered as 
pledging any other funds or assets of the Issuer for the payment thereof. 

Performance of Covenants; Issuer. The Issuer covenants that it will faithfully perform at 
all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in the 
Indenture, and in any and every Bond, Security Instrument Agreement and Reserve Instrument 
Agreement. The Issuer represents that it is duly authorized under the Constitution of the State to 
issue the Bonds authorized hereby and to execute the Indenture, that all actions on its part for the 
issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Indenture have been duly and 
effectively taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the Registered Owners thereof are and will 
be valid and enforceable obligations of the Issuer according to the import thereof: 

List of Boruiholders. The Trustee will keep on file at its Corporate Trust Office a list of 
the names and addresses of the Registered Owners of all Bonds which are from time to time 
registered on the registration books in the hands of the Trustee as Registrar for the Bonds. At 
reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Trustee, said list may be 
inspected and copied by the Issuer or by the Registered Owners (or a designated representative 
thereof) of 10% or more in Principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, such ownership and the 
authority of any such designated representative to be evidenced to the satisfaction of the Trustee. 

Management of Assets. The Issuer, in order to assure the efficient management and 
operation of its assets and to assure each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and 
Reserve Instrument Provider from time to time that the Issuer's assets will be operated on sound 
business principles, will employ competent and experienced management for said assets, will use 
its best efforts to see that said assets are at all times operated and maintained in first-class repair 
and condition and in such manner that the operating efficiency thereof shall be of the highest 
character. 
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Use of Legally Available Moneys. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Indenture, 
nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to prevent the Issuer from (a) paying all or any part of 
the Operation and Maintenance Expenses from any funds available to the Issuer for such 
purpose, (b) depositing any funds available to the Issuer for such purpose in any account in the 
Bond Fund for the payment of the interest on, premium, if any, or the principal of any Bonds 
issued under provisions of the Indenture or for the redemption of any such Bonds, or ( c) 
depositing any funds available to the Issuer for such purpose in the Reserve Instrument Fund for 
the payment of any amounts payable under any applicable Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Payment of Taxes and Other Charges. The Issuer covenants that all taxes and 
assessments or other municipal or governmental charges lawfully levied or assessed upon the 
UIA Network or upon any part thereof or upon any income therefrom will be paid when the 
same shall become due, that no lien or charge upon the UIA Network or any part thereof or upon 
any Revenues thereof, except for the lien and charge thereon created under the Indenture and 
securing the Bonds, will be created or permitted to be created ranking equally with or prior to the 
Bonds (except for the parity lien thereon of Additional Bonds issued from time to time under the 
Indenture and under Supplemental Indentures to the Indenture), and that all lawful claims and 
demands for labor, materials, supplies or other objects which, if unpaid, might by law become a 
lien upon the UIA Network or any part thereof or upon the Revenues thereof will be paid or 
discharged, or adequate provision will be made for the payment or discharge of such claims and 
demands within 60 days after the same shall accrue; provided, however, that nothing in the 
Indenture shall require any such lien or charge to be paid or discharged or provision made 
therefor so long as the validity of such lien or charge shall be contested in good faith and by 
appropriate legal proceeding . 

Insurance. The Issuer, in its operation of the System, will self-insure or carry insurance, 
including, but not limited to, workmen's compensation insurance and public liability insurance, 
in such amounts and to such extent as is normally carried by others operating public utilities of 
the same type. The cost of such insurance shall be considered an Operation and Maintenance 
Expense of the System. In the event of loss or damage, insurance proceeds shall be used first for 
the purpose of restoring or replacing the pr:operty lost or damaged. Any remainder shall be paid 
into the Bond Fund. 

Covenant Not to Sell. The Issuer will not sell, lease, mortgage, encumber, or in any 
manner dispose of the VIA Network or any substantial part thereof, including any and all 
extensions and additions that may be made thereto, until all principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, and all Repayment Obligations, have been paid in full, except as follows: 

(a) The Issuer may sell any portion of said property (i) which shall have been replaced 
by other property of at least equal value, (ii) which shall cease to be necessary for the efficient 
operation of the UIA Network and the disposition of which will not, as determined by the 
governing body of the Issuer, result in a material reduction in Revenues in any year; or (iii) the 
value, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, of the property to be sold, leased, 
abandoned, mortgaged, or otherwise disposed of (together with any other property similarly 
disposed of within the 12 calendar months preceding the proposed disposition) does not exceed 
five percent (5%) of the value of the UIA Network assets, as determined by the governing body 
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of the Issuer, provided, however, that in the event of any sale as aforesaid, the proceeds of such 
sale not needed to acquire other UIA Network property shall be paid into the Bond Fund. 

(b) The Issuer may lease or make contracts or grant licenses for the operation of, or 
make arrangements for the use of, or grant easements or other rights with respect to, any part of 
the UIA Network, provided that any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement or right 
does not impede the operation of the UIA Network; and any payment received by the Issuer 
under or in connection with any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement or right in 
respect of the UIA Network or any part thereof shall constitute Revenues. 

Default Provisions 

Events of Default. Each of the following events is declared an "Event of Default": 

(a) if payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made by 
or on behalf of the Issuer when the same shall become due and payable, or 

(b) if payment of the principal or Sinking Fund Installment or the redemption premium, 
if any, on any of the Bonds shall not be made by or on behalf of the Issuer when the same shall 
become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption in advance of 
maturity or through failure to fulfill any payment to any fund under the Indenture or otherwise; 
or 

(c) if the Issuer shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations 
under the Indenture; or 

( d) if an order or decree shall be entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, 
appointing a receiver or custodian for any of the Revenues of the Issuer, or approving a petition 
filed against the Issuer seeking reorganization of the Issuer under the federal bankruptcy laws or 
any other similar law or statute of the United States of America or any state thereof, or if any 
such order or decree, having been entered without the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer shall 
not be vacated or discharged or stayed on appeal within 30 days after the entry thereof; or 

(e} if any proceeding shall be instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, 
for the purpose of effecting a composition between the Issuer and its creditors or for the purpose 
of adjusting the claims of such creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter 
enacted, if the claims of such creditors are or may be under any circumstances payable from 
Revenues; or 

(f) if (i} the Issuer is adjudged insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) an 
order, judgment or decree be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction appointing, without 
the consent of the Issuer, a receiver, trustee or custodian of the Issuer or of the whole or any part 
of the Issuer's property and any of the aforesaid adjudications, orders, judgments or decrees shall 
not be vacated or set aside or stayed within 60 days from the date of entry thereof; or 
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(g) if the Issuer shall file a petition or answer seeking reorganization, relief or any 
arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law or statute of the 
United States of America or any state thereof; or 

(h) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of 
competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Issuer or of the whole or any 
substantial part of the property of the Issuer, and such custody or control shall not be terminated 
within 30 days from the date of assumption of such custody or control; or 

(i) if the Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the 
covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, or in the Indenture or 
any Supplemental Indenture on the part of the Issuer to be performed, other than as set forth in 
the Indenture, and such Default shall continue for 30 days after written notice specifying such 
Event of Default and requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given to the Issuer by the 
Trustee, which may give such notice in its discretion and shall give such notice at the written 
request of the Registered Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate 
Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding under the Indenture; or 

G) any event specified in a Supplemental Indenture as constituting an Event of Default 

Remedies; Rights of Registered Owners. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the 
Trustee, upon being indemnified pursuant to the Indenture, may pursue any available remedy by 
suit at law or in equity to enforce the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
on the Bonds then Outstanding or to enforce any obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture; 
provided however, that nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to grant to the Bondholder, 
the Trustee, any Security Instrument Issuer or any Reserve Instrument Issuer, any right of 
acceleration of the payment of the Principal of or interest or premium on the Bonds. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred, and if requested so to do by (a) Registered 
Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds 
then Outstanding, (b) Security Instrument Issuers at that time providing Security Instruments 
which are in full force and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and which secure 
not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time 
Outstanding, or ( c) any combination of Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers 
described in (a) and (b) above representing not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate 
Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, and indemnified as provided in the 
Indenture, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights and powers 
conferred by the Indenture as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most expedient 
in the interest of the Registered Owners and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

No remedy by the terms of the Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee (or to 
the Registered Owners or to the Security Instrument Issuers) is intended to be exclusive of any 
other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any 
other remedy given to the Trustee, the Registered Owners or the Security Instrument Issuers or 
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 
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No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default 
shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any Event of Default 
or acquiescence therein; and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and 
as often as may be deemed expedient. 

No waiver of any Event of Default under the Indenture, whether by the Trustee or by the 
Registered Owners or the Security Instrument Issuers, shall extend to or shall affect any 
subsequent Event of Default or shall impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon 

Right of Registered Owners to Direct Proceedings. Anything in the Indenture to the 
contrary notwithstanding, unless a Supplemental Indenture provides otherwise, either (i) the 
Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, 
(ii) the Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full 
force and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 
50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, or (iii) any combination of 
Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers described in (i) and (ii) above representing 
not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, shall have the 
right, at any time, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and delivered to the 
Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in 
connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Indenture, or for the 
appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings under the Indenture; provided, that such 
direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of law and of the 
Indenture. 

Application of Moneys. All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given 
or action taken under the provisions of the Indenture shall, after payment of Trustee's fees and 
expenses including the fees and expenses of its counsel for the proceedings resulting in the 
collection of such moneys and of the expenses and liabilities and advances incurred or made by 
the Trustee and any other outstanding fees and expenses of the Trustee relating to its duties under 
the Indenture, be deposited in the Bond Fund and all moneys so deposited in the Bond Fund shall 
be applied in the following order: 

(a) To the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest then due and 
payable on the Bonds and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations as follows: 

(i) Unless the Principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, 
all such moneys shall be applied: 

FIRST-To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments 
of interest then due on the Bonds and the interest component of any Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations then due, in the order of the maturity of the 
installments of such interest and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the 
amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or privilege; and 
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SECOND-To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid 
Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds which shall have become due 
(other than Bonds called for redemption for the payment of which moneys are 
held pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture), in the order of their due dates, 
and the Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
then due, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the 
Bonds and the Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations due on any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according to 
the amount of Principal due on such date, to the persons entitled thereto without 
any discrimination or privilege. 

(ii) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all 
such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the Principal and interest then due and 
unpaid upon the Bonds and Security Instrument Repayment Obligations, without 
preference or priority of Principal over interest or of interest over Principal, or of any 
installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond or Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligation over any other Bond or Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligation, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for Principal 
and interest, to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

(iii) To the payment of all obligations owed to all Reserve Instrument 
Providers, ratably, according to the amounts due without any discrimination or preference 
under any applicable agreement related to any Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, such 
moneys shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, 
having due regard to the amounts of such moneys available for such application and the 
likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future. Whenever 
the Trustee shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date upon which such application is to be made 
and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal paid on such dates shall cease to accrue. 

Remedies Vested in Trustee. All rights of action (including the right to file proof of 
claims) under the Indenture or under any of the Bonds may be enforced by the Trustee without 
the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or other proceedings 
related thereto and any such suit or proceedings instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its 
name as Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Registered 
Owners of the Bonds, and any recovery of judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the 
Registered Owners of the Outstanding Bonds. 

Rights and Remedies of Registered Owners. Except as provided in the Indenture, no 
Registered Owner of any Bond or Security Instrument Issuer shall have any right to institute any 
suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of the Indenture or for the 
execution of any trust thereof or for the appointment of a receiver or any other remedy under the 
Indenture, unless an Event of Default has occurred of which the Trustee has been notified as 
provided in the Indenture, or of which by the Indenture it is deemed to have notice, nor unless 
also Registered Owners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or 
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Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and 
effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 25% in 
aggregate principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have made written request to 
the Trustee and shall have offered reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise the 
powers granted in the Indenture or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name, 
nor unless also they have offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided in the Indenture nor 
unless the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse to exercise the powers granted in the Indenture, 
or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name or names. Such notification, 
request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every case at the option of the Trustee to be 
conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trust of the Indenture, and to any action 
or cause of action for the enforcement of the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or 
for any other remedy under the Indenture; it being understood and intended that no one or more 
Registered Owner of the Bonds or Security Instrument Issuer shall have any right in any manner 
whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of the Indenture by its action or to enforce any 
right under the Indenture except in the manner provided in the Indenture, and that all proceedings 
at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the 
Indenture and for the equal benefit of the Registered Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding and 
all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments. Nothing contained in 
the Indenture shall, however, affect or impair the right of any Registered Owner or Security 
Instrument Issuer to enforce the covenants of the Issuer to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on each of the Bonds issued under the Indenture held by such Registered Owner and 
Security Instrument Repayment Obligations at the time, place, from the source and in the manner 
in said Bonds or Security Instrument Repayment Obligations expressed. 

Termination of Proceedings. In case the Trustee, any Registered Owner or any Security 
Instrument Issuer shall have proceeded to enforce any right under the Indenture by the 
appointment of a receiver, or otherwise, and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or 
abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, the Registered 
Owner, or Security Instrument Issuer, then and in every such case the Issuer and the Trustee shall 
be restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, and all rights, remedies and 
powers of the Trustee shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. 

Waivers of Events of Default. Subject to the Indenture, the Trustee may in its discretion, 
and with the prior written consent of all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing 
Security Instruments, waive any Event of Default under the Indenture and its consequences and 
shall do so upon the written request of the Registered Owners of (a) a majority in aggregate 
Principal amount of all the Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the time 
providing Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and are not in default on any 
payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds 
at the time Outstanding in respect of which an Event of Default in the payment of principal and 
interest exist, or (b) a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or 
Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force and 
effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in 
aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding in the case of any other Event of 
Default; provided, however, that there shall not be waived (i) any default in the payment of the 
principal of any Bonds at the date that a Principal Installment is due, or (ii) any default in the 

B-36 



payment when due of the interest on any such Bonds, unless prior to such waiver or rescission, 
all arrears of interest, with interest (to the extent permitted by law) at the rate borne by the Bonds 
in respect of which such Event of Default shall have occurred on overdue installments of interest 
and all arrears of payments of principal and premium, if any, when due and all expenses of the 
Trustee, in connection with such Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for, and in 
case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account 
of any such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or determined 
adversely, then and in every such case the Issuer, the Trustee, the Registered Owners and the 
Security Instrument Issuers shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the 
Indenture, respectively, but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other 
Event of Default, or impair any right consequent thereon. 

Cooperation of Issuer. In the case of any Event of Default under the Indenture, the Issuer 
shall cooperate with the Trustee and use its best efforts to protect the Registered Owners, 
Reserve Instrument Providers and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

Trustee Provisions 

Acceptance of the Trusts. The Trustee accepts the trusts imposed upon it under the 
Indenture, and agrees to perform said trusts as a corporate trustee ordinarily would perform said 
trusts under a corporate indenture, but no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into the 
Indenture against the Trustee. 

(a) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers thereof and perform any of its 
duties by or through attorneys, agents, receivers, or employees and the Trustee shall not be 
responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent or attorney appointed with 
due care and shall be entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters of trusts hereof and the 
duties under the Indenture, and may in all cases pay such reasonable compensation to all such 
attorneys, agents, receivers and employees as may reasonably be employed in connection with 
the trusts under the Indenture. The Trustee may act upon the opinion or advice of counsel. The 
Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or damage resulting from any action or non-action in 
good faith in reliance upon such opinion or advice. 

(b) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital under the Indenture, or in the 
Bonds (except in respect to the certificate of the Trustee endorsed on the Bonds), or collecting 
any insurance moneys, or for the validity of the execution by the Issuer of the Indenture or of any 
supplements thereto or instruments of further assurance, or for the sufficiency of the security for 
the Bonds issued under the Indenture or intended to be secured hereby; and the Trustee shall not 
be bound to ascertain or inquire as to the performance or observance of any covenants, 
conditions or agreements on the part of the Issuer; but the Trustee may require of the Issuer full 
information and advice as to the performance of the covenants, conditions and agreements 
aforesaid and as to the condition of the property conveyed by the Indenture. The Trustee shall 
not be responsible or liable for any loss suffered in connection with any investment of funds 
made by it in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The Trustee shall have no 
responsibility with respect to any information, statement, or recital in any offering memorandum 
or other disclosure material prepared or distributed with respect to the Bonds. 
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( c) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated or 
delivered under the Indenture, except as specifically set forth in the Indenture. The Trustee may 
become the owner of Bonds secured hereby with the same rights which it would have if not 
Trustee. 

{d) The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, request, consent, 
certificate, order, affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document believed to be genuine 
and correct and to have been signed or sent by the proper person or persons. Any action taken by 
the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture upon the request or authority or consent of any person who 
at the time of making such request or giving such authority or consent is the Registered Owner of 
any Bond, shall be conclusive and binding upon all future Owners of the same Bond and upon 
Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in place thereof. 

( e) As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency or validity of 
any instrument, paper or proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon a certificate signed 
on behalf of the Issuer by an Authorized Representative as sufficient evidence of the facts therein 
contained and prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default of which the Trustee has been 
notified as provided in the Indenture, or of which by said Paragraph it is deemed to have notice, 
shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect that any particular dealing, 
transaction or action is necessary or expedient, but may at its discretion secure such further 
evidence deemed necessary or advisable, but shall in no case be bound to secure the same. The 
Trustee may accept a certificate of an Authorized Representative of the Issuer under its seal to 
the effect that a resolution in the form therein set forth has been adopted by the Issuer as 
conclusive evidence that such resolution has been duly adopted, and is in full force and effect. 

(f) The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in the Indenture shall 
not be construed as a duty and the Trustee shall not be answerable for other than its negligence or 
willful misconduct. 

(g) The Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any 
Event of Default under the Indenture, except an Event of Default described in the Indenture, 
unless the Trustee shall be specifically notified in writing of such Default by the Issuer, a 
Security Instrument Issuer or by the Registered Owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in 
the aggregate principal amount of any Series of the Bonds then Outstanding and all notices or 
other instruments required hereby to be delivered to the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be 
delivered at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, and in the absence of such notice 
so delivered, the Trustee may conclusively assume there is no Event of Default except as 
aforesaid. 

(h) At any and all reasonable times and upon reasonable prior written notice, the 
Trustee, and its duly authorized agents, attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and 
representatives, shall have the right fully to inspect all books, papers and records of the Issuer 
pertaining to the Bonds, and to take such memoranda from and in regard thereto as may be 
desired. 
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(i) The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the 
execution of the said trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises. 

(j) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere contained in the Indenture, the Trustee shall 
have the right, but shall not be required, to demand, in respect of the authentication of any 
Bonds, the withdrawal of any cash, the release of any property, or any action whatsoever within 
the purview hereof, any showing, certificates, opinions, appraisals, or other information, or 
corporate action or evidence thereof, in addition to that by the terms hereof required as a 
condition of such action by the Trustee, deemed desirable for the authentication of any Bonds, 
the withdrawal of any cash, or the taking of any other action by the Trustee. 

(k) All moneys received by the Trustee or any Paying Agent shall, until used or applied 
or invested as provided in the Indenture, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were 
received but need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law. 
Neither the Trustee nor any Paying Agent shall be under any liability for interest on any moneys 
received under the Indenture except such as may be agreed upon. 

(1) If any Event of Default under the Indenture shall have occurred and be continuing, 
the Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it hereby and shall use the same 
degree of care as a prudent man would exercise or use in the circumstances in the conduct of his 
own affairs. 

(m) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers 
vested in it by the Indenture at the request, order or direction of any of the Registered Owners, 
Security Instrument Issuers or Reserve Instrument Providers, pursuant to the provisions of the 
Indenture, unless such Registered Owners, Security Instrument Issuers or Reserve Instrument 
Providers shall have offered to the Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to it against the 
costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred therein or thereby. 

(n) The Trustee shall not be required to expend, advance, or risk its own funds or incur 
any financial liability in the performance of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or 
powers if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or 
satisfactory indemnity against such risk or liability is not assured to it. 

Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee. The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and/or 
reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered as Trustee under the Indenture and all 
advances, counsel fees and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by the 
Trustee in connection with such services. The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and 
reimbursement for the reasonable fees and charges of the Trustee as Paying Agent and Registrar 
for the Bonds as provided in the Indenture. Upon an Event of Default, but only upon an Event of 
Default, the Trustee shall have a right of payment prior to payment on account of interest or 
principal of, or premium, if any, on any Bond for the foregoing advances, fees, costs and 
expenses incurred. The Trustee's rights under the Indenture will not terminate upon its 
resignation or removal or upon payment of the Bonds and discharge of the Indenture. 
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Notice to Registered Owners if Event of Default Occurs. If an Event of Default occurs of 
which the Trustee is by the Indenture required to take notice or if notice of an Event of Default 
be given to the Trustee as in said Section provided, then the Trustee shall give written notice 
thereof by registered or certified mail to all Security Instrument Issuers or to Registered Owners 
of all Bonds then Outstanding shown on the registration books of the Bonds kept by the Trustee 
as Registrar for the Bonds. 

Intervention by Trustee. In any judicial proceeding to which the Issuer is a party and 
which in the opinion of the Trustee and its counsel has a substantial bearing on the interest of 
Registered Owners of the Bonds, the Trustee may intervene on behalf of such Owners and shall 
do so if requested in writing by the Registered Owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. The rights and obligations of the 
Trustee under the Indenture are subject to the approval of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Successor Trustee. Any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be 
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its 
corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or 
association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it 
is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor Trustee under the Indenture and vested with 
all of the title to the whole property or trust estate and all the trusts, powers, discretions, 
immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its predecessor, without the execution or 
filing of any instrument or any further act, deed of conveyance on the part of any of the parties to 
the Indenture, anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding. 

Resignation by the Trustee. The Trustee and any successor Trustee may at any time 
resign from the trusts created in the Indenture by giving written notice to the Issuer, served 
personally or by registered or certified mail, and by registered or certified mail to each Reserve 
Instrument Issuer, Security Instrument Issuer and Registered Owner of Bonds then Outstanding, 
and such resignation shall take effect upon the appointment of and acceptance by a successor 
Trustee appointed in the manner set forth in the Indenture; provided, however that if no 
successor Trustee has been appointed within sixty (60) days of the date of such notice of 
resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the 
appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it 
deems proper and prescribes, appoint a successor Trustee. 

Removal of the Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time, by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments (a) in writing delivered to the Trustee, and signed by the Issuer, unless 
there exists any Event of Default, or (b) in writing delivered to the Trustee and the Issuer, and 
signed by the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds then 
Outstanding if an Event of Default exists; provided that such instrument or instruments 
concurrently appoint a successor Trustee meeting the qualifications set forth in the Indenture. 
No removal of a Trustee shall become effective under the Indenture unless and until a successor 
Trustee has been appointed; provided, however that if no successor Trustee has been appointed 
within 60 days of the date of such notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition any 
court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may 
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thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it deems proper and prescribes, appoint a successor 
Trustee. 

Appointment of Successor Trustee; Temporary Trustee. In case the Trustee under the 
Indenture shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of dissolution or 
liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting under the Indenture, or in case it shall be 
taken under the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a 
successor may be appointed by the Issuer (or, if an Event of Default exists, by the Registered 
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, by an instrument 
or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such Owners, or by their attorneys in fact, duly 
authorized; provided, nevertheless, that in case of such vacancy the Issuer by an instrument 
executed by an Authorized Representative under its seal, may appoint a temporary Trustee to fill 
such vacancy until a successor Trustee shall be appointed by the Registered Owners in the 
manner above provided; and any such temporary Trustee so appointed by the Issuer shall 
immediately and without further act be superseded by the Trustee so appointed by such 
Registered Owners). Every successor Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions of the 
Indenture or otherwise shall be a trust company or bank in good standing having a reported 
capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000. 

Each Reserve Instrument Provider and Security Instrument Issuer shall be notified 
immediately upon the resignation or termination of the Trustee and provided with a list of 
candidates for the office of successor Trustee. 

Concerning Any Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee appointed under the 
Indenture shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to the Issuer an 
instrument in writing accepting such appointment under the Indenture, and thereupon such 
successor, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all the 
estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor; but such 
predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the Issuer, or of the successor Trustee, 
execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the estates, 
properties, rights, powers and trusts of such predecessor under the Indenture; and every 
predecessor Trustee shall deliver all securities and moneys held by it as Trustee under the 
Indenture to its successor. Should any instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by any 
successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in such successor the estates, rights, 
powers and duties hereby vested or intended to be vested in the predecessor, any and all such 
instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer. 
The resignation of any Trustee and the instrument or instruments removing any Trustee and 
appointing a successor under the Indenture, together with all other instruments provided for in 
Article VIII of the Indenture shall be filed or recorded by the successor Trustee in each recording 
office; if any, where the Indenture shall have been filed and/or recorded. 

Trustee Protected in Relying Upon Indenture, Etc. The indentures, opinions, certificates 
and other instruments provided for in the Indenture may be accepted by the Trustee as conclusive 
evidence of the facts and conclusions stated in the Indenture and shall be full warrant, protection, 
and authority to the Trustee for the release of property and the withdrawal of cash under the 
Indenture. 
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Successor Trustee as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. In the event of a 
change in the office of Trustee, the predecessor Trustee which has resigned or been removed 
shall cease to be Trustee under the Indenture and Registrar for the Bonds and Paying Agent for 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, and the successor Trustee shall become 
such Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

Trust Estate May Be Vested in Separate or Co-Trustee. It is the purpose of the Indenture 
that there shall be no violation of any law of any jurisdiction (including particularly the laws of 
the State) denying or restricting the right of banking corporations or associations to transact 
business as Trustee in such jurisdiction. It is recognized that in case of litigation under the 
Indenture, and in particular in case of the enforcement of remedies on Event of Default, or in 
case the Trustee deems that by reason of any present or future law of any jurisdiction it may not 
exercise any of the powers, rights, or remedies granted under the Indenture to the Trustee or hold 
title to the trust estate, as granted in the Indenture, or take any other action which may be 
desirable or necessary in connection therewith, it may be necessary that the Trustee appoint an 
additional individual or institution as a separate or co-trustee. The following provisions of the 
Indenture are adapted to these ends. 

In the event that the Trustee appoints an additional individual or institution as a separate 
or co-trustee, each and every remedy, power, right, claim, demand, cause of action, immunity, 
estate, title, interest and lien expressed or intended hereby to be exercised by or vested in or 
conveyed to the Trustee with respect thereto shall be exercisable by and vested in such separate 
or co-trustee, but only to the extent necessary to enable the separate or co-trustee to exercise such 
powers, rights and remedies, and every covenant and obligation necessary to the exercise thereof 
by such separate or co- trustee shall run to and be enforceable by either of them. 

Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by the 
separate trustee or co-trustee so appointed by the Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in 
and confirming to it such properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations, any and all 
such deeds, conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on request of such trustee or co­
trustee, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer. In case any separate trustee or 
co-trustee, or a successor to either, shall die, become incapable of acting, resign or be removed, 
all the estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such separate trustee or 
co-trustee, so far as permitted by law, shall vest in and be exercised by the Trustee until the 
appointment of a new trustee or successor to such separate trustee or co-trustee. 

Annual Accounting. The Trustee shall prepare an annual accounting for each Bond Fund 
Year by the end of the month following each such Bond Fund Year showing in reasonable detail 
all financial transactions relating to the funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the 
Indenture during the accounting period and the balance in any funds or accounts created by the 
Indenture as of the beginning and close of such accounting period, and shall mail the same to the 
Issuer, and to each Reserve Instrument Provider requesting the same. The Trustee shall also 
make available for inspection by any Registered Owner a copy of said annual accounting (with 
the names and addresses of Registered Owners receiving payment of debt service on the Bonds 
deleted therefrom) and shall mail the same if requested in writing to do so by Registered Owners 
of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding to 

B-42 



the designee of said Owners · specified in said written request at the address therein designated. 
On or before the end of the month following each Bond Fund Year, the Trustee shall, upon 
written request, provide to the Issuer and the Issuer's independent auditor representations as to 
the accuracy of the facts contained in the financial reports concerning the transactions described 
in the Indenture that were delivered by the Trustee during the Bond Fund Year just ended. 

Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law and subject to the provisions of the 
Indenture, the Issuer shall indemnify and save Trustee harmless against any liabilities it may 
incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties under the Indenture, other than 
those due to its own negligence or willful misconduct. 

Trustee 's Right to Own and Deal in Bonds. The bank or trust company acting as Trustee 
under the Indenture, and its directors, officers, employees or agents, may in good faith buy, sell, 
own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds issued under the Indenture and secured by the Indenture, 
and may join in any action which any Bondholder may be entitled to take with like effect as if 
such bank or trust company were not the Trustee under the Indenture. 

Supplemental Indentures 

Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Registered Owners, Security 
Instrument Issuers and Reserve Instrument Providers. The Issuer and the Trustee may, without 
the consent of any of the Registered Owners, or Reserve Instrument Providers, but with the 
consent of the Security Instrument Issuer and with notice to all Reserve Instrument Providers, 
enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture, as shall not be inconsistent 
with the terms and provisions of the Indenture, for any one or more of the following purposes: 

(a) To provide for the issuance of Additional Bonds in accordance with the provisions 
of the Indenture; 

(b) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Indenture; 

(c) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Registered Owners, any 
Security Instrument Issuers and any Reserve Instrument Providers any additional rights, 
remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered 
Owners or any of them which shall not adversely affect the interests of any Reserve Instrument 
Providers or Security Instrument Issuers without its consent; 

(d) To subject to the Indenture additional Revenues or other revenues, properties, 
collateral or security; 

(e) To provide for the issuance of the Bonds pursuant to a book-entry system or as 
uncertificated registered public obligations pursuant to the provisions of the Registered Public 
Obligations Act, Title 15, Chapter 7 of the Utah Code, or any successor provisions of law; 

(f) To make any change which shall not materially adversely affect (determined as if 
there were no Security Instrument in place) the rights or interests of the Owners of any 

B-43 



Outstanding Bonds, any Security Instrument Issuers or any Reserve Instrument Provider, 
requested or approved by a Rating Agency in order to obtain or maintain any rating on the Bonds 
or requested or approved by a Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider in order 
to insure or provide other security for any Bonds; 

(g) If the Bonds affected by any change are rated by a Rating Agency, to make any 
change which does not result in a reduction of the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so 
affected, provided that if any of the Bonds so affected are secured by a Security Instrument, such 
change must be approved in writing by the related Security Instrument Issuer; 

(h) If the Bonds affected by any change are secured by a Security Instrument, to make 
any change approved in writing by the related Security Instrument Issuer, provided that if any of 
the Bonds so affected are rated by a Rating Agency, such change shall not result in a reduction of 
the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so affected; 

(i) Unless otherwise provided by a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a Series of 
Bonds, the designation of the facilities to constitute a Project by such Supplemental Indenture 
may be modified or amended if the Issuer delivers to the Trustee (1) a Supplemental Indenture 
designating the facilities to comprise the Project, (2) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect 
that such amendment will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status (if applicable) or validity of 
the Bonds and (3) a certificate of the Issuer to the effect that such amendment will not adversely 
affect the Issuer's ability to comply with the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(j) To correct any references contained in the Indenture to provisions of the Act, the 
Code or other applicable provisions of law that have been amended so that the references in the 
Indenture are correct. 

Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Registered Owners, Security Instrument 
Issuers and Reserve Instrument Providers; Waivers and Consents by Registered Owners 
Exclusive of Supplemental Indentures covered by the Indenture and subject to the terms and 
provisions contained in the Indenture, and not otherwise, the Registered Owners of 66 2/3% in 
aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to 
time, anything contained in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, to (i) consent to and 
approve the execution by the Issuer and the Trustee of such other indenture or indentures 
supplemental to the Indenture as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by the Issuer for the 
purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the 
terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any Supplemental Indenture, or (ii) waive or 
consent to the taking by the Issuer of any action prohibited, or the omission by the Issuer of the 
taking of any action required, by any of the provisions of the Indenture or of any indenture 
supplemental to the Indenture; provided, however, that nothing in the Indenture contained shall 
permit or be construed as permitting (a) an extension of the date that a Principal Installment is 
due at maturity or mandatory redemption or reduction in the principal amount of, or reduction in 
the rate of or extension of the time of paying of interest on, or reduction of any premium payable 
on the redemption of, any Bond, without the consent of the Registered Owner of such Bond, or 
(b) a reduction in the amount or extension of the time of any payment required by any Fund 
established under the Indenture applicable to any Bonds without the consent of the Registered 
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Owners of all the Bonds which would be affected by the action to be taken, or ( c) a reduction in 
the aforesaid aggregate principal amount of Bonds, the Registered Owners of which are required 
to consent to any such waiver or Supplemental Indenture, or (d) affect the rights of the 
Registered Owners of less than all Bonds then outstanding, without the consent of the Registered 
Owners of all the Bonds at the time Outstanding which would be affected by the action to be 
taken. In addition, no supplement to the Indenture shall modify the rights, duties or immunities 
of the Trustee, without the written consent of the Trustee. If a Security Instrument or a Reserve 
Instrument is in effect with respect to any Series of Bonds Outstanding and if a proposed 
modification or amendment would affect such Series of Bonds, then, except as provided in the 
Indenture, neither the Indenture nor any Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of 
Bonds shall be modified or amended at any time without the prior written consent of the related 
Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider, as applicable. 

Trustee Authorized to Join in Amendments and Supplements; Reliance on Counsel. The 
Trustee is authorized to join with the Issuer in the execution and delivery of any Supplemental 
Indenture or amendment permitted by of the Indenture and in so doing shall be fully protected by 
an opinion of Counsel that such Supplemental Indenture or amendment is so permitted and has 
been duly authorized by the Issuer and that all things necessary to make it a valid and binding 
agreement have been done. 

Opinion of Counsel for Supplemental Indentures. Before the Issuer and the Trustee shall 
enter into any Supplemental Indenture pursuant to the Indenture, there shall have been delivered 
to the Trustee an opinion of Counsel stating that such Supplemental Indenture is authorized 
under the Indenture, and that such Supplemental Indenture will, upon the execution and delivery 
thereof, be valid and binding upon the Issuer in accordance with its terms. 

Discharge of Indenture 

If the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shaH be otherwise paid or provision for 
payment made, to or for the Registered Owners of the Bonds, the principal of and interest due or 
to become due thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated therein, and shall pay or cause to 
be paid to the Trustee all sums of moneys due or to become due according to the provisions of 
the Indenture, and to all Security Instrument Issuers and all Reserve Instrument Providers all 
sums of money due or to become due according to the provisions of any Security Instrument 
Agreements, Reserve Instrument Agreements, as applicable, then these presents and the estate 
and rights hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void, whereupon the Trustee shall cancel 
and discharge the lien of the Indenture, and release, assign and deliver unto the Issuer any and all 
the estate, right, title and interest in and to any and all rights assigned or pledged to the Trustee, 
held by the Trustee, or otherwise subject to the lien of the Indenture, except moneys or securities 
held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, the payment of 
amounts pursuant to any Security Instrument Agreements or the payment of amounts pursuant to 
any Reserve Instrument Agreements. 

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of the Indenture when payment 
of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date 
be by reason of maturity or upon redemption as provided in the Indenture, or otherwise), either 
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(a) shall have been made or caused to have been made in accordance with the terms thereof, or 
(b) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with or for the benefit of the Trustee, in 
trust and irrevocably setting aside exclusively for such payment, (i) moneys sufficient to make 
such payment, or (ii) Direct Obligations, maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and 
at such times as will insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, and all 
necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agent 
pertaining to the Bond with respect to which such deposit is made shall have been paid or the 
payment thereof provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee. At such times as a Bond shall be 
deemed to be paid under the Indenture, as aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or entitled to 
the benefits of the Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from such moneys or 
Direct Obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of Bonds, which by their terms may be 
redeemed prior to their stated maturity, no deposit under the immediately preceding Paragraph 
shall be deemed a payment of such Bonds as aforesaid until the Issuer shall have given the 
Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable instructions: 

(a) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond is to be paid, whether at 
maturity or on a redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted hereby); 

(b) directing the Trustee to call for redemption pursuant to the Indenture any Bonds to 
be redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture; and 

( c) if the Bonds to be redeemed will not be redeemed within 90 days of such deposit, 
directing the Trustee to mail, as soon as practicable, in the manner prescribed by the Indenture, a 
notice to the Registered Owners of such Bonds and to each related Security Instrument Issuer 
that the deposit required by the Indenture has been made with the Trustee and that such Bonds 
are deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Indenture and stating the maturity or 
redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or 
redemption price, if applicable, on said Bonds as specified in Subparagraph 0 above. 

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided the Indenture may at the direction 
of the Issuer also be invested and reinvested in Direct Obligations, maturing in the amounts and 
times as set forth in the Indenture, and all income from all Direct Obligations in the hands of the 
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest 
thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so deposited, shall be deposited in 
the Bond Fund as and when realized and collected for use and application as are other moneys 
deposited in that fund; provided, however, that before any excess moneys shall be deposited in 
the Bond Fund, the Trustee shall first obtain a written verification from a certified public 
accountant that the moneys remaining on deposit with the Trustee and invested in Direct 
Obligations after such transfer to the Bond Fund shall be sufficient in amount to pay principal 
and interest on the Bonds when due and payable. 

If the Bonds to be defeased pursuant to the Indenture are Variable Rate Bonds, the Issuer 
must receive a prior written confirmation from the Rating Agency to the effect that such 
defeasance will not result in a downgrade or withdrawal of the rating on the Bonds. 
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Notwithstanding any provision of any other Articie of the Indenture which may be 
contrary to the provisions of the Indenture, all moneys or Direct Obligations set aside and held in 
trust pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture for the payment of Bonds (including interest 
thereon) shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the particular Bonds (including 
interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or Direct Obligations have been so set aside 
in trust. 

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, if moneys or Direct 
Obligations have been deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture for the 
payment of Bonds and such Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid in full, no 
amendment to the provisions of the Indenture shall be made without the consent of the 
Registered Owner of each Bond affected thereby. 

Applicable Law 

The Indenture shall be governed exclusively by the applicable laws of the State. 
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APPENDIX C 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon the issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds, Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Bond Counsel to the Agency, 
proposes to issue its approving opinion in substantially the following form. 

[Date oflssuance] 

Utah Infrastructure Agency 
Murray, Utah 

ZB, National Association, dba Zions Bank 
Corporate Trust Department 
Salt Lake City, Utah 

Re: Utah Infrastructure Agency $21 ,810,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Issuer") in 
connection with the issuance by the Issuer of its $21 ,8 10,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications 
Revenue Bonds, Series 201 8A (the "Series 2018A Bonds"). The Series 2018A Bonds are being 
issued pursuant to (a) a resolution of the Issuer adopted on April 1 6, 2018, (b) a General 
Indenture of Trust dated as of December I ,  201 7  (the "General Indenture"), as heretofore 
supplemented and as further supplemented by a Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated 
as of July l ,  201 8  (the "Second Supplemental Indenture" and together with the General 
Indenture, the "Indenture"), each between the Issuer and ZB, National Association, dba Zions 
Bank, as trustee. 

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we 
deem necessary to render this opinion. As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have 
relied upon the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us 
without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. Our opinion is limited to 
the matters expressly set forth herein, and we express no opinion concerning any other matters. 

Based on our examination and the foregoing, we are of the opinion as of the date hereof 
and under existing law, as follows: 

l .  The Indenture has been authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer, 
constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Issuer and creates a valid lien on the Revenues 
(as defined in the Indenture) and the other amounts pledged thereunder for the security of the 
Series 201 8A Bonds. 

2. The Series 2018A Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the Issuer 
payable solely from the Revenues and other amounts pledged therefor in the Indenture, and the 
Series 2018A Bonds do not constitute a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer within the 



meaning of any State of Utah constitutional provision or statutory limitation, nor a charge against 
the general credit of the Issuer. 

3. The interest on the Series 2018A Bonds (i) is excludable from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes and (ii) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing 
the federal alternative minimum tax. The opinions set forth in this paragraph are subject to the 
condition that the Issuer complies with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 201 8A Bonds in order 
that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. The Issuer has covenanted to comply with all of these requirements. Failure to 
comply with certain of these requirements may cause the interest on the Series 201 8A Bonds to 
be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of 
the Series 201 8A Bonds. 

4. The interest on the Series 201 8A Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual 
income taxes. 

We express no opinion herein regarding the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the 
Official Statement or any other offering material relating to the Series 201 8A Bonds. 

The rights of the holders of the Series 201 8A Bonds and the enforceability thereof and of 
the documents identified in this opinion may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, and other similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent applicable, and their 
enforcement may be subject to the application of equitable principles and the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases. 

This opinion is given as of its date, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement 
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to our attention or any changes 
in law that may occur after the date of this opinion. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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APPENDIX D 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Disclosure Undertaking"), is executed and 
delivered by the Utah Infrastructure Agency (the "Agency"), in connection with the issuance by 
the Agency of its $21,810,000 Tax-Exempt Telecommunications Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A 
(the "Series 201 8  Bonds"). The Series 201 8  Bonds are being issued pursuant to a General 
Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2017, as previously supplemented and as further 
supplemented by a Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1 ,  2018 
(collectively, the "Indenture"), between the Agency and ZB, National Association, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"). In connection with the aforementioned transaction, the Agency covenants and agrees 
as follows: 

Section 1 .  Purpose of the Disclosure Undertaking. This Disclosure Undertaking is 
being executed and delivered by the Agency for the benefit of the Bondholders of the 
Series 2018 Bonds and in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with the Rule (as each 
such term is defined below). The Agency represents that it will be the only obligated person with 
respect to the Series 201 8  Bonds at the time the Bonds are delivered to the Underwriter and that 
no other person is expected to become so committed at any time after issuance of the Series 2018 
Bonds. 

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture or 
parenthetically defined herein, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure 
Undertaking unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have 
the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" means the Annual Report provided by the Agency pursuant to, and as 
described in Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking. 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean any person or entity engaged by the Agency to 
provide the reports and notices required hereunder and which has been designated in writing by 
the Agency as the Dissemination Agent. Written notice of the engagement and designation of a 
Dissemination Agent shall be filed by the Agency with the Trustee. The initial Dissemination 
Agent shall be the Agency. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5 of this Disclosure 
Undertaking. 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the address of which is 
currently 1300 I Street, NW, Suite 1000, Washington D.C. 20005; Telephone (202) 838-1500; 
the current website address of which is www.msrb.org and www.emma.msrb.org (for municipal 
disclosures and market data). 

"Official Statement" shall mean the Official Statement of the Agency dated June 26, 
2018, relating to the Series 2018 Bonds. 



"Rule" shall mean Rule 1 5c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time 
to time. 

"Underwriter" shall mean KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., as the original underwriter of 
the Series 201 8  Bonds and required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of 
the Series 201 8  Bonds. 

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent, not later than 210  days 
after the end of each fiscal year of the Agency (presently June 30) commencing with the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 201 8, provide to the MSRB in electronic format an Annual Report which is 
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Undertaking. Not later than 
fifteen (15) business days prior to said date, the Agency shall provide the Annual Report to the 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Trustee). The 
Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a 
package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Undertaking; provided that the audited financial statements of the Agency may be submitted 
separately from the balance of the Annual Report. If the Agency's  fiscal year changes, it shall 
give notice of such change in the same manner as for Listed Event under Section 5(e). 

(b) If by ten (10) business days prior to the date specified in Section 3(a) for 
providing the Annual Report to the MSRB, the Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of 
the Annual Report, the Dissemination Agent shall contact the Agency to determine if the Agency 
is in compliance with Section 3(a). 

( c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that the Annual Report has been 
provided to the MSRB by the dates required in Sections 3(a), the Dissemination Agent shall, in a 
timely manner, send a notice of failure to file the Annual Report to the MSRB in electronic 
format. 

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

{i) determine each year prior to the dates for providing the Annual Report, the 
website address to which the MSRB directs the annual reports to be submitted; and 

(ii) send a notice to the Agency certifying that the Annual Report has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Undertaking, stating the date it was provided, and 
listing the website address to which it was provided. 

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. (a) The Annual Report of the Agency shall 
contain or incorporate by reference the following: 

(i) A copy of the Agency's  annual financial statements prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and audited by a certified 
public accountant or a firm of certified public accounts. If the Agency's audited annual 
financial statements are not available by the time specified in Section 3(a) above, 
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unaudited financial statements will be provided as part of the Annual Report of the 
Agency and audited financial statements will be provided when and if available. 

(ii) An update of the financial and operating information in the Official 
Statement relating to the Agency of the type contained in tables under the headings: 

NET REVENUES OF THE AGENCY 

-Revenue and Expense Details 
-Customer Concentration 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2018 BONDS 

-Debt Service Coverage 
THE AGENCY - Financial Summaries and Budget 

-Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position 
-Statement of Net Position 
-Budget 

THE NETWORK - Intersection of UIA Network and UTOPIA Network 
-Combined UTOPIA/UIA Networks - Customers, Take-Rate and Chum Rate 

(b) Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Agency, as appropriate or related 
public entities, which have been submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be 
available from the MSRB. The Agency, as appropriate, shall clearly identify each such other 
document so incorporated by the reference. All of the items contained in the Annual Report 
shall be submitted in a pdfword-searchable format. 

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(a), the Agency shall give or cause to 
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the 
Series 201 8  Bonds in a timely manner but not more than ten (10) Business Days after the event: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(v) Adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Series 201 8  Bonds or other material events affecting the tax status of the Series 201 8  
Bonds; 
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(vi) Defeasances; 

(vii) Tender offers; 

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings; or 

(ix) Rating changes. 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(b ), the Agency shall give or cause to 
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the 
Series 201 8  Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the Listed 
Event, if material: 

(i) Mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of 
the assets of the obligated persons or their termination; 

(ii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name 
of a trustee; 

(iii) Non-payment related defaults; 

(iv) Modifications to the rights of the owners of the Series 201 8  Bonds; 

(v) Series 201 8  Bond calls; or 

(vi) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Series 201 8  Bonds. 

(c) Whenever the Agency obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
under Section 5(b ), whether because of a notice from the Trustee or otherwise, the Agency shall 
as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities 
laws. 

( d) If the Agency has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
under Section 5(b) would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall 
promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in writing. Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination 
Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (f). 

(e) If the Agency determines that the Listed Event under Section 5(b) would not be 
material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall so notify the Dissemination 
Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to 
subsection (f). 

(f) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Agency to report the 
occurrence of a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with 
the MSRB in an electronic format in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after 
the Listed Event. 
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Section 6. Termination of Rqmrting Obligation. The Agency's obligations under 
this Disclosure Undertaking shall terminate upon the earlier of: (i) the date of legal defeasance, 
prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Series 201 8  Bonds; (ii) the date that the Agency 
shall no longer constitute an "obligated person" within the meaning of the Rule; or (iii) the date 
on which those portions of the Rule which require this written Disclosure Undertaking are held 
to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction in a non-appealable action, have been repealed 
retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Series 2018 Bonds. 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Agency may, from time to time, appoint or 
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure 
Undertaking, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a 
successor Dissemination Agent. 

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other prov1S1on of this 
Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency may amend this Disclosure Undertaking and any provision 
of this Disclosure Undertaking may be waived, provided that the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, 
5(a) or 5(b), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises 
from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or 
status of an "obligated person" (as defined in the Rule) with respect to the Series 201 8  
Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, 
in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the 
requirements of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Series 201 8  Bonds, 
after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any 
change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Bondholders of the 
Series 201 8  Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to 
the Indenture with the consent of Bondholders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders of 
the Series 201 8  Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, 
the Agency shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report of the Agency, and shall 
include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its 
impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of 
financial information or operating data being presented by the Agency, as applicable. In 
addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed 
Event under Section S(a), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made 
should present a comparison {in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) 
between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and 
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. 
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Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Undertaking shall be 
deemed to prevent the Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Undertaking or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, 
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Undertaking. If the Agency chooses to 
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Undertaking, the Agency shall 
have no obligation under this Disclosure Undertaking to update such information or include it in 
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Agency or the Dissemination 
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Undertaking, any Bondholder of the 
Series 2018 Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including 
seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Agency or Dissemination 
Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Undertaking. A 
default under this Disclosure Undertaking shall not be deemed an "event of default" under the 
Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Undertaking in the event of any failure of 
the Agency or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Undertaking shall be an 
action to compel performance. 

Section 1 1 .  Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure 
Undertaking, and the Agency agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, 
directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may 
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, 
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending against any claim of 
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty with respect to the content of any 
disclosures or notice made pursuant to the terms hereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no 
duty or obligation to review or verify any information, disclosures or notices provided to it by 
the Agency and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity f.;>r the Agency, the 
Registered Owners of the Series 2018 Bonds or any other party. The Dissemination Agent shall 
have no responsibility for the Agency's failure to report to the Dissemination Agent a Listed 
Event or a duty to determine the materiality thereof. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty 
to determine or liability for failing to determine whether the Agency has complied with this 
Disclosure Undertaking. The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon certifications of 
the Issuer at all times. The obligations of the Agency under this Section shall survive resignation 
or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Series 201 8  Bonds. 

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Undertaking shall inure solely to the 
benefit of the Agency, the Dissemination Agent, the Underwriter and the Bondholders from time 
to time of the Series 2018 Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
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Section 13.  CounteI:parts. This Disclosure Undertaking may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Date: July 1 1 ,  2018. 
UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGENCY 

Chair 
ATTEST: 

By: ___________ _ 

Secretary-Treasurer 
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COMMUNICATJONS SER.VICE CO�CT 

This Communications Service Contract (the "Service Contract•') Is entered into as 
of this 1• day of May. 2011, by and among the Ufah'lnfi'astr11cture Agcn9)' ("UIA"), an 
lnterlocal cooperative and separate legal entit)', body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State gf Utah. organized under tha lntcrlocaJ Cooperation Act, Title 1 J .  
Chapter lJ, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as 1mondcd, and Brigham City, CcntcrviJJe City, 
Layton City. Lindon City. Midvale City, Murtay, City, City Of Orem, and West. Valley 
City. (Individually the "City."' and collectively, the "Cities"), each a muui9lpal corppratlon 
and a political subdivision or the Stale of Utah (UIA and tho Cities are sometimes 
rcferrod to indlvldually as • ''Party" �d collectlvcly as "Parties• herein). 

R E C I T A L S  

1 .  Punuant to Section I0-8Ml4, Utah Code Annotated 1953, u amended, 
cities may construct, maintain. and operate tolecommunication llnes and cabl� television 
lines. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Jnterlocal Cooperation Ac:t. Title I 1, 
Chapter 13, Utah Code Annotated 19S3, u aincndcd (the "lntcrlocal Aet"), -cities may 
exercise and enjoy jointly with other citiea any pawer1 privileges or authority exercised or 
capable of exercise by a city• 

3. 'The lntcrlocal Act pennlts cities to make·tho most efficient use of their 
pow;r by mabJing them to �perate with other cities. 011 the; b�fs of mutual advanta1e 
.and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and under fonns of 
govemrnc:ntaJ orpnlz.adon that will aceord hesc with gqqpblc. economic, population 
and other factors inilucnc:ing tho needs of d;velopnvmt of lol;af communities and will 
provide the bcmofrt or .economy of scale. economic development, ' and \ltiliution of 
natural rcsourgcs for the overall promotion of the gcncraJ welfare of the. Staio of Utah. 

4. �rsuant to the lntcrlocal Acrt the Clti� oraanlzed UJA to provid� fbr the 
acquisition, constructk>n, Uld installation of tclecommunicaflom lines and cable 
televl1Jon lines iogethor with related Improvements and facllltle.s (the ''lmproW:mc:nts .. ) 
for the purpose of oonnecting properties within the Cities to the Network (as herein 
defln.ed), all of which shall directly or lndlrectly benefit eaeh of the Cities. 

1: .. . 
s. UIA. is a separate legal entity, body politiQ and coiporate and a political 

subdivision of the State of Utall regularly created, cs1ablishcd, oreanized and existing 
under and by virtue of the pro'lislons of the lnterfocal ACt and of th� Constitution of dtl!l 
State of Utah. 

. 6. Through UIA, the Cities are desirous to w<>rk toaethcr cooperatively to 
provide their residents with tho opporiunJty to connect to the Network and each City has 
determined that Ihm: is a need wi1hln that City to provide the Conneaion Services (as 
herein defined). Baaed on tho Feuibilily Report (a herein defined). the Cities anticipate 
that the Service· Fees (u herein defined) ehafged by the Cfdcs to the end users through 



tneir Communications Enterprises (as herein defined) will be liUfficient to satisfy their 
obligations her�mder. 

· 

7. Socdon l 1·1 3·21.5 ofthe 1nterlocal Act provides that the Cities may sh� 
their taxes or Olher revenues wllh one another for the purpose of accomplisfUng their 
objectives as set fort'h in an b1ta'local agrc:cmont, provided that c1u1h of the Cities 
complie9 with the requirements of Secticn 1 l·ll·202 • .5 of the Intcrlocal Act. 

8. In order to assure that the Cities oollectively ·meet their obligations 
hereunder to UJA. each City desires lo pledge !1s Pnlnchi5e Tax Revenues to the' limited 
extent 1)1'0'¥ldcd herein, to ac;complllh the Cities' mutual . objective· of receiving 
Connection SorviCea (u horein detlned). 

9. It Es the intenlion of the Pitrties that r.he Improvements to pro'Vlde the 
Connccdon Services be operated and managed for the mutuaJ b¢neflt of lhe Parties and 
that lhe Cities wUJ pay Service Pees to UIA calculated in ICCOrdance with Section 3.2 of 
this Service Contract The tmounts paid by the Cities hereunder do not constitute a 
purchase of aoy us,ora or facilities owned by UIA, 11nd m-c: made 1ol�ly in consideration 
for the Connections s�rvlees provided by UIA to the Cities. 

IO. The ConJ18Ctions Services provided under tni!i Servic.D Contract are not 
Cable Tcilevillion Scnices or �blic Tclci;ommunications Services as dcftned in the: 
Munioipa.1 Cable Television or Public Telcgommunlcations Services A.ct, Title .10, 
Chapter 18, Utah Code Anriotated 1953, as amended (the "Te�ommunications Act,,). 
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AGREEMENT 
In consideration of the Connection Service horein provided,· the benefit th!:' Chi� 

sho.ll rec8ive individually and as a group In connecting end users within the Cities to the 
Network and the mutua1 covenants contained ho�in. the Parti• aaree as follows: 
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AR11Cl..B I 

DBFlNmONS 
. . 

Tho foJlowing terms, whether in the •ingular or in the plural, when U&a1 herein 
and' in the exhibits hereto, shaf J have the meanings set forth below: 

11 Annual Budgert means the budget adopted by UIA. 

''Capital Costs" means all capital costs related· to the lmprov.enumts incurred by 
UIA in any particular Fiscal Vear or period to .which said � 111 applicable o� charges 
midi; therefor during such Fiscal Year or period. fncludins amounts set.asida fn reserves 
for tlle payment of Capital Costs� Capital Costs include, without duplication, (11) the 
payment of any obliptlons incurt'ai ·by UIA to financo or refinance t11e costs of U'le 
Improvement� (b) amounts requin.ld to be deposited liY>m time to time into required 
reserves, and (c) all other '"Pital costs (determined in aCcordance with generally accepted 
accounting principle&) of the Improvements. 

"Cities" mean111 collectively all cities that are participant!! in UlA and that have 
entered into this Service Conb'act. 

''C.ommunications Enterprise" nieans the enterprise established by eaeh City 
pursuant to the Uniform Fiscal Procadures Ac:.t fot Utah Cities, Title f 0, Chapter 6. Utah 
Code A"notated · 1953, as amended. tO faclllratc lhc providing of high speed 
communicadons services through the Network to �ew end users within the City pursuant 
to this SeA"ice ConltlOt. 

"Connaction Service$" mew lhe whotosale stn1ices proYided by UIA to e.ch 
City pursuant to ibis Service Contrect whereby end users within each City.have aecess to 
UIA Improvements through which they m&)' contract with private providers tn receive the 
Cable Television Services and Public Telecommunication Services (as those t.enn& arc 
defined in the Tek:oonmnmications Act) provicSed through the NetW<>rk. Tho �rm 
ConnCQtion Services includes Connoction Services Capacity and is more partiaularly 
desoribcd ln Exhi� (:. atta�ed hmtct IDd lm;orporatod hcn;in. · 

"Connection Services Capacity,. m"ans the aoc:osa rights to ii.t)d capacity in lhe 
Network. 

"Fcasi.billty Re�" means 1he feasibility report prepared by Design N\ne and 
datod O�ber '· 2010. wilh respect to the oonsttuctioa of the lmprovcmenra and Jhe 
sutrwionoy of rho Service Pees to meet IMuall)' the UlA Revonue Requirement. 

"Flseat Year" means a period commencing on Juiy I and ending on the next 
suc�in2 June 30. 

'1Franchisc Tax Revenues" ntcllRS aJJ fra11Qfllso tax revenues rcceiWJd by a City 
pursuant· to Title 10. Chapter l, Part 3. Utah Code Annoiawd t 953, as amended. 
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.. Improvements'' means those faclllties, improvements, and access, lease, use. 
and/or capacity rights acquired1 constructed, and/OJ' installed, operated and m1jntained by 
UlA to prQvide Connection Services to the Cities pursuant to this S�rvicc Contract, as 
more ndly described In !xhit?JI B anached hereto, and Incorporated herein. 

nNetwork" means the l.TTOPIA advanced communications fiber i;iptic to the 
premises open access communications network. 

"Operating Conti11gency" meMS an unplanned event or circumstance, a series of 
events or clrcumHanccs, or any restriclion or condition imposed by any governmontal 
authority which reducea and 1tH•teri1dly ad\'9rscb' affects access to the lmpro\'ernents. 

"Operallon and Main1eh8noc Ei:i:penses" means all expenses .reasonably Incurred 
by UIA In connection with tful operatJon and maintenance of the Improvements, whether 
incurred by UIA or paid to any other entity pursuant to comract or otherwise. necessary 
to keep the lmprovements in efficient operating ·condition, includJns. cost of audils 
hereinafter required. payment of prcmotionaJ and marketing ex�e:s and l'Clll estate 

brokerage fees, payment of premiums for insurance, and1 generally all expenses, 
exelusive of dep�iation Onch1ding depreciation �lated �pcn�s cf a:ny jcint venture} 
which un�r gmorally accepted accounUng practices are properly aHoe111blc co operation 
and maintenance: however, only such ekpcnses as ere reasonably and properly necessary 
to the efficient operation and maintenance of lhe Improvements shall be inch.aded. 

14Revenues" means all Service Pees and other revenues, fees, income, rents, l!lld 
receipts recoi.,.ed or camcd by UIA under this Service Contract, together with all interest 
earned by and moneys derlvod from the sale of investments in tbc relakld ft.ands thoreof. 

"Setvl..e Contract" mcQJll! tl:iii Communlcalions Service Contraot dated as of 
October I .  ZOJO, as It may be amended ftorn time to 1imo in accordance witil Section 5.lS 
herein. 

"Sct\lice Pees" means all fees charged by each of the Cities to the end users 
within the boundaries of ea�b such City. A designated portion of the Serviec Pees of 
each City shall be payable to UIA tn coniilderatloh for the Connection Services provided 
·by UlA to that Cit)' pursuant to this Service Contract. The designated portion of the 
Service Fees shall be calculated and paid pursua11t to Article Ill oftbi:i Service Contraot. 
Service Fees do not Include any Francnise Tax Rovenues.. 

uUIN' means the Ut.itb Infrastructure Agency, a .eparate legal entity, body, politi� 
and COJpOrafCI and 1 politloal 111bdlvlalon of the State of Utah, orcated under the Jnterlocel 
AcL UIA is separate from �h of the Cities that �rcated it. 

· · 

"UIA Revonuc Requirement" mean11 the aum of the Opontion and Maintenance 
Expenas and the Ca.pita\ Costs of UlA dUting each fiscal Vear or ether awl�le 
period. 

. 

"Uncontrollablo Forces" means any oause beyond the control of the Party 
affected, inoluding, but not limited to, failure of fileilfties, flood, earth9uake, stonn, 
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Hghtoning, flre, epidemic, war, riot, cMI dlstwbances, ·labor disturbance. sabocagc, mJd 
rcmaint by eourt or public authority. 
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ARTICLE II 

CONNECTJON SER VICBS 

Seotion 2.1 Connection Services. UlA shall· provide to the Ciiies and the 
Cities shall receive &om UIA, Connection Services, including ·Connection Service 
Capacft)'1 sufficient to allow not less th1111 the total number or end users within eaeh City 
as set forth In Exhibit C attached hereto and incorpqr.iod hetein, to connect to the 
Network. ln the event a City determines to provldo Connection Services to more than the 
number of end users allocaled to it as set fo�h in BxhjbitC. it shall submit to UIA a 
written propon.I, requesting additional Conn�tlon Service Capacity from UIA. Said 
proposal shall specify the total addkior11ill number of end users to be provided Connection 
Services and the dale on which tho City requ1:1sts such capacity to be effective. UIA shall 
accept or reject said proposal within fifteen ( t S) d4ys from the date it received the 
proposal. 

Section 2.2 Av1il�lity. UlA shall provide continuous Connection Services 
bmring onty emergcney or scheduled downtime, curtailments, and Operating 
Contingcsicles. 
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ARTICLE DI 

PAYMENT FOR CONNECTION SBRVICBS 

Sectiori J.1 �termlnatl.9'l oUaymem. In .�nslderatlon fur the proVlding of 
Conrtcction Services by UlA, each City shall pay to UTA for oac:h Fiscal Yeari if thon due 
and owing, 95% of its Servic:c Pees charged by the Chy during said Fiscal Year, to be 
paid and remitted to UIA on a monlhly basis in accordanoe with Section 3.3. Such 
Service Pees shall only be dbe to UlA ftom each City if and wbcn such City is provided 
with Connection Services end the City has actualJy oharged Service Fees to end users. 
Bach City shall chqe all and users Scnrlco Fees through its Communications Enterprise 
and shall remit said Sorvige Feos to UIA on a monthly basis utd in ac;cordarioe with 
Section 5.12. 

8'ectlon J.2 Obligation la AbsQ!y�. Sllbject to the provisions of Section 3.3 
hereof limiting- the sources of payment hereunder, each City'& obligations to pay Service 
Pees to UIA fur Connection Servicos pursu1111t. to thi1 Article Ill i;half be irrevocable, 
absolute and unconditional and s1'111I not be subject to any reduction, whether by detens� 
reooupment. counterclaim or offset or otherwise, and shall not be condlUonod upon the 
construction, perfurmance or non-perlbrrnallQC of rhc f mpr0vements or UJA, Jhe remedy 
for non•performance being limitod to mzndzimus, specific porformanc:c or eq\litab� 
rcml>dy. Notwithstanding the foregoing. It ls not intended that the Cities by thb SGn'icc 
Contract usume any obligation or liability as a guarantor, endorser, suroty, or ntherwisc 
with respect to any obligations incunm by UlA with respect ta the rmprovcmenrs. 

S&:tlon J.3 5RGr.ial Llmitpd Qbl)UJ:ion. Eaoh Cit)' qrees to pay _the Service 
Fees due to UIA for Connection Services in monthly Installments. Subject to SCCllion 3.S 
herein, eaeh Chy's obllgalions to ftllke monthly p�yments pursuant to this Section 3.3 
shall constitute an obligation pay.able solely from Smlec fees. ln no event shall the 
obligations of a City hereunder be construed ftS 11. general obligation or indcbtednesll of 
that Ciry wichln the meaning of any constitutional or sllMOly Umit11tion or provisiori or 
payable from ad valorem property taxes ofttiat City. The Parties acknowledge and agree 
that sueh paymept1 shall be made °"t of the enterprise t\ind csir.bllshcd with respect to 
each City's Communications Bn.terprisc. Etch monthly Installment shall be due and 
po)'abtc by lhe Cilic:s 10 UIA riot Jatr:f than the fifteenth day of the n� succeeding 
month. A final aocoundng of all transllctions between UIA and th� Cities IR each Flsce.I 
Year shall be rendered to tho Cities by UIA on or before die 90th day of tlae. su«:eeding 
Piscaf Year. The final a00ounting sbaJJ spl!dfy the amount, if any, which Cities must pay 

·to UIA to reconcile toral monthly pa,Yrnents with actual lfll®,nta duo UIA with Si:rviee 
Fees indicat.cd by an underpayment or overpayment to bl "1ade by the Cities or UIA 
"'spectively, which amount shalJ be payable to UIA no later than lO dayi after the receipt 
of the t1nal acoount!ng. 

Sectit>n 3.4 Dcfayl\ in Pmnmt. lfa City's Sm-a Fees are not paid in full on 
or before the Qlon of business on lhe fifteonlh day .of the month ill which sald Fees are 
due, an interest charge will be made at the nte of ten percent (10%) per aMUm or the 
maximum rate of intcmt legally ct.rpble, �hidlcvcr is leas. If all or a portion of the 
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Service Pees remain unpaid subsc:quent to Jbe fiftccn1h day of the: rnonth in which the Pees arc due. UIA may, up0n siving thiny (30) days' edvanc:e written 11otfoe calculated 
from the date of receipt of such notice by che app1iC111ble Cit)', discontinue Connection 
Services to said City unless, and may refuse to res11me said services to said City until, the 
delil\qucnt ir:istatlment Ml been paid. From Bfld �fter the e1fectfve dato of such notice, 
UIA shal\ not provide Connection Serviees to said City. 

Section 3.S Use of Prancbjse Tl!'XRe\lenug. 
. (a) The Cities enaaged Design Nine to prepare the Peasiblllty .Report 
with respect to the construction of the lmptL)velnenw .and the sufficicmcy of the 

Service Fees of aU of the Cities to meet the U1A Re'venue Requirement. The 
PeaslbUity Report demonstrates that the combined City Revenues of all Cities are 
cx�cted tO equal not less th�n the UIA Revenue R.equll'ement. However, in the 
event aQd to the extent there shall be a sh.ortf•lt in such City Re\'enues (the 
"Shortfall"), such that UIA shall not have $Ufticient moneys to pay the UXA 
Revenue R.equiroment wlle1t due, each City hereby pledges and agreo.� to lend it! 
Prf.lnchiiie Tax Ro�enues in lhe maxinwm armual prineii-1 amount all� to 
eaeh City as set forth in JLxbiblt 0 lltlKhed hereto and incorporated herein. On or 
prior to each January t and July l commoneln& JllllUary .I, 2012, UIA shall 
de«e111Jinc: 

(i) the UIA Revenue Requirement due on th� next succeeding 
M.oh IS or ScptembCJ" 1 S, as applicable� and 

(ii) the imiounc of the Revenues UlA reasonably bclkves witl 
be available for payment of the UJA RCYcmuc Requirement on said 
Mftl'Ch IS or Sept:eniber 15. ln add,,lon, U1A shall, on or prior to • 
January 15 or July J '· u applicable. submit a requese to cac:h City for 
F�anchlse T.X .Revenues �ual to that City'11 pert'.cntage ofc:he Shortfall $Ct 
forth in hb,lblt D attached hereto and Incorporated herein, blrt In no event 
more than the maximum prJnclpal amoimt set forth In �hfbJt D, Blwh 
City �grccs to pay its pereentage of the Shortftlll to U IA no later than the 
noxt succcedl�g March IS C)r September I�. a appliubl�. l!JA c;ovenants 
to take iS\lch other action as it lawfully may ·take to usure th1t each City 
remits to lJIA from Franchise Tax. RDYenues Its share of said Shortfall 
pursuant to this Service Contrai;t. 

(b) �h City shall be obligated to pay its percentage of the Shortfall . 
as i:irovided in F:!bibij D finm PranohJse Tax Revenues ·regardless of the amount 
of Servi� Fees payable by that City pursuant to 8eetion 3 .J herein. 

{c) Baell City rnay ereate or i11eur addhional debt on a perity with any 
outstanding debt sec:iued by a priority lien plodge of that City's Franchise Tax 
Revenues or on parity witb the pledge created pursuant to this Seetlon 3 .S so long 
as the pledpd Pranohisc Tax Rovenue$ reeeived by that City during the Fisoal 
Year lmrn�iately preceding the Fiscal Year in which the additional priority or 
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parity debt Is to be issued is not Jess than J .50% of the maximum. IU)nual debt 
sor\lico on the sum of (i) the additional priority or parity debt plus (ii) any debt 
previously iss\led and outscanding plus (iii) the toral maximum annual amount 
pledged by the applicable City hereunder, tested fbr the J>Criod of sud! additional 
prlotlty oa: parity debt. 

{d) All Franchiae Tax Rov;oues paid by a City to UIA or it5 designee 
pursuant to this SeotiOll .l.5 shall constitute ·a Joan by that City to UIA whith •hall 
be paid by UIA ai lhe tinie and tn the manner as pro"ided in the fomi of a 
promissory noti= attached h«eW as Exhibit E fi'om -� fliture UIA Revenues. Bi.oh 
City shall be entitled to tnterelt on each lo1m adYanoe ftom the date said advance 
is Nde by that City to UlA or tts dcsignec. at a rate of six percent (6%) per 
annum, unless a les&\W Interest nde ls set forth in the catocutod prominory note for 
said loen. Bach City ackl'lowledges that the loan obligation incurred by UlA 
herein shall be: subordinate and junior to UJA 's other payment obHaaOons. 

Section 3.6 Su�i,g11..fmceedi.aa. UIA or Its dcslgnee shall havct the right 
from time to time lo begin and maintaisl 11u�s1ivc �ings -iJainst a City for the 
recovery of all Service Fees or Shortfalls requited to be mlde under this Servfec Conrract 
by that City and to recover die same upon lhe liability of that City herein provided. 
Nothhig herein contained 11halt be. deemed to.n=qulre U\A to defer commencement of any 
such proceeding until the end of the term of this Service Contract. 

SectJon 3.7 piscondnuam:;e; Termination. No discontinuance of.al'J)' or all of 
the rights of a City to the Connection Services shall be wnstrucd as an clocdon on 1he 
part of UIA or itl designcc to terminate the interest rJf dlat City under this Service 
Contract unless a nDtfce of intention be given to that City or unless such UJnnination be 
decreed at the instance of UIA or its designee by a court cf competent jurisdkldon. 

Sectian 3.8 Bcmcdica. UIA or its dcsignee rnay take whatever action at l•w or 
in equity may ippmr noee3sary or •sirable to colleet the amounts payable by each City 
Ju��nder, then d'llC and thereafter to becaane due, or «> enforce performance and 
observance oflllJ' obligation, agreement or eoveraant of each City under the provision• of" 
this Servlco Cantraa. Boch City may take whltovor BOiton at law or ln ei:tuil)' may 
appear necessary or desirable to cnftmxi performance and observance of 8Jl)' obligation, 
agreement. or covenant ofUlA under the provlsion1:1 ofdtls SorvfQe Con'trtlct. 

Section 3.9 No Ex,luslvc 'Bcmedy. No right or remedy hmin conferred upon 
or reserved to UIA or its designce or any City is rntendrid ro be eJCClusivc af Ill)'. other 
right or remedy, and each and every right 11r1d remedy shall be cumula1.:.lvo and in addition 
to any QChcr rlgbt or remedr given hote\lndcr, or r\OW or hei'e'lfter lepfly cxlsdq. The 
&11urc of UlA or ltl delfjp1cc or. any City to Insist at any tim111 1.1pon the strict observange 
or perf ormancc by tht other f1artlea to this Servi� Contrad. of any of \he provlakms of 
this Srrvice Contract, or tn CX.erol• any right or remedy provided for In this Service 
Contract, shall not impair a.ny sudl rl&ht or remedy nor be construeid as a waiver or 

· reUnq1dslunent thereof for thet futuro. Recolpt by UIA or its deslgnee of any �rv� Fees 
requited to be made under this Service Contraot with knowledge of the breach of any 
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provisions of th.is Service Contraf;L shall not be deemed a waiver of such b&Qoh. In 
addition to all olher remedies piov;d� in this Service Contract, UIA or Jts designco or 
any City shall be entitled, to the extmt permitted by applicable law, to injunctive relief in 
ease of tho violation, or attempted or t111atc11ed violation., of any of the provisions-ofthi11 
Service Contract. or ro a decree concerning �manee of any of the provisions of thi5 
Service Contract, _or to any other remedy legally allowed. If any proceeding shall be 
brought for the enforcement of any right or remedy provided for in this Service Contract 
in·whlch it shall be determined th•t a City thall hil.ve failed and oontiaued'to fail to make 
a payment of Service Fees due under this Service Ccntract at the time of commencement 
thereof, said City shall pay UJA or its deslgnlDC 111\ expenses Incurred in con�oetion 
iherewilh inc/\lding, without Jimitation, reasonable attorneys• foas and expenses. In like 
manner, if it should become necessary for a Cit)' to bring legal proceedings against lJIA 
or its designee to enforce any right given it hereunder, the City shalt ha\le the right. ifit is 
S\ICCCSsful in s\lch proceedings. to the pa)'ment by UTA of all expenses incurred in 
connection therewith. including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees. and 
expenses. 

Section 3. 1 0  Ript of .12;jjpie111 to UlA to Exercise Remc;dics. At any time the 
UTA or lts designee is entitled to enforce any of the rights or temedies provided for In dais 
Service Contract, and lfle designoe may proceed, either in its own name and a trwltce of 
any e>cpress tNst or otherwise, lO protect and enforce its right.II and those of UIA under 
this Service Contract, whether or not UlA shall have compiled with any af the provisions 
hereof or proceeded to take any action authotl7.Cd or pcnnitted Utider applicable law. 
Sucih rights and remedies as are 1iwn UIA hereunder shall also extend to its dcsignee and 
the designeo shall be entitled to the benefit of an covenants and agreemenlS in th.is 
Service.Conrract c:ontaJned. · 

Section 3.1 1 CIJies nQJ Qblipted !Qr VIA Debt. All obligations of UIA arc 
payable solely by UIA and. in acoordanc1: with the provisions pf the Aet. ..-e not a· debt or 
odle, obli111tion of any of the Cities. 
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ARTICLB lV 

APPROVAL AND PUBLICA TJON REQUIREMENTS 

Section 4. l Submlas!oo to 611lbocized APQCOft'· This Service Contract shaU 
constitute an a1reen:um1 for joint and cooperative action pursuant to the Inter1ooal Aot. 1n 
accordance with tho requireMenta of Scctloti 1 1-13-202.S of the Interlocal Act as 
amended, thfs Servlce·eontraet shall be submitted for approval to the aovcmlng bodlR of 
UlA and each City and to an authoriZcd attorney for UJA and for each City who sh1dl 
appron thls Service Contract if sueh actomey determines that it is in proper form and 
compat11>1e with �e laws of the sa.; of Utah. 

SeGtton 4.2 . PYbUcation, Tn IOOOl'dancc with the requirements· ()f section 1 1-
1 3·219 of the Interlooal Act, as a!IN!ddad, the goveming body of UIA shalt provide for 
the pllblication cf1ho rwolutJon adopted· by it pursuant to 1he requirements ofScc:tlon 1 1 -
13-202 of_tbe J� Act, � 1mCnclc:d1 tn rhe offlcJal newspaper or the .oowspap« 
published within its boundaries, or If no newspaper is '° published, then 1n· a nowspapcr 
having s�neral circulation therein. 

Section 4.l lmpmyqnonto Oned by IJIO· In accordance with the 
requircmentl of lhci Intcrlooal Acr. .u amended. it is agreed and understood that au � 
and pc:nonal property constituting che lmprovemcntii 11ha.IJ be acquired, ownod. held, 
maintained, and disposed of by UJA. 
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ARTICLE V 

GENERAL PROVISJONS 

Section S .1  Acgul sltion and · Qzmtruction qf the lffiRl'oVomonts. UIA 
rq>resents that it will atquire or cause to be acquJrDd all pcnnlls. IJcenses, rights and 
privileges, struetures, equipment, and faoilitics with ttspact to the ecquisition and 
construction of the linpr<>Yements nece&aary for the perfonnance by UlA of this Service 
Contract. UIA shall maintain a11d defend such permits, licenses, arid rights and privileges 
ind shall llot voluntarily permit any ehange therein that would result in impairment of the 
petf omuulce by UIA of its obligation under th.is SOrvice Contr1et. 

Section 5.2 Risk of Loss. Each PartY Is solely responsible for the rb!k of loss 
ofi or damage: to, equipment of that Parfy (r�gardless of where loeited). unless tb" loss or 
d11magc results from the negligence or fault of the other Party. 

Section :5.3 Several Obliga(jons. ·Except where sp"ifically stated in thia 
Service Contract to be otherwise, the duties, obliptions, and Habllltic5 of the Partios arc 
intended to be several and not joint or eollective, Nothing contained in this Service. 
Contract &hall eyer be construed to oreate an association, trust, partnership, er joint 
vonture or impose a trust ot partnership duty, obUgation, or llabHity on or with regard to 
e.ithef P.ny. Each Pan)' shall be individuany and severaUy Hable for its own obligations 
llnder &bfs Service Contr&ot; aJJd shall not be liable for any obligation of the other Citi� 
ltoreunder� 

Section '.4 Wabilitv Dedication, . Nothing in this Scrvic:e Contract shall be · 
c.onstruod to create any duty· to. any 9t1111dard cf care wiih rcferenQO to. or any liability to 
•nY perso" not a party to this Service Contract. 

Section S.S lk!oks and �rsli. UlA agrees that it shall maintain separate 
books and records reladng ta the Imp.ovcmcnts and thai proper and equitable allocations 
of revenues and expenses will be made with respect to the operations of the 
lmprovemenis.· UIA shall submit to eoch City such supporting date w1"1 respect to all 
Annua.I Budget& 111d yearly accounting rccon�Uiations as � · rc:asonably necessary 1D 
cnnble each City to c�t proper accounting therefor. All hooks of a�unt and 
accounting roc:ords of UIA .shlllf bo available for inspeotion and utiUzation by a duly 
authorized oftlccr or dcsigacic of each City at all reasonable times. UIA shall cause such 
books of account of the lmprovemen11 to be audited annually by indepen4ent pubtie 
accountants exporicncod in utHtt, accounting. A copy of '2Ch such a»nLial audit. 
Including any rc;commcndi$tions of the accountants with rcspoct thereto, shall be promptly 
made .availahle by UIA to each City. 

· 

Section .5.6 Relationshio tg Other lnf1rUmeDSQ. It ts rccosnimd lhal UIA rnust 
comply with all licens=i1 permits and regulatory approvals necessary for the ownersllip, 
acquisition, "onstructfon and operation oflhe Improvements, and it I� 1hereforc, agreed 
that this Ser\'lce C:OOtraot is made subject to 1hc terms and provisions of suoh licenses, 
pennits and regqlatory approvals, except that each City shall not be bound I?)' any term or 
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provision of any license, permi� or regulatory llpprova� which may contradict or vary the 
t�s hereof unless it exptessly consMts in writing to be so bo1,1t'd. Each City agrees that 
It will not revise or �end ill Service Foes charged to end users under its 
Comm'L!nlcetions Entorprl11e fn any manner that would advencJy atfcct the priority of or 
the BOCurity for tho payments to be made thereunder to UIA widmut obi.iping die: prior 
written consent of UIA. 

Section S.1 Ll&biiitiea. Eaah City, Its officefs. dcsignc:es, 1md employees. or 
any of them, s•U -!\Ct be liable for any claims, demands, costs, losses, causes of action. 
damages or lllbllity or w_hatsotver kind or naturo arising out of or resultlne ftom the 
ownership, acquisition, constrwtiQD and operation by UI.t,. of· tho lmprovaments or 
arising out of any obliptions of tho Olhor Citfea h1ircund8r. UIA, fts omccn. desfgncc:s, 
and employees, or MY ofthom, shall noc be liable for any dabns, demands, co91S, losses, 
ea uses of· action, damaS's or liability of whatsO&Wer kind or nature e.risina out of or 
resulting from tho pcrfurmange by caeh City under this Sorvice Contract. 

Section 5.8 As,ignmenl· Except for security purpoes in connection with any 
obliptfons fncurred b:y UIA. neit1ic:r tld11 Scrvioc CQDtract nor any part thereof shall be 
assisned·b)' an)' Pasty without prior wrlttan consent of tho utbers. 

Section .S.9 l:J.mumlng Serviee to Others. UJA. by entering ihto Ibis Service 
Con� docs not hold Itself out lo provide the lmpro� or similar service to any 
other person or entity, 

· · 

Section S.10 Uncpntrollable F'grcgs. No Party shall be considered to be in 
doti\lit in �-. Co any ·abllption hll'l'Olandar, ocher tham under Article mt if prevaim:t 
trom fillfllHng such obligation b)' reason or an UrlClOlltrollablc Force. If a Party is 
rendered unable ro lbltill any obHp1ion by reason of an Unoontrollable Force such Party 
libafl exercise due diligence to re1nove such inability with all reasonable dispawh and 
shaU keep the other Parties fi.tlfy infOnnod of ohanges and conditions as far iD advance as 
po11sihle. 

Section s. J I Conununk:ftions Jkll!rgrlic. Each City wil I operate and maintain 
its Communicatioos Enterprise In 1®'1 operating order and wlll fix, charge, and col!oct 
r� fees, and merges In accordanco with Section 5. l2 herein. 

Section 5,12 Cities to Charge and Collect Ciiy Rev�. Et\� City hereby 
agrees to create a Communicalions Enterprise and to charse all end Ullcrs within 1hat City 
through its Communications Ent6rprise monttily fees in the amount set forth in Exhibit C 
att1Whed hereto ..W Incorporated herein for ea.oh connection ro lhe Network in 
consideration for the Connection Service provided by the City. Each City shall establish 
such enforcement procedUres as may be neccsmy to collect such fees. Said foes. when 
c.olledlld, shall be used by each City to pay its Service Pees wider dais Service Co11traa. 

- Section S.13 Qlble tel$mion Se.ryioes 41!1 ...P»bl ic Ie1ecommuni catign.s 
Serxfix:s. The .P#ties hereto aQknowledge and �t lhal neither party, by �terin,g 
into mis Serviee Con�t, shall provide: or be rcquiJCd to pf'O\'idc Cable Television 
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SeJvjges or Public Telcoommunicadoat Servi,c11 u defined in the Tcloeommunlcations 
Act, nor is either party C4p11blc of providing said services. Furthermore, tfle Partfe1 
hereby acknowledges end repnmcmt'that to the best of their knowlodgc, each City is paying 
for the tun cost of prcwidlna the Connec.tion- Sen'lces received by ft pursuant to this 
Service Contract, 

Section 5. l 4 Entire 61n;cment. This Servlco Contract constihltes · rho ondre 
agreement MlDJ'lg the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No. change, 
variation, termination, or attempted waiver of any of the provisions of this Service 
Contract shall be binding on the Partjes unless exeeuted ln writing by the 01taer P111y. 
This Sc:rv� Contract shall not be modifted, tuppl�e11ied, or otherwise af18cted by 
course of dealing. 

Section S.1 S AmendJmnts. This Scnic;c Contract shat! not be amended, 
modified, or oth«Wi� altered in any manner without the: coment of the parties hereto, 
which oonsont shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Seelion S.16 .BQ"eirtive 0111 pod Qrjsinal.Tertn. This Sorvlce Contract ahall be 
effective as of the date heroofand shall conttnue in ofJ'ect until April I, 2041. 

Soction �.17 �- Any notice, damand, or request pro\'ided for in this 
Service Cootract shall be in writing and shall bC! deemed properly wvod, given, or .made 
if delivered in person or aen� by iegi&tcnd or certifiod mall, postaic propaid, to the 
persons specified below: 

UlA: 

Brigham Clty 
20 North Main . 
PO Box 100' 
Brigham City, Ucah 14302 
Attn: Mayor 

Centerville City 
250 North tAin 
Centerville; Ut.u 84014 
Arm: Mayor 

Layton City 
437 North Wasatoh Drive 
Layton, Utah 14041 
Attn: Ma)'(I( 

Lindon City 
100 North State Street 
Lindon, Utal! U<l42 
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lTfOPlA 
217S S. Redwood Road 
West Valley City, UT .84J 19 

MldvaloOty 
6'5 West Center SlrCCt 
Midvale, Umh 84047 
Attn: MaY« 

Murray City 
S02S Soudl Stale Stred 
PO Box S7S20 
Murri)'. Utah 84157 
Attn: Mayor 

aiy ofOrcm 
S6 Nri State Street 
Orem. Utah 84057 
Attn: Mayor 

West Valley City 
3600 Constitution Avenue 
West Valley City, U1lh 841 19 

ts 



Ann: Mayor Attn: Ma;yot 

'.fhe Parties may. at an)' limo, by notice to the other dcsigmito different or 
�iiional po11ons or dlffi:rent addn:sses for the sivfng of notice hereunder. 

. Sectlon S.1& Thjrd Party Bcneficiatir§. Tho terms and provisions of this 
Servi� Contract shall l>e binding upon and inme to tho benefit of the Particis hereto, and 
their respective BQC:CeSSOrs and assigns, and is made solely and specifiQl!ly for th;ir 
benefit. No other person shall have any rights, interest, or claims hereunder or be entitled 
to any beni:fit11 1.10.der Pr on acwi.mt of Chis Servi� Conttaa as a third¥part)' benc6�iary or 
och11mvfll8. 

· 

Section 5.19 Governing Law. . This Service Contract shall be Interpreted, 
governed by, and con�ed under lhc; laws of the State ofUrah. 

Section SJC) Ex£Qu1i2cl iq CeunierPfrtS. This Service Contract may be 
sim\lltaneously cic.ecutcd in soveral �unterparts, each of which shall be an original arid 
•II of which shall constitute bllt one and the same instrument. 

Sccti0n S.21 SeverabiHty. Jfany provision ofthis Service Connet shaU be held 
or be deemed to be or sharJ, in fact, be:: illegal, · inoperall�e., or uncnfol'CeabJc:. the same 
shall not afTed" any other provision or provisions herein contalnec;f or render the: .same· 
invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable to any CJt&cnt whats�r. 
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.. 

IN WITNESS WHBRB.OF. tho Parties hereto have executed this contract the day 
and year herein first above written. 

· 

UTAH INFRASTRUCTURE AGBNCV 

(SBAL) 

By:�L{� 
Chair · 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 
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(SEAL) 

A1TESf AND COUNTERSIGN: 

(SEAL) 

ATI'EST AND COUN'T'ERSJGN: 

City Recorder 

(SEAL) 

A TIEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

Ry:�-
--�------

City Recorder 

BRIGHAM crrv, UTAH 

By:.�J��� .. \�·· �...,___· .... -
MaYiJr f 

CENTERVO..LB CITY, trrAH 

By: _________ _ 

Mayor 

LAYTON CITY, UTAH 

By:_ .. ·-�------�-

Mayor 

S·2 



(SEAl.) 

ATTF.STAND COUNTERSJON: 

City Recorde::r 

(S£A.I.) 
l 
i 

BRJOHAM CITY. lITAH 

B��---�-·---, 
Mayur 

By:� ¥ Ct rder 

l.AYTON CITY, tlTAlt 

(SEAL) . 
B�: __ , ___ , -�----Mayor 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By:, __ �---------

City Recorder 



BRIGHAM CITY. UTAH 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

CENTERVILLE CITY. UTAH 

(SEAL) 

By: ____ ...,...,. ______ _ 

Mayor 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

LAYTON Cl1Y. UT AH 
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ATTBST ANDCO�IGN: 

I.JNDON CITY, UTAH 

�� _)_� 
· Mayor 

By. ,�� . er 

(SBAL) 

A'ITI!Sr AND COUN1'BRSIGN: 

(SEAL) 

MIDVALB CITY, UIAH 
• I 

Mayor 

MURRAY CITY, UTAH 

· S-3 
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LINDON CITY, UTAH 

{SEAL) 

Mayor 

A 'JTEST AND COUNTERSJGN: 

·. 

MIDVALE CITY, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

,. By:�� 
Mayor 

AITEST A.ND COUNIERSIGN: 

MURRAY CITY. UTAH 

(SEAL) 

Mayor 

ATI'EST ANI> COUNTERSIGN� 

City R.eoordcr 
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LINDON CITY, UT All 
- ·  

(SEAL) 

ATTEST AND COUNTBRSlGN: 

By; ______ _._ __ .--� 

City Recorder 

MIDVALE CITY, UfAH 

(SEAL) 

By:--
----�---

Mayor 

ATI'EST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By: __________ � 

Cify Recorder · 

(SEAL) 

IJUW£&Tir.��4 v12 
! .� r't10VED AS TO "'""""'"�.-

- . 

MURRAY CTTY. UT AH 
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(SEAL) 

ATrEST ANU COUNTF..RSIGN: 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

By: ___________ _ 

Oty Recorder 

(SEAL) 

A ITEST AND COUNrERSIGN: 

By:., __________ _ 

City Rccotder 

CITY OF OREM. UTAH 

sr,�� 
· Mayor · 

PAYSON CITl'. UTAH 

Mayor 

WEST VALLEY Cn'Y. UTAH 

Mayor 

S-4 



(S2A.L) 

ATTBST AND COUNTERSlON: 

Chy RccDrdcr • 

(SEAL) 

A'CTEST AND COUNTERSIGN: 

CITY OF OREM, UT AH. • 

WEST VALLBY CITY, UTAH 

By: O£?< • Mayor 

S-4 



Pumiant to Section l 1-1.3-202.S of tbe Utah Code Annotated 1953. as amended, 
dlc foregoing Service Contract is hereby approved. 

· · 

Attorney fur Brigham City, Utah 

Anorncy for Centerville City, Uudt 

Attorney fot LaytOn City, Utah 

At1orncy for Lindon City, Utah 

Attorney tt>r Miirr1:1y City, Utah 

Attorney forClcy of Orem, Utah 

Attorney for West Valley Ci�, Utah 



Pursuant to Sc:ction 11·13·202.S of the Utah Code .Annot.ated 1 953, as mncnded, 
the foregoing Scrvioo Contmct is hereby approw:d. 

Attorney for Ublh lnfr89tructure Agency 

� � ghamctt;: Utah 

Attorney for Centem1tc Ci'Y. UtDh 

Attorney for Lindon City, Utah 

Attcmey tb'r Midvale Cicy. Utah 

Attorney fut Murtay City, Utah 

Auomey for CityofOrcm, Utah 

0Attome.y for We!llt Valley City, Utah 

s-s 



Pursuant to Section 1 1 -13-202.S of the Utah Code Annotated l9S3, u amended, 
the foregoing Service Contract is hereby approved. 

Attomey for Utah lnfrastrueture Agoncy 

Attorney for Brlgha01 City, Utah 

AUomoy for Layton City, Utah 

Attorney for Lindon City, Utah 

Attorney for Midvale City, Utah 

Attorney for Murr•y City� Utah 

Attornl!I)" for City of Or.,rn, Utah 

Attorney for West Valley City, Utah 

S-5 



Pursuant to Section I 1·13-202..5 of the Utah Code Annotated l9S3. as amended, 
the foregoing �ervica Contraot is horeby approved. 

Attomey for Utah lnfrastructun: Aai:n�y 

Attorney for Brigham City, Utah 

Attorney fQr Centcrvute City. Utah 

�--· 

Attorney for Lindon City. Utah 

Attorney for Midvale: City. Utah 

Attorney for Murray City, Utah 

Attor-ncy for City of Orem, Utah 

Attorney for West VallcyCity1 Ui.h 
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Pursuant to Section: 11·l3·20'l.5 of dtc Utah Codt Almo�tcd 1953, aii amended. 
the foregoing Service Contract 111 hereby approved. 

Auomey f�r Utah Jnfraatructurti Agency • 

. . 

Attotney far Cenbnille City, Utah 

AUOmey tar L•ytim Cty, Utab 

�� 

AttaQJCY foi Mldvale City, Umh 

Att®ley forMan:.y City, Utah 

AUon11�y for City of Orem. Utah 

. Attomcy for Payson Qty, UU\h 
-···"'"--�--·· ........ ____ -· .. ----1 .. .. .. - .....: .. ___ ......... �-. -..:.:....:..::��:_.� �-�· � .... :.......;..... .......... ·...; �..:. ... ___ -6--.. ·-·-·---- -· .:... · .. 

' 

Attomay fgr West Vllicy Cily, Utah 

S-5 
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_ Pursu111t to Section 1 1-13-202..S of the 1.Jtah Code Annotated 1953, as ainended, 
th� foregoing Service Contract Is herciby apProvcd. 

AUOmcy for Ut.ah Infrastructure Agency · 

Attorney for Cen�rville City, Utah 

Attorney for ·Layton City, Utah 

Attorney for Murray City, :Utah 

Attorney for City of Orem) Utah 

Attorney for West Valley City, Utah 
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PurstJal!t to Section 1 1  � J 3-202.5 of the Utah Code Annotatisd l 953, as a.mended, 
the foregoing Semce Contract is hereby lpproved. 

Atlumey for Brigham City, Ut8h 

Attorney for Centerville City, Utah 

Attorney for t..yton City, Utah 

Attorney for Lindnn Crr.y, Utah 

Attorney for Midvale City, Utllh 

�J, M1.:� 
�City, UtaJi 

Attorney for City of �m. Utah 

Attorney fot West Valley City, Utah 

S-S 



Pursuant to Section 1 1-13-202.S of the Utah Code Anoolated 19S3, u amended, 
1hc foregoillg Servic:e Co� i.IJ hereby approved. 

Attorney fur Brigbun. City. Utah 

Attorney for c.enterville City, Utah 

-��--·--·- ------
Attorney for I.ayton City, Utah 

Attorney fur Lindon City, Utah 

Attorney for Midvale City. Utah 

Attorney for Murray City, Utah 

/tp_f/fL: :: =-
-Att.omey for City t>f O� Utah 

AttOl'Iley fur West Valley City, Utah 

S-5 



Pursuant to Section 1 1-13-202.5 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, u amerided, 
the foregoing Service Contract ls hereby approved. 

· · 

AUDmey fur Brigham City. Utah 

Attorney for Centerville City, Utah 

Att.omey for Layton City, Utah 

Attomey fur Lindon City, Utah 

Attomey for Midvale City, Utah 

Attorney for Muaay City, Uuh 

At1omey for City of Orem, Utah 

S-5 

ey for West v.ney City, Utah 
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EXlilBJT.A 
CONNECTION SERVICES 

StrategJe Partner Man•1emeat 
Reuruit and manage �legic parmership.g, which wm include but not be limiled to 
Bu.11ines!l and R.caidential Service Providers and Services Providers. Attract new 
technologies to the norwork to facilitate new wvi�o oWcrings on Che network and 
leverage the Cities existing networt and its eommunities. 
UIA will negotiate on behalf of the Cities tho cootract and contract amendments, enforce 
Qontracts with Providers a!l(I enswe Service Level Agreements are met 1c:cordlng Jo 
business and c.ontract\lal obHaatlons. 

Product Management 

Recommend, develop wholesale pricing modef along with Cities and strategl� partnors. 
Thfs will Include n�w wholesale pricing for newly dc.wcJopcsd produ�rs brought by UlA 
and its Strategic Partners. 

Present developed model and any changes to Citic5 and Slratcgic partners for rollout on 
the Network. Maintain, modlfYJn1 and bring to e11d·ofNlifi:: wholtsaJe products on the 
net'1Vork. · 

Plaaniag, Dealan and lmpkmeatation 
UIA wiH provide plBMlng, design f.Pd implementation of the Cities raetworks u 
l'CqUC5ted. A" fill) omsidc plant design. netwo.rt dcslC" and operational impact review 
wlll be providod alolag with a project implmenbllfon plan ttmcline .along wUb ast0claled 
budget for the plan. The pt. will inelll<k: · 

• Crcation/lmport of citY record!J into ors syarem 

• Estim11ted cost for die outsido pl11nt build ftiquemd •rca 

• Estimated cosr for the network engineering bulld 

• 

Project Engineer to interact and answer quesrlons abe>ul tho prop0sals and 
presentations 

Sup�rr for submittal of change orders for any changes on the desi1n plan 
· Supporting production mlP(a) and documcnwion for proposed build areas 

• l!'lCIJ'aCt of information in supportod format provided by UIA 
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M•rketing/Advoc.tc Awareness Progra111 

UIA wlJI instigate and ovorsce my marketing and cornmunications efforts that are 
neceasary to the networic's suocess. This could . include campaigns within city 
8QYernments, residential· markets. multl-dwelling ua.lt markots. busihess markeh. or with 
community and national thought leaders, policy rnakors and other aucHenees. ln 
partici.llar, UlA will seek opportJ,lnitics to develop and ed\K:ate about future quality-of� 
li'fe. public safc:ty, 11nd economic devcloprnem opportunities on the network. working to 
build tho network's reputation es necoswy public infrastructure. 
UIA will rec111it snd manage pcnoMel and/or contracun to assist in promotlns lhe 

nerwork and growing the subscriber bas� 

Gf S Senriees 

Upon implementation of new network. designi; UIA will QQtc, manage and maintain a 
Gco-sP1tiaJ database to tnick ihe build of the Cities net\\'Ot'k. Uf A wiU provide a 
conversion rnethod to Import engineering documentatiOll.(CAD Coovcrsion) PCI modify 
die goo-spatial database to inolude AS·811ilt updates as reported. 

. . 

Continued support w\U be oft'ered by taking GPS data IX>Sfettlon for by OSP elements, 
recording that information into the database, p10vidins and U'acklng fiber assignments 
made for provisioning services ond whe11 requc.stedt pravide an exttaot of die dntab!ls:e for 
the Cities in an availlble fonnat 

Outside Plant Services 

During consi:ruotion UlA will appoint a Project Marager to aver� all approved 
construetfon for the specific projeet. They wlll manage the RFJ> process using UIA 
standard policies to award constructlop bids and select qualified contractors. They wUI 
pro\l!de management over employcris and contractors during the construction process by 
assigned constnict1on woJk. �kagc:s and ensuring industry bost practices and consistent 
engineering 1pocificacion1i n met. 

The Project MaDapr will ensure: . 
• Budget traing and reporting ls av.Ulable for Cities 

O�in ncccssary field pennits_ snd obligations 

• Issues are traokc:d and brought to resc>lution fur Cities or thetr residents 
• JlMA procoss Je followed 
• Inventory 15 managed and accounted for 
• Maintainine necessary levels of inventory to compl$to work packages 
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• Ensure CO:listruction work through Quality A.uurance procedures 

Field Services 

UlA will provide field crew& and/or oontrac;iors lo be doploycd ln the tlekl to rnanagc the 
physical plant which it eonsb'Uctcd for the Cities. UJA. wUI maintain physical huts and 
cabinets <>n the network. Duri11g lhe event e>f an issue th� Field Sorviecs Qroup will 
respond to an actual damage to physiQI plant and manag� and execute the repair needed 
for restoring the ph;vsical plant as deemed nucssary. 

Network E•ginccrina �rvlcea 
UIA wiU provide network enghtecrs and/or contractors to �aluatc, recommend the 
noided clectroniGs to provide wholesale scirviccs on the network. These Network 
engineers will: 

• Test and certiry network el�� for deployment 

• Create, malntafn physical and logical topology of the Network . 

• Configure and instaU the necessary devices in the n�ork as nccde<! 
,. RosoJ vo any issUC6 with those dovioes and replace parts or device 111 needed 

• RMA through standard processes 

• Research and Development of new tedinologies along with strategic panncrs 

• Capacity planning of the network 

Operatiom Man•1ement 

UIA will provide management ovemght of operational supJ)Ort of the network. This will 
i™'ludo: 

IDtcm:ation: Integration of strategic partners onto the network. establishing standard 
interfaces and operational methods· and procedures with these partners. UIA will assist 
strategic partners in un�rstanding integration points of products and services on the 
network. 

Qpgratk>nal M4cthods and ��vars: Do\'elop supporting methods and procedure& to 
coordinate delivery of services to customers. 

Network {)peQUQDJ Cent;r <HQC): . 24x7 NOC to monitor hoalth of devices and servict& 
on die network. Respond '° Straiegic Pam1cr requests. manage to resolution reported 
Issacs on the network. 

A·J 
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Network Rqmir Md M!Jntcnanqe: D«ect, record (vi. • trouble ticketJna sol\JPQn) and 
respond to network maintenance and issues. Record lll1d dispst.ch 11ppropri11t.: teams into 
the field for Issue resolution. 

·Order M111agmcnt SY•ttm: Pro�do systems to allow the- ordering and acdvation of 
wholesale services on the network. track customer acquisition and produce in\'oiccs, as 
needed, of whol�c sctvlces for cities so that they ft\')' invoice residents and UIA may 
lnvoi«lc SeniJce Providers. 

�; Provide reporting of customers on the netwm. 

ln\loicjgg: Provide information to Cities to •lloW the Invoicing of RPl'flcable wholesale 
so�lcc1 on tho network. · 
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EXHIDITQ 
DESCR1PTJON OP IMPROVEMENTS 

Physical lm.prO\Jements 

Fiber Optic Communication Hnes will be deployed throL1ghout the member's 
· communltles. These 1ine1 will be constructed both overhe.d and \lndcrground in each of 
the <JitiBS "rights of wat• fo/Jowing all local, state and federal rcaula1ioos using industry 
best practice� to deploy the most emcicnt and � effective infl'llstructure. 

Blemonts of the lnti'llsmJcturc iQclude 3 separate categories: B�.or mlddle mile 
construction. � level or list mile construction and drop level QOnstructlon. 

Backbone or Mfddle Mlle Conmacffon 
Consists of both overhead and underground paths, cornrrumicadon shcher.s to house 
distribuUCP switchea, fiber optic patch panels, uninterruptable power supplle' (UPS) and 
generators. The cornmunication shelters will serve as distribiJtlon poirtts within lhe 
member cities and will be connected diversely with ring arc�ilecture; Other elements 
include fiber optfo cable, conduit, ·strand, pole mounting hardware. vaults. splice closures 
1U1d all other items necessary to construct and 9peni.tc the network. The testing .,,d 
"erti tication of tho lmprovemems wm be in ae;ord1ncc with natio™d industr)' standards 
and UTOPIA •s Bngineering Standards document. 

· 

Access Level or Latt Mlle Co ... tnaetlon 
Consists of both ovorhead and underground patfls to � su�bed addreas whhfn lhc 
bUild area. Btemenu of thls type of bUlld include fiber optic cable. C<>rlduh. strand, pole 
mouqtlng hardware, �ts, splice closures and all other items neoe$Uly to construct and 
operate die ndwark. This intiutructuro wfll fac:Hltatc and scn'C llS network ac:coss points 
for subscribers to UIA. 

Drop Leftl Constr.dloa 
Consist of drop ftbcr and/or conduit being placed ii-om • network aocoss point to the 
demarcation point within .the B\lbaorlbcr's premise where I! network lntCrfac;c. dovlccs will 
be placed. Elernents of this type of b\IUd Include thr" quarter inch drop cond\lit, drop 
fiber, �iaf attachment hlll'dwaro, network Interface dPicc (NJD), UPS, fiber r>fetaiJ. 
opt;cat transceiver/receiver, power cord and all other items neccissary to construct and 
operate the network. J.n some instances OlA wtn also be responsible for insta1Un1 cat.5 
cable within she homes to provide 1 coM�ion for tho &etl'lc:es ordered. 

DMWEST #7�32944 v 1 1  
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EXWBJTC 
NUMBER OF BND USSR$ ALLOCA TP.D TO EACH Cl'IY 

Brigh11111 City 896 

O:ntervillc. 2,020 

Layton 3,803 

Lindon 693 

Midvale i.2�5 

MuJTI)' 2,S78 
Orem 4�730 
West Valley City 3.099 
Total � 
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Brigham City 

Contcr'lill c 
Layron 
Lindon 
Midvale 
Murray 
Orem 
West Valley City 
Total 

DMWEST #7631944 v11  

EXijlJ)IT O 
PRANCHlSE TAX �UBS 

. Estimami 
Maximum Ann1.1al Amount of 

F"1!chise Tax Rev1muos 
J.>mb!e b� &!ch Cjty 

SJl,13.1 
1 86,737 

937,272 

1n;s10 
339,�1 

690,141 

J,223,786 

1J.68J8J 
.1,J51.l �2 

D-1 

% of Shortfall 

Allocated to 
(lach Cin'. 

0.62% 

3.63% 
18.20% 

3.35� 

6.�/o 

13.40% 

23.76% 

3.il.45% 
l!l0.QO% 



.EXWWT£ 
f'OR_M OF PROMISSORY NOTE 

s ___ Cdate> 

POR VALU5 R.BCEIVED, the undersiped. U11h .lnfi'astrutturc A,cincy (the 
"Borrower"), pl'Oltlises to pay to the orda- of (NAMB OF CITY) ("Lender''). aho principal 
sum of ($ >. togeda with oil subsequent loan 
advances m"'1e, expendltur"s author� and additio� .paymenm provided for in this 
Promi$SOI)' Nate and .pursuant to the C<lnmunicatlons Service Contract dated as of May 
I ,  201 1, llrnong the Borrower, the Lender. and variou3 other munlclpalitic5 in �  State of 
Utah.(the ''Sorvlee ContrMit'). . 

t. peftnitlon!,. A1 uaed in this Noto, the following terms shall have the 
meanings set fordi below: 

· 

•'Effective Date" means the d.se the terms of this NOl'C, lncluding the accruing tllte 
of Interest and the payment obligations descrlbed herein, bec9me effective. which date 
sllali be the date die proceeds of lhc Loin are dlaburacd lD or for the benefit of Borrower. 

•'Event ofDeliuJt" shall haYo tho moanins given in th� Service Contraet 
0Loan" means the Joan �anced by Lender to Borrower under the tenns and 

upon the conditions oontained in the Service Contract in the principal amount of 

_______ ($ ). 
"Maturity �" moans _____ _ 

"Month" meu1 a eaJendar n>Cftth. 
"Note" mca'ns this Promls90!'>' �otG and any oxtenslons, rcn�als or 

modifications t�oof. �t 
· 

"Payment Date'' means lho _ day of each Month on which Borro�r · shall 
pay to Lender aocruod lntoresc, or principal and accrued lntmST, on tbc outstandln,g 
prfn�lpal ofthis Note. as required by th: bsrmt of this N<*. 

"Principal Indebtedness" means at any timo and ITom time to time during tho term 
of this NQte an advances, disburscf1'CRC., expenditu�r. and payments made by Lender. 

a�r the date of this Note pursuant to the terms of this N� or d1c �ervico Contract. 

"Service Contract" mcan1 tho Service Contract referenced above. 



2. SfcuriCY. J\ofercncc Is made to the Service Contract for a description of 
tho propcrey and interests encumbered or pledged as security for this Note. and the rights, 
remedies and obligations of Lendor with respect 1hereao. 

3. lnfsM 6CC01nla. Th� unp"td· principal balance will bear intercat at a rate 
ofslx percent (6%) per ann11m. ' 

4. lntercss CalQUhi&Jon Ba.sis. All Interest accruing under this Note shaU be 
calc;ulatcd on 1he basis of a 36o..day year for the aol\.lal nu�r of day1 cll1p1Cd. 

5. Pnments Ofprjpclpal and Accrued Interest. 
(a) Bcginnins on Bcnowei- shall make .monthly 

jnstaUment payments to I.coder of principal and accrued iqterest .on the unpaid Principal 
Ind�edncss in the amount of 

· (S ) each. 
(b) . The entire unpaid Prlnelpal fnciebtednesi, together wflh all accrued at1d 

unpaid interest thereon. if not sooner ·paid, lihall be due and payable in fUlf on the 
Maturity Date. 

6. PJs pf Paymcnl. All payments under thi• Note shall be mado in laWful 
mo11oy of the United Statc5 of America at Lender's offi.;es at -------­
Utah, or at suoh other place as Lcmdcr may from time to dme designate. All payment1 on 
this Nole shall, at the option of Lender. bo appliod first to the payment of accrued interest 
and aftor all such intcrc:at has' bein paid, any rt;mainder shall be applied toWard tho 
reduction of the Principal Indebfednds. :r 

7. Qsfiwlt Rate pf (nterm. During llDY period of time fn which an Event of 
Default has occuned and is continuing, interest nll accTUC aaainat tho oubtandipg 
.Principal l�neu evidenced hereby at a rate equal to the otherwise off'ectivc rate of 
interest under di ls Nate plUJ ftvo pe1CeUt (S.0%) per •nnu1nt calculated on the basis of a 
360-da)' year for the actual number of days elapsed •. 

· 8. Psmmient. Borrower may prepay al1 or a portion of the amount <nlRd 
earner than it is due. 

9, 1.atc Peg Charaes. If any payment required by this Note not rceelvod by 
Lender within ten (I 0) da)'5 after such payment is due, a late fee; charse equal to five 
percent {S.0%) of such lat'e payment shall be due and payable. 

1 o. lncomowlon of &Ann Documents. The terms. conditions, covenants, 
previsions. stip'llations arid agreements of the· Service Contract are· hereby made a part of 
this Note by reference to such document .In Che same manner and with the 1ame effect as 
if the Service Contract wore fully set forth herein. Borrower hereby covenants and 
promises to abide by Md comply with GiWh and everY covenant f.nd condition - forth in 
this Note and tho Service Contract. 



1 1 .  AppJfcation gf P!JD1CDU. All payments on lhis Note shall. at the option of 
Lender, bo applied first to the pa)'JnCnt of accn1od intw.t and after all sum inklrost has 
been paid, any remainder shall bo applied toward 1tpaymen1 of. any additional advances 
Lendor hu made hereunder which have not alreldy been added to tho Principal 
Indebtedness 1hcn oumandlng,' and the balance. If aiy, toWatd the reduction of the 
Prf noipal I ndebtedncss. 

12. W11m. SubstiMi,sm of Seourfb'. Borrower waives .s:neseucment for 
payment, not.Ice of dishonor and promst. and consents IO any Oittenslon of time With 
respect to any payment due \lndcr this Note, 10 any snbstilution. or release of collateral. 
and to the addition 0r ref e:asc of any party, No waiver of any payment under this Note· 
shill opcratO as • waiver of any . oth;cr payment. No dday or failure of �nder in tho 
exercise of any rl&ht Cit remedy provided for under thi1 Note rhall be dec:rned. a waiwr of 

· such right by Lender, and·no exercise.of any rtght or remedy shall be deemed a waiver of 
any other right or remedy which Lender may have. 

13. Oovmina I,my. Thi• Note is to bo con91rued in aocordencc with the laws 
of the State of Utah, without giving � to principles of conflicts uf laws. 

14. Gw:pl. Tlrno Is of tho eaonce honor. Upon the oocurrenco �d 
eontinuance ot an Bvent of Default, l:.ender shall have, in addition to all rights and 
rcmod�es available to Lender at law or in equity, aJI rights and remedies specified in any 
of the Loan Documents. 

DA TED offoctivc es of tho date fitlt abo�c written. 

[Signatures appear on following pages:] 



BORROWER: 

UTAH INFRASTRUtruRE AGENCY 

By: _________ _ 

Chair 

--------- UTAH 
(SEAL) 

ATIBST AND COUNTERSIGN: 
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